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BUSINESS  
PERFORMANCE

HEG Limited is a leading graphite electrode manufacturer & exporter with more 
than 70% of its production exported across more than 30 nations. The Company 
manufactures two grades of graphite electrodes - Ultra High Power (UHP) & High 
Power (HP) at its manufacturing facility at Mandideep, India. The Company has a 
Captive power generation capacity of around 76.5 MW (2 thermal power plants & 
1 hydropower plant). 
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Where we stand How we got here
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GRAPHITE ELECTRODES
Business segment 1

Where we stand How we got here



Co
rp

or
at

e 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ep
or

t
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

29

Performance 
The Company continued its stellar 
performance for the second year in 
succession aided by a favourable industry 
scenario. Robust demand resulted in 
growth in business volumes. An increase 
in prices of graphite electrodes owing to 
a shortage of the product facilitated in a 
140% growth in revenue – from `2,739 
crore in 2017-18 to `6,582 crore in 2018-
19. 

Operational improvements
Even as demand surged, and there was an 
urgency to increase production, the team 
continued to maintain its operational 
discipline to maintain product quality 
- an essential prerequisite for product 
acceptance. Besides, the team worked 
on streamlining shop floor operations 
to maximise productivity and optimise 
costs.

Marketing successes
The team analysed the external market 
conditions correctly. As a result, even as 
it continued to honour its commitments 
to its business partners, it remained 
watchful on profitable short-term 
growth opportunities. This combination 
helped in strengthening business 
profitability. The team continued to 
strengthen business relations with all its 
key customers by regular interaction at 
multiple platforms. 

Prospects
Graphite Electrodes, over the last two 
years, have transformed from being a 
commodity to a strategic consumable 
owing to the structural changes in the 
industry. Moreover, with the environment 
emerging as the predominant theme 
across the globe, EAF technology for 
steel making is becoming increasingly 
prevalent across global steel 
manufacturing hubs. This augurs well 
for the graphite electrodes industry – 
demand is expected to remain resilient 
over the medium term.  

Key operational improvements include

•	 Fine-tuned processes to facilitate 
consistency in product quality and 
man-machine productivity. 

•	 Strengthened process control by 
involving front-line operators and 
Engineers.
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Business segment 2

POWER GENERATION 

The performance of the vertical remained 
subdued owing to strategic reasons. 

The Company negotiated a mutually 
beneficial term with the government 
utility company which replaced part of 
the high-cost self-generated power with 
power from the government utility. 

This initiative reduced the volume of 
captive generation and transfer to 
graphite, and reduced the average 
realisation in the power segment as the 
revenue in power segment is booked 
based on the corresponding rate of 
power defined by the state and utilities.

This step though has reduced revenue 
and bottom line in the power segment 

but had a very favourable impact on 
the overall cost of power consumed in 
graphite electrode business. 

Moreover, coal availability under a fuel 
supply agreement with Coal India was 
acutely short. This mandated sourcing 
coal from the open market - it adversely 
impacted the division’s bottom line. 
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(Based on Standalone Financial Statements)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
HEG reported a stellar performance, the 
best in its journey so far, primarily owing 
to the structural change in the graphite 
electrode industry across the globe.

Statement of Profit and 
Loss
Total revenue shot up by 142% - from 
`2,771 crore in 2017-18 to `6,702 crore 
in 2018-19. This huge growth was 
largely owing to a global shortage in 
supply of graphite electrodes leading to 
an unprecedented rise in the prices of 
graphite electrodes. 

Total operating costs also increased by 
74% - from `1,166 crore in 2017-18 to 
`2,025 crore in 2018-19 primarily due 
to an increase in the cost of materials 
consumed. 

EBIDTA increased from `1,734 crore in 
2017-18 to `4,767 crore in 2018-19 while 
EBIDTA margin stood at 71% against 63% 

in 2017-18. 

Interest liability reduced from `56 crore 
in 2017-18 to `18 crore in 2018-19 owing 
to the repayment of debt and reduced 
utilisation of the sanctioned working 
capital limit. As a result, the interest 
coverage ratio jumped from 29 in 2017-
18 to 261 in 2018-19. 

Net profit for the year stood at `3,050 
crore in 2018-19 against `1,081 crore 
in 2017-18. The Company declared a 
dividend of 800% for 2018-19, which if 
approved, will result in a payout of `313 
crore in 2018-19 against `320 crore in 
2017-18. 

Balance Sheet
Shareholders’ Fund increased from 
`1,809 crore as on March 31, 2018, to 
`3,719 crore as on March 31, 2019 – 
owing to the addition of surplus profit 
during the year. As a result, return on 

networth jumped from 60% in 2017-18 to 
82% in 2018-19 and the book value per 
share increased from `453 to `964 over 
the same period. 

Having repaid all its long-term debts 
during the year, the Company achieved 
a zero-long term debt position. Working 
capital increased significantly as the 
balances in the trade receivables and 
inventories ballooned by more than 22% 
and 156% respectively – primarily due 
to the increase in the value of the raw 
materials and finished goods.

Cash Flow Statement
Net cash from operating activities 
increased from `594 crore in 2017-18 
to `1,488 crore in 2018-19 showcasing 
growing organisational liquidity. This 
enabled the Company to invest in 
capacity augmentation by 20,000 Mt at 
`1,200 crore. (through internal accruals) 
over a period of 3 years. 

Significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial years) in Key Financial Ratios, 
along with explanation are as under:

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 Change

Debtors Turnover Ratio 6.11 4.14 48%

Inventory Turnover Ratio 1.23 1.26 (3)%

Interest Coverage Ratio* 261.29 29.44 787%

Current Ratio 2.82 2.29 23%

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.18 0.16 9%

Operating Profit Margin (%) 71% 60% 18%

Net Profit Margin (%) 46% 39% 18%

Return on Net Worth (%) 82% 60% 37%

* Interest is paid on working capital limits utilisation
The change is due to a better profit margin during this year as compared to last year.

Transaction of the Company with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more 
shareholding in the Company is given below :-

S.no Name of Entity Shareholding % of total shares of 
the Company

Final Dividend Paid 
for FY 2017-18

Interim Dividend Paid 
for FY 2018-19

1. Norbury Investments Ltd 13.90% `2,681.50 Lakhs `1,608.90 Lakhs

2. Microlight Investments Ltd 12.09% `2,332.79 Lakhs `1,399.67 Lakhs
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

evaluation carried out by external valuer. The Management 
believes that the useful life of the assets as stated below 
best represents the life over which the management 
expects to use the assets. Hence the useful life for these 
assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed 
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 The method of depreciation and useful life considered on 
different assets is as below:

(i)	 Depreciation on all the assets at Hydel Power Project at 
Tawa is provided on Straight Line Method. The useful life 
of assets determined is as below:

Sl. 
No. Description of Asset

Rate of 
Deprecia-

tion (%)

Useful Life  
(Approx)

1 Factory Building 3.02 33

2 Non Factory Building 3.02 33

3 Plant and Machinery

 

i) Dams, Spillways weirs, 
canals, Reinforced 
Concrete Flumes and 
symphons

1.95 51

 ii) Hydraulic control valves 
and other hydraulic works 3.40 30

 iii) Transformers having a 
rating of 100 KVA and over 7.81 13

4 Electrical Installation

 i) Batteries 33.40 3

 
ii) Lines on Fabricated 
steel operating at normal 
voltages higher than 66 kv

5.27 19

 iii) Residual 7.84 13

5 Furniture and Fixtures 12.77 8

6 Office Equipment and 
other assets 12.77 8

7 Vehicles 33.40 3

(ii)	 On the assets other than those mentioned at (i) above, 
depreciation is provided on following basis:

	 In case of Plant and machinery, depreciation is provided 
on Straight Line Method and in case of other assets on 
Written Down Method. The useful life of assets determined 
is as below:

Assets description Useful Life

Building 20 - 60 Years

Plant and Machinery  1-24 Years

Railway Siding 9 Years

Office Equipment (Includes Computers 
and data processing units)  5-20 Years

Electrical Installation  5-20 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 15 Years

Vehicle  5-10 Years

(iii)  Cost of acquisition and improvement of lease hold land is 
amortized over the lease period.

(iv)  	 Assets costing upto ̀ 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year 
of purchase.

(v) 	 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

(vi) 	 On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all its Property, Plant 
and Equipment recognized as at 1st April, 2016 measured 
as per previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its 
deemed cost of the Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B)	 Investment Property

	 Investment Property is depreciated using written down 
value method over their estimated useful life. Investment 
property generally has a useful life of 58 years. Useful life 
has been determined as prescribed in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013.

2.8 	 Amortization

	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets are amortized over their respective 
individual useful lives on a straight line basis from date 
they are available. The estimated useful life is based on 
number of factors including effect of obsolesce and other 
economic factors and are as under

Assets description Useful Life

Computer Software 05 Years

	 Amortisation method, useful lives and residual value are 
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.
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	 On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all intangible assets 
recognized  as at 1st April,2016, measured as per previous 
GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of 
intangible assets.

2.9 	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

	 Intangible assets, Investment Property and Property, Plant 
and Equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount 
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the 
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis 
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets. In such 
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

	 If such assets are considered to be impaired, the 
impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying 
value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable 
amount of the asset. 

	 An impairment loss is reversed in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable 
amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined (net 
of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 
years.

	 Impairment is reviewed periodically, including at each 
financial year end.

2.10 Foreign Exchange Transactions/Translation

(a)   	Functional Currency

	 The financial statements are presented in INR, which is 
the company’s functional currency.

	 Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s 
functional currency are recognized at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of 
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at 
that date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement 
of monetary items or on translating monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they were translated on 
initial recognition during the period or in previous financial 
statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in 
which they arise.

	 Non monetary items denominated in foreign currency and 
measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange 
rate prevalent at the date of transition.

	 Effective 1st April, 2018 the Company has adopted 
Appendix B to Ind AS 21. Foreign Currency Transactions 
and Advance Consideration which clarifies the date of 
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange 
rate to use on initial recognition of a related asset, 
expense or income where an entity has received  or paid 
advance consideration in a foreign currency. The effect is 
insignificant.

2.11 Employee Benefits

(A) 	 Post Employment Benefits

	 (a) 	 Defined contribution Plan

(i) 	 Provident Fund

	 The Company makes contribution to the statutory 
Provident Fund in accordance with Employees 
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 
1952 which is a Defined Contribution Plan and 
contribution paid or payable is recognized as an 
expense in the period in which services are rendered 
by the employee.

(ii)	 Superannuation 

	 The Company makes contribution to Hindustan Electro 
Graphites Ltd. Senior Executive Superannuation Fund 
Trust and contribution paid or payable is recognized 
as an expense in the period in which services are 
rendered by the employee.

	 (b) Defined Benefit Plan

(i)	 Gratuity

	 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit 
retirement plan “The gratuity plan” covering eligible 
employees. The gratuity plan provides for lump sum 
payment to vested employee at retirement, death, 
incapacitation or termination of employee of an 
amount based on  the respective employees salary 
and the tenure of employment with the Company.

	 Liability with regard to Gratuity Plan are determined 
by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent 
actuary at each Balance sheet date using the project 
unit credit method.

	 The Company fully contributes all ascertained 
liabilities to the Hindustan Electro Graphites Staff 
Gratuity Fund Trust (The Trust), trustees administers 
the  contributions made to the trust and contributions 
are invested in a scheme with Life Corporation of 
India as permitted by Indian Law.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

	 Gains and losses through re-measurements of the 
net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in 
Other Comprehensive Income. The actual return of 
the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields 
computed by applying the discount rate used to 
measure the defined benefit obligations is recognized 
in Other Comprehensive Income. The effect of any 
plan amendments are recognized in net profits in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 The Company recognized the net obligation in the 
Balance Sheet as an asset or liability

 (B) 	 Short term and other long term employee benefits

	 A liability is recognized for the benefits accruing to 
employees in respect of wages and salaries, and annual 
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the 
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid 
in exchange for that service.

	 Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee 
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related 
service.

	 Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term 
employee benefits are measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made 
by the company in respect of services provided by the 
employees upto the reporting date.

(i)	 Compensated Absences

	 The expected cost of accumulating compensated 
absences is determined by actuarial valuation 
performed by an independent actuary at each balance 
sheet date using projected unit credit method on 
the additional amount expected to be paid/ availed 
as a result of the unused entitlement that has 
accumulated at the balance sheet date. 

	 Expense in respect of non accumulated absences is 
recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payable 
for the period during which services are rendered by 
the employee.

(ii)	 Other Short Term Benefits

	 Expense in respect of other short term benefits is 
recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payable 
for the period during which services are rendered by 
the employee.

2.12  Leases

	 Where the Company is a lessee

(i)	 Leases under which the Company assumes 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
are classified as finance leases. When acquired, such 
assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of 
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the 
lease, whichever is lower.

(ii)	 Leases in which a significant portion of risks and 
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the 
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases.

      	 Payments made under operating leases are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on 
straight line basis over the period of the lease unless 
the payments are structured solely to increase in line 
with expected general inflation to compensate for the 
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

	 Where the Company is a lessor

	 Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts 
are structured to increase in line with expected general 
inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost 
increases. The respective leased assets are included in the 
Balance Sheet based on their nature. 		

2.13 Segment Accounting and Reporting

	 The chief operational decision maker monitors the 
operating results of its business segments separately for 
the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation 
and performance assessment. Segment performance 
is evaluated based on profit and loss and is measured 
consistently with profit and loss in the financial statements.

	 The Operating Segments have been identified on the basis 
of the nature of products / services.

(1)	 Segment Revenue includes sales and other income 
directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment 
including inter- segment revenue.

(2)	 Expenses that are directly identifiable with/ allocable 
to the segments are considered for determining the 
segment result. Expenses not allocable to segments 
are included under unallocable expenditure.

(3)	 Income not allocable to the segments is included in 
unallocable income.

(4)	 Segment results includes margin on inter segment 
and sales which are reduced in arriving at the profit 
before tax of the Company.
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(5)	 Segment assets and Liabilities include those directly 
identifiable with the respective segments. Assets and 
liabilities not allocable to any segment are classified 
under unallocable category.

2.14 Income Tax

	 Income Tax expense comprises of current and deferred 
income tax.

	 Current Income Tax

	 Current income tax for current and prior periods is 
recognized at the amount expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities using tax rates and tax laws used to compute 
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. Income tax expense is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to 
the extent that it relates to the items recognized directly in 
equity and Other Comprehensive Income. 

	 Deferred Income Tax

	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized 
using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary 
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 
financial statements.

	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are 
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which 
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered 
or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income 
or expense in the period that includes the enactment or 
the substantive enactment date.

	 A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences and 
tax losses can be utilized. 

	 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
related tax benefits will be realized to allow all or part 
of the deferred tax assets to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting 
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become 
probable that future taxable profits will allow deferred tax 
assets to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been 
set off as it relates to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority.

	 MAT credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the 
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will 
pay normal income tax during the specified period.  In the 
year in which the Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit 
becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset. The said 
asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement grouped 
with deferred tax assets (net) in the financial statement.

2.15 Government Grants

	 The Government Grants are recognized only when there is 
reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them 
shall be complied with, and the grants will be received.

	 Government grants related to assets are treated as 
deferred income and are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the 
useful life of the asset. 

	 Government grants related to revenue are recognized on 
a systematic basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
over the periods necessary to match them with the related 
costs which they are intended to compensate.

2.16  Borrowing Cost

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of items of Property, Plant and Equipment 
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the 
cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which 
they are incurred.

2.17  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities

	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, for which it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.

	 As the timing of outflow of resources is uncertain, being 
dependent upon the outcome of the future proceedings, 
these provisions are not discounted to their present value. 

	 A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, 
but probably will not require an outflow of resources. 
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

	 Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial 
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statements since this may result in the recognition of 
income that may never be accrued/ realised.	           

2.18 Earnings Per Share

	 Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing 
the profit  for the period attributable to the equity holders 
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. 

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders is divided by the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding during the period after adjusting for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares if any.

2.19 Financial Instruments 

	 (i)	 Initial recognition

	 The Company recognizes financial assets and financial 
liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and 
liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition 
except for trade receivables which are initially measured 
at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets 
and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through 
profit or loss, are added to or deducted from the fair value 
of the financial assets or  financial liabilities on initial 
recognition. 

      	 Transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets and financial liabilities at value through 
Profit or Loss are recognised immediately in Profit or Loss

	  (ii) 	Subsequent measurement

	 For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial 
assets are classified in three broad categories:-

A. 	 Non-derivative financial instruments 

(a) 	 Financial assets carried at amortized cost

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at 
amortized cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of 
the financial instrument give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair 
value through Other Comprehensive Income if it 
is held within a business model whose objective is 

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

      The Company can make an irrevocable election for 
its investments which are classified as equity 
instruments to present the subsequent changes in 
fair value in Other Comprehensive Income based on 
its business model. These elected investments are 
initially measured at fair value plus transaction cost , 
subsequently in cases where the company has made 
an irrevocable election based on its business model, 
for its investments which are classified as equity 
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value 
are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

(c) 	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	 A financial asset which is not classified in any of the 
above categories is subsequently fair valued through 
Profit or Loss.

(d)   	Financial liabilities

	 Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
except for contingent consideration recognized 
in a business combination which is subsequently 
measured at fair value through Profit and Loss. For 
trade and other payables maturing within one year 
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount 
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of 
these instruments.

(e)  Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint 
Ventures

	 Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint 
Ventures is carried at cost in the separate financial 
statements.

B.   	 Derivative financial instruments

	 The Company holds derivative financial instruments 
such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to 
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign 
currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts 
is generally a bank.

(a) 	 Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value 
through profit or loss.

	 This category has derivative financial assets or 
liabilities which are not designated as hedges. 
Although the Company believes that these derivatives 
constitute hedges from an economic perspective, 
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they may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind 
AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is 
either not designated a hedge, or is so designated 
but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized 
as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value 
through Profit or Loss.

(b)	 Cash flow hedge

	 Company designates certain foreign exchange forward 
contracts and option contracts as cash flow hedges 
to mitigate the risk of foreign exchange exposure on 
highly probable forecast cash transactions. 

	 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow 
hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes 
in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in 
Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated 
in the cash flow hedging reserve. Any ineffective 
portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative 
is recognized immediately in the net profit in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging 
instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued 
prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or 
is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain 
or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash 
flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was 
effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until 
the forecasted transaction occurs. The cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow 
hedging reserve is transferred to the net profit in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of 
the related forecasted transaction. If the forecasted 
transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the 
amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve 
is reclassified to net profit in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

	 (iii)	 Impairment of Financial Assets

	 The company recognizes loss allowances using the 
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial 
assets which are not fair valued through Profit or Loss. 
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant 
financing component is measured at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit 
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month 
ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk from initial recognition in which case those 
are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected 
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the 
loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is 
required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment 
gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 (iv)  Derecognition

	 A financial asset (or a part of a financial asset) is primarily 
derecognized when:

(a)	 The contractual right to receive cash flows from the 
financial assets expire, or

(b)	 The Company transfers the financial assets or its 
right to receive cash flow from the financial assets 
and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party.

	 A financial liability (or a part of financial liability) is 
derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged or cancelled or expires.

	 (v)  	Reclassification of financial assets

	 The Company determines classification of financial assets 
and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, 
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are 
equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial 
assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is 
made only if there is a change in the business model for 
managing those assets. Changes to the business model 
are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior 
management determines change in the business model 
as a result of external or internal changes which are 
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes 
are evident to external parties. A change in the business 
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases 
to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 
If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification 
date which is the first day of the immediately next 
reporting period following the change in business model. 
The Company does not restate any previously recognised 
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or 
interest.

C. 	 Share capital

	 Ordinary shares

	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental 
costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary 
shares and buyback of equity shares and  share options 
are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax 
effects.

2.20  Fair Value Measurement

	 The Company measures financial instruments such as 
derivatives and certain investments, at the fair value at 
each Balance Sheet date.
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	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. 
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either: 

(i) 	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(ii) 	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the assets or liabilities.  

	 The principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Company.

	 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 
the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest.

	 A fair value measurement of the non-financial assets takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the assets in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use 
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as whole:

	 Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity 
can access at the measurement date

	 Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable

	 Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Balance 
Sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the 
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period.

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company 
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset 
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above.

2.21 Cash Flow Statement

	 The cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with 
the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) – 7 “Statement 
of Cash flows” using the indirect method for operating 
activities.

2.22  Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 The Cash and Cash Equivalent in the Balance Sheet 
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 
deposits with a maturity period of three months or 
less from the acquisition date, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.23	Significant accounting judgements, estimates and 
assumptions

	 In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, 
which are described as stated above, the directors of the 
Company are required to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

 	 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is 
revised if the revision affects only the period of the revision 
and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods.
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Following are the details of year wise minimum lease obligation under leasehold land		
	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended  31st March, 2019 Year Ended  31st March, 2018
Minimum 
payments

Present value of 
payments

Minimum 
payments

Present value of 
payments

Within one year  5.45  4.95  5.45  4.95 
After one year but not more than 5 years  21.79  15.69  21.79  15.69 
More than 5 years  103.11  21.87  108.56  22.95 
Total Minimum lease payments  130.35  42.51  135.79  43.59 

Less: Amount representing finance charges  87.84  92.20  -   

Present value of minimum lease payments  42.51  42.51  43.59  43.59 

c) Property , Plant & Equipment pledged as security	 			 

Refer to note no. 49 for information on Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security by the company.

Note: 5 Capital Work In Progress	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

 Plant and Equipment under erection/installation  1,857.51  161.45 
 Capital work in progress includes capital stores `17.69 Lakhs (Previous year `23.43 Lakhs).

For details on Capital Commitments refer Note - 38(2) 					   

Note: 6 Investment Property 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Building Property under 
construction Total

Gross Block
As at 1st April, 2017  391.59  46.09  437.68 
Additions  49.23  3.14  52.37 
Disposals  -    (49.23)  (49.23)
As at 31st March, 2018 (a)  440.83 -  440.83 
Additions  -    -   
Disposals/Capitalized  -    -   
As at 31st March, 2019 (b)  440.83  -  440.83 
Amortisation
At 1st April, 2017  52.17  -    52.17 
Charge for the year  16.86  16.86 
Disposals  -    -    -   
As at 31st March, 2018 (c) 69.03 - 69.03
Charge for the year  17.66  17.66 
Disposals  -    -    -   
As at 31st March, 2019 (d)  86.69  -    86.69 
Net Block
As at 31 March, 2018 (a-c)  371.80 - 371.80
As at 31st March, 2019 (b-d)  354.14  - 354.14

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Rental income  81.06  52.37 
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income  4.54  4.31 
Profit from Investment Properties before depreciation  76.52  48.06 
Depreciation  17.66  16.86 
Profit from Investment Properties  58.86  31.20 
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(ii) Fair value of Investment Property	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Fair value of Investment Property  5,344.03 2,294.12

The Company obtains independent valuation for its properties annually. The best evidence of fair value is current market prices in 
an active market for similar properties.							     

The fair values of investment properties have been determined by the independent chartered valuer. All fair value estimates for 
Investment properties are included in level 1.	

						    

Note:7 Intangible Assets (Computer Softwares)	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount

Gross Block
As at 1st April, 2017  451.68 
Additions  39.10 
Disposals  -   
As at 31st March, 2018 (a)  490.78 
Additions  8.50 
Disposals  -   
As at 31st March, 2019 (b)  499.28 
Amortisation
As at 1st April, 2017 449.87
Charge for the year 6.09
Disposals  -   
As at 31 March, 2018 (c ) 455.96
Charge for the year  8.10 
Disposals  -   
As at 31st March, 2019 (d)  464.06 
Net Block
As at 31 March, 2018 (a-c) 34.82
As at 31st March, 2019 (b-d)  35.22 

Note: 8 Investments 	 (` in Lakhs)

Non - current Current

No. of 
Units Particulars Face 

Value

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018
A. Investments carried at cost

Investments in Equity instruments
(a) EQUITY INSTRUMENTS OF SUBSIDIARY 

COMPANIES (Unquoted)
HEG Graphite Products and Services Ltd

NIL NIL Equity Shares of `10 each fully paid up 10 - 5.00

Less: Provision for impairment in value of 
investments (Refer Note 1)

 -    -    -    -   

Less: Written off during the year (Refer Note 1)  -    5.00 
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Non - current Current

No. of 
Units Particulars Face 

Value

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018

Carrying Value -  -   

(b) Equity Instruments in Associate Companies 
(Unquoted)

4,88,81,556 (Previous year 4,88,81,556) Equity Shares of `10/- 
each fully paid up of  Bhilwara Energy Ltd.

10 14506.88 14,506.88

12,62,048 (Previous year 12,62,048 ) Equity Shares of `10/- 
each  fully paid up of Bhilwara Infotechnology Ltd  
(erstwhile Bhilwara Infotech Ltd.)

10 419.00 419.00

B. Investments carried at Fair Value through profit 
or loss

(a) Equity Instruments in Other Companies (Quoted)
18 (Previous year 18) Equity Shares of ` 2/-each of 

Ballarpur Ind. Ltd. 
2 0.01 0.01

(b)  Investments in Fixed Maturity Plans Scheme 
(Quoted)

 -    -   

10,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Prudential FMP Series 
83 1406 Days Plan D- Direct Growth

10  10,944.90  -    -   

2,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Prudential -FMP -Sr 83 
- 1100 Days Plan

10  2,690.05  -    -   

2,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) SBI Debt Fund Series C-19 
(1100 days)

10  2,685.33  -    -   

75,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Axis Fixed Term Plan - Series 
95 (1185 days)

10  807.20  -    -   

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Kotak FMP Series 235 - 1140 10  1,610.15  -    -   
5,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-

XXXVIII-Series 6
10  5,328.90  -    -   

1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-
XXXIX-Series 6

10  1,072.39 - -

1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ABSL FTP Series QN 10  1,069.90  -    -   
1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) SDFS C20 - 1100 Days 10  1,603.65  -    -   
2,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) HDFC FMP 1105D August 

2018 (1)
10  2,659.23  -    -   

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) HDFC FMP 1105D August 
2018 (2)

10  1,595.54 - -

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Kotak FMP Series 240-1160 10  1,599.72  -    -   
1,70,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Aditya Birla Sunlife Fixed 

Term Plan Series QV (1100 days)
10  1,807.75  -    -   

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Aditya Birla Sunlife Fixed 
Term Plan Series QU (1100 days)

10  1,596.11  -    -   

3,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Aditya Birla Sunlife Fixed 
Term Plan Series RN (1240 days)

10  3,151.20 - -

2,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Pru Fixed Maturity 
Plan-Sr 84 - 1245 days Plan N

10  2,103.50 - -

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) RELIANCE FX HRZ FUND 
XXXIX S15

10  1,580.33 - -

1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Pru Fixed Maturity 
Plan-Sr 84 - 1288 days Plan O

10  1,048.90 - -

1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Kotak FMP Series 251-1265 
days

10  1,050.67 - -

(` in Lakhs)
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Non - current Current

No. of 
Units Particulars Face 

Value

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018
1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) HDFC FMT 1246D November, 

2018 (1) - Series 43
10  1,049.51 

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Kotak FMP Series 242-1152 10  1,596.99  -    -   -
1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Kotak FMP Series 243 - 1319 

days
10  1,608.50  -    -   

-

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) UTI Fixed Term Income Fund 
Series XXX - II (1107 days)

10  1,595.91  -    -   
-

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-
XXXIX Series 2

10  1,611.23  -    -   
-

1,20,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Prudential -FMP 
-Series 83 - 1101 Days Plan Z

10  1,276.33  -    -   
-

2,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Aditya Birala Sunlife Fixed 
Term Plan Series RC (1295 days)

10  2,129.74  -    -   
-

1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-
XXXIX Series 9

10  1,063.48  -    -   
-

(c)  Investments in Mutual Funds
 68,061.75 (Previous Year-NIL) HDFC Mutual Fund 1000 - -  2,503.51 -

 9,05,745.25 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Mutual Fund 100 - -  2,503.63 -
 38,912.92 (Previous Year-NIL) Invesco India Liquid Fund 1000 - -  1,001.01 -

(d)  Investments in Non Convertible 
Debentures(Quoted)

200 (Previous Year-NIL) KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME 
LIMITED - BR NCD 30JL19 FVRS10LAC

1000000 -  -    2,126.60  -   

250 (Previous Year-NIL) HDB FINANCIAL SERVICES 
LIMITED - SR-A/1/77 8.48 NCD 13MY19 
FVRS10LAC

1000000 - -  2,689.24 -

150 (Previous Year-NIL) HDB FINANCIAL SERVICES 
LIMITED - SR A/0(ML)/1 BR NCD 31JL20 
FVRS10LAC

1000000  1,516.05 - - -

150 (Previous Year-NIL) HDB FINANCIAL SERVICES 
LIMITED - SR 2019 A/0(ML)/2 BR NCD 04FB21 
FVRS10LAC

1000000  1,500.90 - - -

Total  75,879.91  14,925.88  10,823.99  -   

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  60,954.02  0.01  10,823.99  -   
Market value of quoted investments  60,954.02  **  10,823.99  -   
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  14,925.88  14,925.87 - -
Aggregate amount for impairment in value of 
investments

- -  -   -

(**)Amount is below the rounding off norm 
adopted by the Company

Note 1 :-	The Name of M/s HEG Graphite Product and Service Pvt. Ltd. has been struck off from the Registrar of Companies under 
the provision of sub section (5) of section 248 of the companies act, 2013. Therefore, the Company stand dissolved.	
In view thereof the investment made in the equity of M/s HEG Graphite Product and  Service Pvt. Ltd., a subsidiary of the company 
has been written off during the previous  year.					   

Note 2 :-	Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets

(` in Lakhs)
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Note: 9  Trade Receivables	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

a) Trade Receivable considered good-Secured  -    -   
b) Trade Receivable considered good-Unsecured  1,18,459.25  96,844.96 
c) Trade Receivable which have significant increase in Credit Risk; and  483.66  492.76 
d) Trade Receivable credit impaired  691.76  390.13 
 Less: Loss allowance for doubtful receivables (other than covered 
under ECGC cover)

 (945.73)  (458.94)

d) Debts due from the directors or other officers of the Company or any 
of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by 
firms or private company respectively in which any director is a partner 
or a director or a member.

 -    -   

Total  1,18,688.94  97,268.90 

Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets

Note: 10  Financial Assets-Loans	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Security deposits  1,092.32  721.72 - -
Loans to employees
a) Loans to employees considered good-Secured  -    -    -    -   
b) Loans to employees  considered good-
Unsecured

 26.24  21.42  62.01  64.55 

c) Loans to employees  which have significant 
increase in Credit Risk; and

 -    -    -    -   

d) Loans to employees  credit impaired  -    -    -    -   
Total  1,118.56  743.14  62.01  64.55 

Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets

Note: 11 Other Financial Assets		 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Interest accrued but Not due  -    -    465.79  85.04 
Derivative Financial Instruments - -  72.40  24.39 

Total  -    -    538.19  109.43 

Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets
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Note: 12  Other  Assets	 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Unsecured, considered good unless stated 
otherwise

- -  -    -   

Capital Advances  1,391.54  251.27  -    -   
Other Advances considered good - Unsecured  -  -  2,361.69  1,994.94 
Advances to related parties  -    -    3.28  3.28 
Prepaid expenses  12.04  13.08  988.06  864.44 
Balances with statutory authorities  -  -  8,291.26  2,092.67 
Excise Rebates / GST Refunds receivables  -  -  4,770.12  692.00 
Payments under protest (other than direct taxes)  323.46  303.81  -  - 
Export Benefits Receivable (including MEIS 
Licenses in hand)

 -  -  9,882.24  6,252.96 

Other Employee Advances - -  103.31  63.86 
Gratuity Fund receivable (also refer note 40)  -  -  157.48  151.64 
Others  309.49  9.11 
Total  1,727.04  568.15  26,866.93  12,124.91 

a) Detail of payments under protest (other than direct taxes) is as follows:	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Entry Tax  197.22  197.22 
Central Sales Tax  24.53  24.53 
Excise duty/Service Tax  79.57  59.92 
MPST/MPCT  3.29  3.29 
Tax deducted at source  18.85  18.85 
Total  323.46  303.81 

Based on legal advice, discussions with the solicitors, etc., the management believes that there are fair chances of decisions in the 
Company’s favor in respect of all the items listed above and no value adjustment is considered necessary.

Note: 13  Inventories (Valued at Lower of Cost or Net Realizable Value)	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Raw materials  [Includes material in transit `23,809.22 Lakhs; 
[previous year: `7,017 Lakhs]

 50,355.48  19,959.18 

Finished goods  37,749.92  10,166.41 
Work-in-progress  39,650.33  17,528.15 
Stores and spares  3,082.92  3,489.80 
[Includes stores in transit `304.65 Lakhs; Previous year: `183.97 
Lakhs]
Others (Refer Note (a))  0.03  0.03 
Total  1,30,838.68  51,143.57 

(a)  Others include Renewable Energy Credits in hand.				 

(b)  The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year in respect of continuing operations was `1,36,108.38 Lakhs  
(Previous year  ` 57,010.98 Lakhs)



AN
N

U
AL

 R
EP

O
R

T 
20

18
-1

9

140

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

Note: 14  Cash and Cash Equivalents	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

i. Balances with banks
    In Current accounts  2,505.50  161.01 
    In Cash Credit accounts  386.90  17.18 
ii. Cheques, drafts on hand  20.06  333.96 
iii.Cash on hand                                                                                              3.45  5.02 
iv. Deposits with banks/financial Institutions  -   
Total  2,915.91  517.18 

Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets

Note: 15  Other Bank Balances 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Earmarked deposits with banks
a) As security against Raw Material LC*  16,590.43 -
b) Escrow Account for buyback of shares  900.02 -
c) Against Bank Gurantee*  254.10 -
d) Unpaid Dividend  431.95  245.28 
Deposits with banks/financial Institutions  34,640.00  -   
Total  52,816.50  245.28 

* (a) & (c ) includes Interest Accrued.
Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets

Note: 16  Equity Share Capital 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Authorised
5,50,00,000  Equity Shares of `10/- each  5,500.00  5,500.00 

 5,500.00  5,500.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up
3,85,95,506  Equity Shares of `10/- each  3,859.55  3,995.91 
          1,150  Forfeited Equity Shares  0.04  0.04 
Total  3,859.59  3,995.95 

(a) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period	

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

No. of Shares (` in Lakhs) No. of Shares (` in Lakhs)

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year  3,99,59,142  3,995.91  3,99,59,142  3,995.91 
Change during the year - Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 (13,63,636)  (136.36)  -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the year  3,85,95,506  3,859.55  3,99,59,142  3,995.91 
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(b) 	Terms/Rights attached to equity shares			   		
	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of  `10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 

vote per share. The dividend(if any) proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders. 					   

	 During the year ended on 31st March, 2019, the Company has paid an amount of `50 per Equity Share (500%) as Final Dividend 
for the financial year 2017-18 to the equity shareholders of the Company and also `30 per share (300%) as Interim Dividend for 
the Financial Year 2018-19.	

(c) Detail of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder  As at  31st March, 2019  As at  31st March, 2018 

No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding 

Equity Shares
Norbury Investments Limited  53,62,991  13.90  53,62,991  13.42 
Microlight Investments Limited  46,65,579  12.09  46,65,579  11.68 
Life Insurance Corporation of India  32,32,046  8.37  33,33,963  8.34 
Bharat Investments Growth Limited  24,64,913  6.39  26,09,598  6.53 

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders 
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(d) Aggregate number of equity shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back for the period of five 
years immediately preceding the reporting date.

Particulars  Aggregate No. of Shares 

 2018-19  2017-18  2016-17  2015-16  2014-15 

Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) 
without payment being received in cash 

 -    -    -    -    -   

FCCB's Conversion  -    -    -    -    -   
Shares bought back  13,63,636  -    -    -    -   

(e)	 Buyback of shares: During the year under review, the Company after obtaining shareholders’ approval, had bought back  
13,63,636 (Thirteen lakhs sixty three thousand six hundred and thirty six) fully paid-up equity shares of face value of ̀ 10/- (rupees 
ten only) each, representing approximately 3.41% of the total number of equity shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as at 30 September 2018, from the shareholders/beneficial owners of equity shares of the Company as on the record 
date i.e. February 9, 2019 on a proportionate basis, through the “tender offer” under stock exchange mechanism route at a 
price of `5,500/- (rupees five thousand five hundred only) per equity share for an amount of `7,49,99,98,000/- (Rupees seven 
hundred forty nine crore ninety nine lakhs ninety eight thousand only) excluding expenses incurred in this connection thereto. 
The break up of shares bought back and extinguished are as under:

	 a) Equity shares in Demat:  	 13,63,019
	 b) Physical shares:                  	 617
	 Total:        	 13,63,636

	 The Company concluded the Buyback proceedings on 29th March 2019 and equity shares were extinguished. The Company has 
utilized its Security Premium, General Reserves & Retained Earnings for Buyback of its equity shares and post completion of 
same, the paid up capital is reduced from `39,95,91,420/- (3,99,59,142 Equity Shares) to `38,59,55,060/- (3,85,95,506 Equity 
Shares).		
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Note: 17  Other Equity	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

A.   Capital Reserves
Balance as per the last financial statements  3,138.24  3,138.24 
Add: Additions during the year  -    -   
Closing balance  3,138.24  3,138.24 

B.   Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements  1,893.57  1,893.57 
Add: Amount transferred from Retained Earnings upon Buyback 
(Refer Note 16(e))

 136.36  -   

Closing balance  2,029.93  1,893.57 
C.   Securities Premium

Balance as per the last financial statements  1,269.61  1,269.61 
Add/Less : Received/Utilized during the year (Refer Note 16(e))  (1,269.61)  -   
Closing balance  -    1,269.61 

D.   Retained Earnings
General Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements  39,823.38  39,823.38 
Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  -   
Less: Amount utilized in Buyback of Shares(Refer Note 16(e))  39,823.38 
Closing balance  -    39,823.38 
Surplus/(Deficit) balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per the last financial statements  1,30,667.99  36,962.22 
Add: Amount transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss  3,05,043.06  1,08,133.93 
Less: Dividend paid  31,967.31  11,987.74 
Less: Dividend distribution tax paid on dividend  6,570.92  2,440.42 
Less: Amount utilized in Buyback of Shares (Refer Note 16(e))  33,770.63 
Less: Buyback Exp (net of Income Tax Benefit)  402.75 
Less: Amount Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve upon Buyback  136.36 
Closing balance  3,62,863.08  1,30,667.99 

E.  Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as per the last financial statements  72.93  96.47 
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans  (63.92)  (23.54)
Closing balance  9.01  72.93 

Total  3,68,040.26  1,76,865.78 
F.   Preference Share Capital

Authorised Preference Share Capital
15,00,000 (Previous year 15,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  1,500.00  1,500.00 
Total  1,500.00  1,500.00 

The Company has not issued any Preference Shares till 31st March 2019. 

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES			 

1)  	Capital Reserve:			 
	 The Company created part of Capital Reserve on account of warrant money forfeited and part on profit made on hive off of Steel 

business .

2)  	Securities Premium:			 
	 Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with 

the Provisions of the Companies Act 2013.	

3)  	Capital Redemption Reserve:			 
	 The Company created Capital Redemption Reserve at the time of redemption of Preference Shares and buyback of its own 

shares. The reserve can be utilised for issuing bonus shares.
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Note: 18 Borrowings	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Loans repayable on demand from banks 
Working Capital loans from banks  -    -    66,636.47  29,745.49 

Total  -    -    66,636.47  29,745.49 

Current Borrowings

Particulars Maturity date Terms of 
Repayment  Interest Rate As at 31st 

March, 2019
As at 31st 

March, 2018
Loans Repayable on Demand Payable on 

Demand
Payable on 
Demand

At negotiated 
rates

Secured  54,336.47  29,745.49 
Working Capital from banks
Unsecured
Working Capital from banks  12,300.00  -   

Total  66,636.47  29,745.49 

a) 	 Working Capital Borrowings from banks are secured by hypothecation of  all stocks present and future, stores, spare parts, 
packing materials, raw  materials, finished goods, goods in transit / process,  book debts, outstanding monies receivable, 
claims, bills etc.					   

b) 	 Second charge by way of joint equitable mortgage of immovable properties of the Company in respect of Graphite & Thermal 
Power units at Mandideep and Hydel unit at Tawanagar. The said charge in favor of bank shall rank sub-ordinate and subservient 
to the existing charges created by the Company in favour of financial institutions and banks for their term loans.

Refer Note No. 49 for carrying amount of assets pledged as security for borrowings.

Note:19 Trade Payables 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  398.82  245.97 
(B) Total outstanding dues of other creditors  37,608.08  24,398.46 
(C ) Total outstanding dues of other creditors-related parties  -    -   
Total  38,006.90  24,644.43 

The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“the Act”) has 
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified by the Company, on the basis of information and records available 
with them. This information has been relied upon by the auditors. The detail information relating to Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises is as under :-					   
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

(1) Principal amount remaining unpaid as at end of the year  398.82  245.97 
(2) Interest due on above  -    -   
a)   The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 

unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year(1+2)  398.82  245.97 
b)   The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 

the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond 
the appointed day during each accounting year

 -  - 

c)   The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006;

 -  - 

d)   The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each accounting year

 -  - 

e)   The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 -  - 

Note: 20 Other Financial Liabilities	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Security Deposits - From outsiders  -    -    155.71  134.02 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  -    -    -    -   
Unpaid dividends-Unclaimed#  -    -    431.95  245.28 
Derivative Financial Instruments  -    -    -   
Creditors for capital goods  -    -    467.87  98.28 
Other payables  -    -   
      Employees related  -    -    9,555.99  4,057.53 
      Others  41.31 42.50  2,405.97  2,716.79 
Total  41.31  42.50  13,017.49  7,251.90 

# Unpaid dividend does not include any amount due and outstanding  required to be credited to the Investor’s Education and 
Protection Fund.					   

Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Liabilities
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Note: 21 Provisions	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences  387.08  340.90  67.08  68.75 

Provision for duties & taxes - -  1,910.83  548.13 
Total  387.08  340.90  1,977.91  616.88 

Note:22 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Deferred tax liabilities (A)
Property, plant and equipment  12,333.88  12,221.24 
Fair valuation of Investments  940.12  -   

Deferred tax assets (B)
Items deductable on payment basis  330.87  145.61 
Provision for doubtful debts and others  330.48  158.83 

Net Deferred tax Liability (A)-(B)  12,612.65  11,916.80 

Note: 23 Other Liabilities	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Deposits from employees against various 
schemes

 239.59  208.08  67.31  79.03 

Advance from Customers  -    -    98.80  1,485.65 
Statutory dues payable  -    -    1,205.03  3,128.54 
Others payables  -    -    233.89  155.00 
Total  239.59  208.08  1,605.03  4,848.22 

Note: 24 Current Tax Asset & Liabilities (Net)	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Income tax assets (net)  3,995.09  2,810.79 
Income tax liabilities (net)  (542.77)  (3,543.02)
 Total  3,452.32  (732.22)
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Note: 25  Revenue From Operations	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  31st March, 2019  Year Ended 31st March, 2018 

Sale of Products
Manufactured goods

Graphite Electrodes (Refer note 50 & 51)  6,42,911.38  2,66,542.40 
Power (Net of inter-divisional sales of `11,091.65 
Lakhs, Previous year `19,422.65 Lakhs ) 

 720.22  6,43,631.60  664.32  2,67,206.73 

Other Operating Income
REC sales  163.53  1,080.82 
Fly Ash Income  171.30  225.28 
Export Incentives  15,316.09 15,650.92  7,327.61  8,633.71

  
Total  6,59,282.52  2,75,840.43 

Note: 26 Other Income	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Interest Income from financial assets measured at amortized cost  4,974.75  42.07 
rent received  88.68  59.75 
Net Gain on sale of current investment measured at Fair Value Through 
P&L

 1,151.21  5.21 

Net Gain on Fair Valuation of investments measured at Fair Value 
Through P&L

 3,997.63  -   

Liabilities / provisions , written back  255.71  428.54 
Net Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  -    321.47 
Miscellaneous receipts  451.20  379.78 
Total  10,919.18  1,236.82 

 Note: 27  Cost of  Material Consumed	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  31st March, 2019  Year Ended 31st March, 2018 

Raw material consumed
Opening stock  12,942.18  1,770.38 
Add  :   Purchases                    1,74,788.06  68,752.58 

 1,87,730.24  70,522.96 
Less: Closing stock  26,546.27  12,942.18 
Cost of material consumed  1,61,183.97  57,580.79 
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Note: 28  Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-In-Progress and Stock-In-Trade	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Inventories at the end of the period
Finished goods  37,749.92  10,166.41 
Work-in-progress  39,650.33  17,528.15 
Total (A)  77,400.25  27,694.56 

Inventories at the beginning of the period
Finished goods  10,166.41  6,501.88 
Work-in-progress  17,528.15  11,845.08 
Total (B)  27,694.56  18,346.96 

Net Movement in Excise Duty on finished goods (C )  -    (434.84)

Total [(B)-(A)+(C )]  (49,705.69)  (9,782.44)

Note:29 Employee  Benefit Expense	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
 Salaries and wages  18,894.86  10,391.27 
 Contribution to provident and other funds  507.62  461.21 
 Staff welfare expenses  354.14  391.37 
Total  19,756.62  11,243.85 

Note:30 Finance Cost	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Interest Expense

Term loans  -    2,417.28 
Working capital borrowings   1,788.46  2,078.66 
Exchange difference regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost  -    (3.79)
Interest cost on income tax  -    1,084.06 
Others  8.44  65.67 

Total  1,796.90  5,641.88 

Note:31 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Depreciation of tangible assets*  7,231.10  7,249.67 
Amortisation of intangible assets**  8.10  6.09 
Total  7,239.20  7,255.76 

* Refer note 4
** Refer note 7

Note:32 Excise Duty	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Excise duty (Refer note 51)  -    833.82 
Total  -    833.82 
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Note: 33 Other Expenses 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Consumption of stores and spare parts (including Refractory Blocks)  11,644.50  7,603.22 
Job/Process charges  490.33  314.12 
Power and fuel  29,412.84  35,858.39 
Less: Interdivisional purchases  (11,091.65)  (19,422.65)
Repairs and maintenance 
       Plant and Machinery  4,897.33  4,406.94 
       Building  359.61  343.31 
       Others  801.81  603.09 
Insurance  892.16  363.89 
Rent (Refer Note 41)  89.13  85.97 
Rates and taxes  106.50  88.79 
Directors' sitting fees and incidental expenses  90.58  57.13 
Commission paid to Directors  200.00  -   
Freight & forwarding  12,656.73  8,659.67 
Packing expenses (including packing material consumption)  1,819.61  1,608.51 
Commission  2,862.14  3,174.54 
Claims and rebates  166.35  223.37 
Donations  10.34  2.25 
Contribution made to political parties  800.00  -   
Power generation charges  78.55  67.70 
Travelling expenses  408.65  232.45 
Postage and communication  86.31  68.47 
Payment to auditors (Refer details below*)  29.50  19.18 
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responcibility(Refer Note 43)  827.92  92.10 
Legal and Professional expenses  1,257.68  416.50 
Vehicle running & maintenance  65.86  90.04 
Allowances for Expected Credit Losses  534.52  (782.98)
Bad debts  22.30  205.02 
Duties and taxes  134.32  31.42 
Net Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment  335.49  -   
Foreign currency fluctuation  1,044.05  (1,473.35)
Miscellaneous expenses  1,189.36  895.54 
Total  62,222.82  43,832.62 

*Payments to the statutory auditors (excluding GST/Service Tax)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
As auditor

Statutory audit  12.50  12.50 
Other services

Tax Audit  2.00  2.00 
Management Services
Certification Fees  8.78  0.17 

Reimbursement of expenses  6.22  4.51 
Total  29.50  19.18 
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Note: 34 Tax Expense	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
A) Tax Expense Recognised in Profit and Loss
1) Current Tax  -   

Income tax  1,62,032.53  51,355.30 
Income tax - Previous Year  (97.89)  0.60 

2) Deferred tax  730.18  981.14 
 1,62,664.82  52,337.04 

B) Tax Expense on Other Comprehensive Income
1) Current tax  -    -   
2) Deferred tax  (34.33)  (12.46)

 (34.33)  (12.46)

C) Tax expense/(Income) relating to items that are charged or 
credited directly to equity 
1) Current tax  (216.33)  -   
2) Deferred tax  -    -   

 (216.33)  -   

Total  1,62,414.15  52,324.58 

(a) Effective Tax Reconciliation 		

Numerical reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the latest statutory enacted tax rate in India to income tax 
expense reported is as follows:		
	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations  4,67,707.88  1,60,470.97 
Profit/Loss before tax from a discontinued operation - -
Accounting profit before income tax  4,67,707.88  1,60,470.97 
At India's statutory income tax rate of 34.944%  0.35  0.35 
Tax as per accounting profit (A)  1,63,435.84  55,535.79 

Tax impact of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable 
income: 
Difference on account of depreciation  (327.82)  (122.42)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable 
profits

 111.49  (206.75)

Benefit arising from previous tax losses  -    (2,870.19)
Differential tax rate on capital gain on sale of Investments/Fair Valua-
tion on Investments

 (456.81)  -   

Income tax expense/(income) related to prior periods  (97.89)  0.60 
Tax impact of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable 
income (B): 

 (771.02)  (3,198.76)

Income Tax Expense reported in the statement of Profit and Loss (A+B)  1,62,664.82  52,337.04 

The applicable Indian corporate statutory tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is 34.944% and 
34.608%, respectively. The increase in the corporate statutory tax rate to 34.944% is consequent to changes made in the 
Finance Act, 2018.		
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(b) Reconciliation of Deferred tax asset/(liability)

(i) Movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2019 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 1st April, 
2018

Changes through 
profit and loss

Changes through 
OCI 

As at 
31st March, 2019

Deferred tax liabilities (A)
Property, Plant and Equipment  12,221.24  112.64  -    12,333.88 
Fair valuation of Investments  -    940.12  -    940.12 

Deferred tax assets (B)
Items deductible on payment basis  145.61  150.93  34.33  330.87 
Provision for doubtful debts and others  158.83  171.65  -    330.48 

(ii) Movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2018  	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 1st April, 
2018

Changes through 
profit and loss

Changes through 
OCI 

As at 
31st March, 2019

Deferred tax liabilities (A)
Property, Plant and Equipments  11,780.93  440.31  -   12,221.24
Fair valuation of Investments  -    -    -    -   

Deferred tax assets (B)
Items deductible on payment basis  360.19  (227.03)  12.46 145.61
Provision for doubtful debts and others  472.63  (313.81)  -   158.83

Note: 35 Other Comprehensive Income	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-Remeasurement of defined benefit plans  (98.25)  (35.99)

Total  (98.25)  (35.99)

Note: 36 Earnings per share
The calculation of Earnings Per Share (EPS) as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss has been made 
 in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33 on “Earnings Per Share”		
	

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (in Lakhs)  3,05,043.06  1,08,133.93 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
Financial Year after adjustment for Buyback of Equity Shares

 3,99,47,934  3,99,59,142 

Basic earnings per share(`)  763.60  270.61 
Diluted earnings per share*(`)  763.60  270.61 

* There are no potential equity shares
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Note: 37 SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company’s Chief Operational Decision Makers consisting of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer examines the 
Company’s performance both from product and geographic perspective and has identified two segments, i.e., Graphite Electrodes 
(including other carbon products) and power. The business segments are monitored separately for the purpose of making decisions 
about resource allocation and performance assessment.

The reportable segments are:

• Graphite Electrodes (including other carbon products)- The segment comprises of manufacturing of graphite electrodes  
• Power Generation - The segment comprises of generation of power for captive consumption and sale.

Segment measurement

The measurement principles for segment reporting are based on Ind AS 108. Segment’s performance is evaluated based on 
segment revenue and profit and loss from operating activities. Operating revenues and expenses related to both third party and 
inter-segment transactions are included in determining the segment results of each respective segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s length price and are eliminated on consolidation.	
(` in Lakhs)

Graphite( including 
other carbon 

products)
Power Unallocable items/ 

Others Company Total

Particulars

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2019

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2018

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2019

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2018

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2019

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2018

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2019

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2018
a) Segment Revenue
Turnover  6,58,226.74 2,73,882.80  12,146.70 21,379.58  0.73 0.70  6,70,374.17  2,95,263.08 
Less: Inter Segment 
turnover

 -    -    11,091.65 19,422.65  -    -    11,091.65  19,422.65 

External Turnover  6,58,226.74  2,73,882.80  1,055.05  1,956.93  0.73  0.70  6,59,282.52  2,75,840.43 

b) Segment Result 
before Interest & 
taxes

 4,60,534.39  1,61,237.04  (1,762.27) 4,858.12  609.07  (29.60)  4,59,381.19  1,66,065.57 

Add:Interest income  4,974.75  42.07 
Add: Gain on sale 
of Investments    
(Including gain/(loss) 
on Fair Valuation)

 5,148.84  5.21 

Less: Financial 
expenses

 1,796.90  5,641.88 

Profit before tax  4,67,707.88  1,60,470.97 
Less: Income tax 
(including deferred 
tax)

 1,62,664.83  52,337.04 

Net Profit for the 
period

 3,05,043.06  1,08,133.93 

Depreciation  5,988.06  5,988.21  1,192.49  1,225.11  58.65  42.44  7,239.20  7,255.76 



AN
N

U
AL

 R
EP

O
R

T 
20

18
-1

9

152

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

2) Secondary Revenue (By Geographical Location) :	 (` in Lakhs)

Within India Outside India Total

Particulars
Year Ended 
31st March, 

2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 

2018

Year Ended 
31st March, 

2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 

2018

Year Ended 
31st March, 

2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 

2018
 a) Segment Revenue  1,67,929.22  81,146.08  4,91,353.30  1,94,694.35  6,59,282.52  2,75,840.43 

3) Other Details	 (` in Lakhs)

Graphite( including 
other carbon products) Power Unallocable items/ 

Others Company Total

Particulars

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018

Segment Assets 3,51,906.06 2,31,592.34  14,313.05  16,607.03 1,40,747.95  15,820.58 5,06,967.06 2,64,019.95 
Segment Liabilities 1,12,604.73  74,220.61  961.73  3,370.55  21,500.76  5,567.06 1,35,067.22  83,158.22 
Capital exp. incurred 
during the year

 4,778.17  1,925.33  31.38  5.19  69.27  72.91  4,878.82  2,003.44 

4) Details of Unallocated Items	 (` in Lakhs)

Segment Assets
As at  

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Property, Plant & Equipment  194.49  196.46 
Investment Property  354.13  357.95 
Investments  86,703.88  14,925.88 
Inventories  14.68  12.03 
Trade Receivables  0.32  0.12 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  62.42  16.91 
Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash equivalents  52,836.57  245.28 
Financial Assets-Loans  26.54  35.47 
Other Assets 554.92  30.48 
Total 1,40,747.95  15,820.58 

	 (` in Lakhs)

Segment Liabilities
As at  

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Deferred Tax Liability  12,641.15  7.36 
Other Financial Liability  8,209.65  2,944.93 
Other Liabilities  489.06  2,487.68 
Provisions  160.91  127.09 
Total 21,500.76  5,567.06 
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5) The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the 
customers is as follows:		

(` in Lakhs)

Revenue from External Customers Year Ended  
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

India                                                                                               1,67,929.22 81,146.08
Saudi Arabia                                                                                        38,595.51 1,804.32
USA 62,481.59 21,067.45
Iran 15,849.88  18,243.32 
Korea (South)                                                                                       43,278.73  5,855.12 
Turkey                                                                                              57,641.07  40,106.15 
Spain 48,762.75  18,753.03 
Others* 2,24,743.78 88,864.96
Total 6,59,282.52 2,75,840.43

*Others includes revenue from countries having less than 10% of total revenue from outside India	

6)   The Company’s major sales are export based which is diversified in different countries and none of the customer contributes 
10% or more of the total Company’s revenue for the financial year ended March’19 and  March ‘18.	

7)   The Company has business operations only in India and does not hold any non-current asset outside India.			 
	

Note: 38 Commitment & Contingencies

1) Contingent Liabilities	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

For Taxation matters
a)  Excise duty under appeal  230.80  232.95 
b)  Service tax  1,879.70  1,166.58 
c)  Income tax  7,651.21  7,691.21 
d)  Sales tax  477.40  481.56 

Other than Taxation matters
a)  Power related  3,123.37  2,541.20 
b) Labour related matters  59.98  42.60 
c) Others  117.41  116.00 

Based on legal advice, discussions with the solicitors, etc., the management believes that there is fair chance of decisions in the 
Company’s favor in respect of all the items listed above and hence no provision is considered necessary against the same. The 
management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s 
financial position and results of operations.			 

Further the Company has deposited amount to the tax authorities against the cases, which is shown as payment under protest in 
note 12 of Other Assets.   			 

2) Commitment Outstanding	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

a) Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account and not provided for [(net of advances of `1,391.54 Lakhs, 
(previous year `251.27 Lakhs.)]

 28,686.17  481.82 
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3) Financial Guarantee	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
The Company has with RSWM Ltd. on joint and several basis provided 
Guarantee in favor of International Finance Corporation (IFC) on behalf 
of M/s AD Hydro Power Ltd.*  600.00  600.00 

*Note- Since the loss allowance was estimated to be nil, the guarantee is not recognised in the books of account.		
	

Note: 39 Related Party Disclosure

(a) Names of related parties where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Related Parties

Relationship
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
A) Subsidiary - (i)  HEG Graphite Products & 

Services Ltd.*
(up to 20th December 2017)

B) Associates (i)  Bhilwara Energy Ltd. (i)  Bhilwara Energy Ltd.
(ii) Bhilwara Infotechnology Ltd. (ii) Bhilwara Infotechnology Ltd.

C) Individuals owning directly or 
indirectly, an interest in the voting 
power of the reporting enterprise 
that  gives them control or significant 
influence over the enterprise, and 
relatives of  any such individual.

Sh. L.N. Jhunjhunwala Sh. L.N. Jhunjhunwala
Smt. Mani Devi Jhunjhunwala Smt Mani Devi Jhunjhunwala
Sh. Ravi Jhunjhunwala Sh. Ravi Jhunjhunwala
Sh. Riju Jhunjhunwala Sh. Riju Jhunjhunwala
Sh. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala Sh. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala
Smt. Rita Jhunjhunwala Smt Rita Jhunjhunwala
Nivedan Churiwal Nivedan Churiwal
Shubha Churiwal Shubha Churiwal
Sudha Churiwal Sudha Churiwal

D) Key Management Personnel Sh. Ravi Jhunjhunwala-CMD & CEO Sh. Ravi Jhunjhunwala-CMD
Sh. Riju Jhunjhunwala-Non-
Executive Director

Sh. Riju Jhunjhunwala-Non-
Executive Director

Sh. Shekhar Agarwal Sh. Shekhar Agarwal
Sh. Dharmendar Nath Davar Sh. Dharmendar Nath Davar
Sh. Satyendra Nath Bhattacharya Sh. Satyendra Nath Bhattacharya
Sh. Satish Chand Mehta Sh. Satish Chand Mehta
Dr. Kamal Gupta Dr. Kamal Gupta
Dr. Om Parkash Bahl Dr. Om Parkash Bahl
Smt. Vinita Singhania Smt. Vinita Singhania
Smt. Ramni Nirula -

Late Sh. Raju Rustogi- Chief 
Operating Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer***

Sh. Raju Rustogi-Chief Operating 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Sh. Vivek Chaudhary-Company 
Secretary

Sh. Vivek Chaudhary-Company 
Secretary
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Related Parties

Relationship
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Sh. Manish Gulati - Chief Operating 
Officer & Chief Marketing Officer 
(w.e.f. 31st October 2018)
Sh. Gulshan Kumar Sakhuja - Chief 
Financial Officer (w.e.f.12 February 
2019)

E) Relatives of Key Management 
Personnel 

Sh. L.N. Jhunjhunwala Sh. L.N. Jhunjhunwala
Smt. Mani Devi Jhunjhunwala Smt. Mani Devi Jhunjhunwala
Sh. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala Sh. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala
Smt. Rita Jhunjhunwala Smt. Rita Jhunjhunwala

F) Trust Under Common Control (a)  Hindustan Electro Graphites 
Staff Gratuity Fund Trust

(a) Hindustan Electro Graphites Staff 
Gratuity Fund Trust

(b)  Hindustan Electro Graphites 
Officers Contributory P.F. Trust**

(b) Hindustan Electro Graphites 
Officers Contributory P.F. Trust

(c)  Hindustan Electro Graphites Ltd. 
Senior Executive Superannuation 
Fund Trust

(c) Hindustan Electro Graphites Ltd. 
Senior Executive Superannuation 
Fund Trust

G) Enterprises over which any person 
described in (c)  or (d) is able to 
exercise significant influence.

RSWM Ltd. RSWM Ltd.
Malana Power Company Ltd. Malana Power Company Ltd.
Giltedged Industrial Securities Ltd. Giltedged Industrial Securities Ltd.
Purvi Vanijya Niyojan Ltd. Purvi Vanijya Niyojan Ltd.
Shashi Commercial Co. Ltd. Shashi Commercial Co Ltd.
BSL Ltd. BSL Ltd.
AD Hydro Power Ltd. AD Hydro Power Ltd.
Maral Overseas Ltd. Maral Overseas Ltd.
BMD Pvt. Ltd. BMD Pvt. Ltd.
Bharat Investments Growth Ltd. Bharat Investments Growth Ltd.
Deepak Pens & Plastics Pvt. Ltd. Deepak Pens & Plastics Pvt, Ltd.
India Texfab Marketing Ltd. India Texfab Marketing Ltd.
Investors India Ltd. Investors India Ltd.
LNJ Financial Services Ltd. LNJ Financial Services Ltd.
Nivedan Vanijya Niyojan Ltd. Nivedan Vanijya Niyojan Ltd.
M.L. Finlease Pvt. Ltd. M.L. Finlease Pvt. Ltd.
Sandhu Auto Deposits Ltd. Sandhu Auto Deposits Ltd.
Raghav Commercial Ltd. Raghav Commercial Ltd.
Norbury Investments Ltd. Norbury Investments Ltd.
Mekima Corporation Mekima Corporation
Microlight Investments Ltd. Microlight Investments Ltd.

Note:  *HEG Graphite Products and Services Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary (“WOS”) of the Company, the name of which has 
been struck-off  under Section 248 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, upon the application made by WOS under Section 248(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, from the Register of Companies and WOS stands dissolved w.e.f. 21st December, 2017.			

** The company had discontinued the Hindustan Electro Graphites Officers Contributory P.F. Trust with effect from 1st April 
2018.					   

***The services of Sh. Raju Rustogi- Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer had been discontinued w.e.f 26th January 
2019 due to sudden demise.					   
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(b) Transactions during the year with related parties	 (` in Lakhs)

Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

1) Associates M/s Bhilwara Energy 
Ltd.

Reimbursement 
received

 2.41  -   

Reimbursement made  12.78  6.88 
2) Individuals owning 

directly or indirectly, 
an interest in the 
voting power of the 
reporting enterprise 
that  gives them control 
or significant influence 
over the enterprise, and 
relatives of  any such 
individual.

Sh. L.N. 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  143.79  53.92 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 548.08  -   

Smt. Mani Devi 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  82.68  31.01 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 315.10  -   

Sh. Ravi 
Jhunjhunwala

Salary and 
Allowances (Including 
perquisites and 
Contribution 
in PF and 
Superannuation)#

 246.48  237.03 

Commission  11,881.00  4,095.94 
Dividend paid  280.62  105.23 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 1,069.59  -   

Sale of Furniture  8.39  -   
Sh. Riju 
Jhunjhunwala

Director sitting fee  6.65  4.75 

Commission  25.00  -   
Dividend paid  186.63  69.99 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 711.37  -   

Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.42  0.30 

Sh. Rishabh 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  148.90  55.84 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 567.55  -   

Smt. Rita 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  179.45  67.29 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 683.98  -   

Sh. Nivedan Churiwal Dividend paid  9.00  3.38 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 34.27  -   

Smt. Shubha Churiwal Dividend paid  6.28  2.36 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 23.87  -   

Smt. Sudha Churiwal Dividend paid  2.00  0.75 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 7.59  -   
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Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

3) Key Management 
Personnel

Sh. Ravi 
Jhunjhunwala-CMD 
& CEO

Salary and 
Allowances (Including 
perquisites and 
Contribution 
in PF and 
Superannuation)#

 246.48  237.03 

Commission  11,881.00  4,095.94 
Dividend paid  280.62  105.23 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 1,069.59  -   

Sale of Furniture  8.39  -   
Sh. Riju Jhunjhunwala Director sitting fee  6.65  4.75 

Commission  25.00  -   
Dividend paid  186.63  69.99 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 711.37  -   

Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.42  0.30 

Sh. L.N.Jhunjhunwala Dividend paid  143.79  53.92 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 548.08  -   

Smt. Mani Devi 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  82.68  31.01 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 315.10  -   

Sh. Rishabh 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  148.90  55.84 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 567.55  -   

Smt. Rita 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  179.45  67.29 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 683.98  -   

Sh. Shekhar Agarwal Director sitting fee  9.00  4.70 
Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.36  0.21 

Sh. Dharmendar Nath 
Davar

Director sitting fee  18.40  11.80 

Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 1.23  0.84 

Dividend paid  1.20  0.45 
Sh. Satyendra Nath 
Bhattacharya

Director sitting fee  3.00  3.00 

Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.12  0.12 
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Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Sh. Satish Chand 
Mehta

Director sitting fee  7.50  4.50 

Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.30  0.18 

Dr. Kamal Gupta Director sitting fee  19.40  12.80 
Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 1.26  0.90 

Dividend paid  0.16  0.06 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 0.61  - 

Dr. Om Parkash Bahl Director sitting fee  15.20  9.40 
Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.63  0.42 

Smt. Vinita Singhania Director sitting fee  3.75  3.00 
Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.24  0.21 

Smt. Ramni Nirula Director sitting fee  3.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.12  -   

Late Sh. Raju 
Rustogi- Chief 
Operating Officer 
and Chief Financial 
Officer

Salary and 
Allowances(Including 
perquisites and 
Contribution 
in PF and 
Superannuation)#

 161.14  114.90 

Sh. Vivek Chaudhary-
Company Secretary

Salary and 
Allowances (Including 
perquisites and 
Contribution 
in PF and 
Superannuation)#

 30.76  21.59 

Sh. Manish Gulati 
- Chief Operating 
Officer  (w.e.f. 31st 
October 2018)#

Salary and 
Allowances (Including 
perquisites and 
Contribution 
in PF and 
Superannuation)#

 119.72  -   

Sh. Gulshan Kumar 
Sakhuja - Chief 
Financial Officer  
(w.e.f.12 February 
2019)#

Salary and 
Allowances (Including 
perquisites and 
Contribution 
in PF and 
Superannuation)#

 44.90  -   
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Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

4) Trust Under Common 
Control

(a) Hindustan Electro 
Graphites Staff 
Gratuity Fund Trust

Contribution in 
Employee Benefit 
Scheme

 -    -   

Payment received 
on retirement and 
termination

 -    -   

(b) Hindustan Electro 
Graphites Officers 
Contributory P.F. 
Trust (Refer Note )

Contribution in 
Employee Benefit 
Scheme

 -    65.33 

Payment received 
on retirement and 
termination

 -    -   

(c) Hindustan Electro 
Graphites Ltd. 
Senior Executive 
Superannuation Fund 
Trust

Contribution in 
Employee Benefit 
Scheme

 157.03  158.46 

Payment received 
on retirement and 
termination

 -    -   

5) Enterprises over which 
any person described 
in (b)  or (c) is able to 
exercise significant 
influence.

RSWM Ltd. Rent paid  43.52  43.25 
Rent received  -    7.39 
Reimbursement 
received

 39.82  13.12 

Reimbursement 
made

 30.42  36.28 

Dividend paid  782.40  293.40 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 2,982.27  -   

Shashi Commercial 
Co. Ltd.

Rent paid  29.60  27.64 

Dividend paid  572.15  214.56 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 2,180.81  -   

Purvi Vanijaya Niyojan 
Ltd.

Rent paid  3.50  3.48 

Reimbursement 
made

 0.33  -   

Dividend paid  1,396.28  523.61 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 5,322.19  -   
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Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Giltedged Industrial 
Securities Ltd.

Rent paid  24.19  22.55 

Dividend paid  403.73  151.40 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 1,538.85  -   

Malana Power Co.Ltd. Reimbursement 
received

 3.13  0.21 

BSL Ltd. Rent received  12.18  12.10 
Purchase of Fabrics  3.40  2.26 

AD Hydro Power Ltd. Reimbursement 
received

 1.79  0.12 

Maral Overseas Ltd. Reimbursement 
received

 5.44  0.37 

BMD Pvt. Ltd. Reimbursement 
received

 3.86  0.26 

Bharat Investments 
Growth Ltd.

Dividend paid  2,087.68  782.88 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 7,957.68  -   

Deepak Pens & 
Plastics Pvt. Ltd.

Dividend paid  397.92  149.22 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 1,516.74  -   

India Texfab 
Marketing Ltd.

Dividend paid  175.08  65.66 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 667.32  -   

Investors India Ltd. Dividend paid  30.71  11.51 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 117.04  -   

LNJ Financial 
Services Limited

Dividend paid  1,141.97  428.24 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 4,352.81  -   

Nivedan Vanijya 
Niyojan Ltd.

Dividend paid  56.48  21.18 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 215.22  -   
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Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

M.L. Finlease Pvt. Ltd. Dividend paid  293.44  110.04 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 1,118.48  -   

Sandhu Auto Deposits 
Ltd.

Dividend paid  453.78  170.17 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 1,729.59  -   

Raghav Commercial 
Ltd.

Dividend paid  1,226.53  459.95 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 4,675.17  -   

Mekima Corporation Dividend paid  1,431.63  536.86 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of equity 
Shares

 3,143.14  -   

Microlight 
Investments Limited

Dividend paid  3,732.46  1,399.67 

Norbury Investments 
Limited

Dividend paid  4,290.39  1,608.90 

Note: # Remuneration does not include provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an 
actuarial basis for the Company as a whole and remuneration amount represents remuneration paid for the whole year under 
consideration.
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(c) Details of Outstanding Balance (*)        	 (` in Lakhs)                
Sl.
No. Related Party Name of the Related 

Party Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

1 Associates Bhilwara Energy Ltd.  Investments  14,506.88  14,506.88 

Loan and Advances  0.11  0.11 

Bhilwara 
Infotechnology Ltd.

 Investments  419.00  419.00 

2 Enterprises over 
which any person 
described in (b)  or 
(c) is able to exercise 
significant influence.

RSWM Ltd. Loan and Advances  0.18  0.18 

Malana Power Co. Ltd. Loan and Advances  1.90  1.90 
AD Hydro Ltd. Loan and Advances  1.09  1.09 

(*) Outstanding balance does not include salary payable of KMP’s as at the year ended.

 (d) Commitments with Related Parties  	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
The Company has with RSWM Ltd. on joint and several basis provided 
guarantee in favor of International Finance Corporation (IFC) on behalf 
of AD Hydro Power Ltd.

600.00 600.00

(e) Key Managerial Person	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Short term benefits 12,445.19 4,430.47
Post employment benefits# 47.21 38.99
- Other long term benefits
Share based payments 3,896.26  -   
Directors sitting fees 85.90  53.95 
Directors commission 200.00  -   
Reimbursement of expenses & incidental expenses 4.68  3.18 
Dividend 1,023.43 383.79
Total 17,702.67 4,910.38

Note: 40 Indian Accounting Standard-19 “Employee Benefits”

Defined Contribution Plan							    
Contribution to Defined Contribution  Plan, recognised as expense for the period are as under :	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Employer's contribution to Provident Fund  258.47  233.42 

Employer's contribution to Superannuation Fund  170.73  155.44 

Employer's contribution to ESIC  59.50  59.93 
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Defined Benefit Plan

The following table set out the funded status of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet:	
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars A s at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

I. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO): 
Present Value of Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  1,156.36  1,134.68 
1. Interest Cost  90.19  83.40 
2. Current Service Cost  72.00  66.02 
3. Past Service Cost including curtailment (Gains)/Losses  33.91 
4. Benefits paid  (164.25)  (224.08)
5. Actuarial Changes (Gain)/Loss  86.00  62.42 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year  1,240.30  1,156.36 

II. Change in Fair Value of Assets:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year:  1,307.99  1,193.82 
1. Expected Return  89.77  114.17 
2. Actual Company Contribution  -    -   
3. Benefits paid  -    -   
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  1,397.76  1,307.99 

III. Net Assets/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet:
1.Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation  1,240.30  1,156.35 
2.Fair Value on Plan Assets  1,397.76  1,307.99 
Net Assets/(Liability) recognized in balance sheet (2-1)  157.47  151.64 

IV. Expenses recognised during the year
In Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost  72.00  99.92 
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset)  (11.83)  (4.35)
Net Cost  60.17  95.57 
In Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Obligation  (86.00)  (62.42)
Actuarial Gain /(Loss) for the year on Asset  (12.25)  26.43 
Net Income/(Expense) for the period Recognised in OCI  (98.25)  (35.99)

V. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income for the year
1. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions  (Gain/ (Loss))  -    -   
2. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions  
(Gain/ (Loss))  (45.06)  37.79 
3. Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments  
(Gain/ (Loss))  (40.94)  (100.21)
4. Return on plan assets excluding interest income  (Gain/ (Loss))  (12.25)  26.43 
5. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income- (Gain/ (Loss))  (98.25)  (35.99)

VI. The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair 
value of total plan assets :
Insurer Management Fund  1.00  1.00 
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Particulars
A s at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018

VII. Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate (per annum)  7.75  7.80 
Salary escalation (per annum)  6.00  5.50 
Expected Rate of Return (per annum)  7.75  7.80 
Retirement age  58/60  58/60 
Mortality Rate during employment  100% of ALM (2006-08)  100% of ALM (2006-08) 

VIII. Withdrawal rates:
Age:
Upto 30 years  3.00  3.00 
From 31 to 44 years  2.00  2.00 
Above 44 years  1.00  1.00 

IX.Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation.
 a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Impact due to increase of  0.50%-Increase(Decrease) in obligation  (44.91)  (39.46)
Impact due to decrease of  0.50 %-Increase(Decrease) in obligation  48.14  42.20 
 b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Impact due to increase of  0.50%-Increase(Decrease) in obligation  42.89  39.95 
Impact due to decrease of  0.50 %-Increase(Decrease) in obligation  (40.84)  (37.82)

X. Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
(a)   0-1 year  121.51  147.40 
(b)   1-2 year  19.85  66.30 
(c)   2-3 year  70.72  95.92 
(d)   3-4 years  92.56  80.54 
(e)   4-5 years  141.08  122.38 
(f)    More than 5 years  794.56  643.81 

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.	

XI. The Company expects to contribute `121.51 Lakhs to the gratuity trusts during the financial year 2019-20. 

Note: 41  Operating Leases
The Company has entered into operating leases on premises. These leasing arrangements are cancellable, range 
between 3 to 5 years and usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.	            (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Rent Paid 89.13  85.97 

Note: 42  Events after the Reporting Period

(i) The Company have declared dividend of `50 per Equity Share  of `10 each, aggregating `23,264.46 Lakhs including 
`3,966.71 Lakhs dividend distribution tax for the financial year 2018-19 in its board meeting held on 20th May'19

(ii) As on 31st March, 2019, the Company holds 29.48% in Bhilwara Energy Ltd. (BEL) an Associate Company of HEG Ltd. 
BEL either itself or  through its subsidiaries  had portfolio of operational 278 MW of Hydro and 34 MW of Wind assets 
in following power business: 
a) Hydro Power Generation 
b) Wind Power Generation 
c) Power Consultancy business
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(iii) The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 2nd April, 2019, had decided to purchase additional 3,23,51,004 shares 
in Bhilwara Energy Limited (BEL), Associate company for an aggregating cash consideration of Rs 162.05 Crores 
based on Rs 50.09 per share from the following shareholders of BEL: 
a) 32,81,818 equity shares of BEL held by New York Life Investment Management India Fund (FVCI) II LLC. 
b) 1,72,727 equity shares of BEL held by Jacob Balls Capital India Pvt. Ltd. 
c) 1,19,57,860 equity shares of BEL held by India Clean Energy III Limited. 
d) 1,69,38,599 equity shares of BEL held by RSWM Limited, (Part of the Promoter Group) 
 
The fair valuation of shares of BEL is `50.09 per share, which was determined  by M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, an 
Independent Valuer 
 
Post the above acquisition of shares, the holding of Company in BEL, an Associate company will increase from 29.48% 
to 49%.	

Note: 43 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)				  

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company meeting the applicable threshold, need to spend atleast 2% of the 
average net profit for the immediate preceding three financial years on CSR activities as defined in schedule VII of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  `1,036.61 Lakhs (NIL Lakhs)

(b) Amount spent during the period :

(` in Lakhs)

CSR Activities  In cash  Yet to be paid in cash  Total 

(i) Construction/acquisition of any assets  -    -    -   
 -    -    -   

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above  827.92  -    827.92 
(92.10) (92.10)

(Figures in brackets pertain to financial  year 2017-18)	

Amount unspent during the year was `236.63 Lakhs

Note: 44 Capitalization of Pre-Operative Expenditure
	 (` in Lakhs)

The following expenditure has been capitalized / included under 
Capital work in progress:

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Insurance expenses  -    -   
Financial expenses - interest on term loans  -    -   
Administrative overheads & other cost  -    -   
Foreign currency fluctuation -  1,672.53 
Total  -    1,672.53 
The same had been capitalized
Building  -    270.06 
Plant & Machinery  -    1,402.47 
Capital work in progress  -    -   
Total  -    1,672.53 
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Note: 45  Details of Loans given, Investments made and Guarantee given covered U/S 186(4) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Loan given
Guarantee given 600 600
Investment made 14,925.88 14,925.88

The Company has not given any loan guarantee and not made any investments during the financial year 2018-19 and for the 
period ending 31st March, 2019.	

Note: 46  Financial risk management and objective policies					     		

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s senior management oversees the management 
of these risks. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of 
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below.

(A)  Market Risk:							     

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk 
and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans, borrowings and deposits. The Company is 
exposed to interest rate risk on variable rate long term and short term borrowings.

(i) Foreign Currency Risk:						      	

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with 
respect to USD and EURO	

a)   Foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as at the balance sheet date

Category Currency Nature

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Purpose
(USD) 

(Millions)
(INR) 

(Lakhs)
 ( USD ) in 

Millions
(INR) 

(Lakhs)

Plain Vanilla Forwards ( Sold ) USD/ INR Sold 8.00  5,666.73  36.00 23680.3 Hedging

Plain Vanilla Forwards EURO/ USD Sold - - 3.50  USD  1.2555 Hedging

b)  Particulars of foreign currency risk exposure

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows:

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Currency As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Financial Liabilities
Secured Loan USD  -    -   

Euro  -    -   
Creditors(Net of Advances) USD  4,374.72  11,418.87 

Euro  3.11  38.21 
Other payables USD  1,345.27  1,116.99 

Euro  1,143.53  1,375.28 



167

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

Co
rp

or
at

e 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ep
or

t
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

Particulars Currency As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
(liabilities) USD  5,719.99  12,535.86 
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
(liabilities) Euro  1,146.65  1,413.49 
Debtors(Net of Advances) USD  66,246.52  36,110.71 

Euro  22,855.70  31,098.34 
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
(assets) USD  66,246.52  36,110.71 
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
(assets) Euro  22,855.70  31,098.34 

(c) Sensitivity:

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial 
instruments .

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in the USD and Euro to the Indian Rupee with all other variables held constant. 
The impact on the Company’s profit before tax and other comprehensive income due to changes in the fair value of monetary 
assets and liabilities is given below:		

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Impact on Profit
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
For the year ended 

31st March, 2018
USD Sensitivity
Increase by 3% ( Previous year 1%) 1,645.79 235.75
Decrease by 3% ( Previous year 1%) (1,645.79) (235.75)

EURO Sensitivity
Increase by 6% ( Previous year4%) 1,302.54 1,187.39
Decrease by 6% ( Previous year 4%) (1,302.54) (1,187.39)

(ii) Interest Rate Risk					     	

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
debt obligations with floating interest rates.	

(a) Interest Risk Exposure:				    			 

The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Variable Rate Borrowings  66,636.47  29,745.49 
Fixed Rate Borrowings  -    -   
Total Borrowings  66,636.47  29,745.49 

(` in Lakhs)
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As at the end of the reporting period, the company has the following variable rate borrowings outstanding:

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Category
Weighted 

Average 
Interest Rate

Outstanding 
Balance 

(` in Lakhs)

% of Total 
Loans

Weighted 
Average 

Interest Rate

Outstanding 
Balance 

(` in Lakhs)

% of Total 
Loans

Term loans from banks and other 
parties

 -    -    -    -   

Working Capital Loans from 
banks

5.69% 66,636.47 100 6.32% 29,745.49 100

Total 5.69%  66,636.47 100 6.32%  29,745.49 100

(b) Sensitivity:	

Profit/Loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.      (` in Lakhs)	

Particulars Impact on Profit
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
For the year ended 

31st March, 2018
Interest Rate - increase by 60 basis points (399.82) (178.47)

Interest Rate - decrease by 60 basis points 399.82 178.47

(iii) Security Price risk:	 					   

(a) 	Price Risk:	 					   
	 The Company manages the surplus funds majorly through investments in debt based Fixed Maturity Plans and mutual fund 

schemes. The price of investment in these Fixed Maturity Plans and mutual fund schemes is reflected though Net Asset 
Value (NAV) decleared by the Asset Management Company on daily basis as reflected by the movement in the NAV of invested 
schemes. The Company is exposed to price risk on such investments.

						    
(b) 	Sensitivity:	 					   
	 The below is the sensitivity analysis at the end of the year in case NAV has been 1% higher / lower.				  

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Impact on Profit
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
For the year ended 

31st March, 2018
NAV increase by 1% 639.45 -

NAV decrease by 1% (639.45) -

(B) Credit Risk:	

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to 
the Company. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables, loans to employees 
and security deposits). Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests 
in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. The Company’s credit 
risk in case of all other financial instruments is negligible.						    

To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial 
conditions, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable.				  
		
The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting period. 
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(i) Expected Credit Loss for Financial Assets

As at 31st March 2019	 (` in Lakhs)

Financial assets to which loss allowance  
is measured using 12 months Expected 
Credit Loss (ECL)

Gross Carrying 
Amount

Expected Proba-
bility of Default

Expected Credit 
Loss

Carrying amount 
net of impairment 

provision

Loans to Employees  88.24 0%  -    88.24 
Security Deposits  1,092.32 0%  -    1,092.32 

	 (` in Lakhs)

Financial assets to 
which loss allowance 
is measured using 
lifetime Expected Credit 
Loss(ECL)

Not Due
Less 

than 12 
months

 12 to 15 
months 

 15 to 18 
months 

 18 to 21 
months 

 21 to 24 
months 

 More 
than 24 
months 

Total

Trade Receivables- 
Other than ECGC 5,846.41 1,12,493.21 6.28 422.52 54.85 98.37 593.39 1,19,515.04 
Due under ECGC - - - - - - 119.63  119.63 

Expected Loss Rate  -    -   25% 50% 75% 100% 100% -

Expected Credit Losses - - 1.57 211.26 41.14 98.37 593.39  945.73 

Carrying amount of Trade 
receivables

5,846.41 1,12,493.21 4.71 211.26 13.71 - 119.63 1,18,688.94 

For the year ending 31st March 2018	 (` in Lakhs)

Financial assets to which loss allowance  
is measured using 12 months Expected 
Credit Loss(ECL)

Gross Carrying 
Amount

Expected 
Probability of 

Default

Expected Credit 
Loss

Carrying amount 
net of impairment 

provision
Loans to Employees  85.97 0%  -    85.97 
Security Deposits  721.72 0%  -    721.72 

	 (` in Lakhs)

Financial assets to 
which loss allowance 
is measured using 
lifetime Expected Credit 
Loss(ECL)

Not Due
Less 

than 12 
months

 12 to 15 
months 

15 to 18 
months

18 to 21 
months 

21 to 24 
months 

 More 
than 24 
months 

Total

Trade Receivables-  -   
Other than ECGC 72,073.61 24,482.89 415.27 6.97 46.84 23.68 390.13 97,439.38
Due under ECGC 288.47 288.47

Expected Loss Rate  -    -   10% 20% 30% 50% 100% -

Expected Credit Losses - - 41.53 1.39 14.05 11.84 390.13 458.94

Carrying amount of Trade 
receivables

72,073.61 24,482.89 373.74 5.58 32.79 11.84 288.47 97,268.90
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Provisioning Norms of Debtors	 (` in Lakhs)

Ageing of debtor on the basis of invoice date Provision in %_2018-19 Provision in %_2017-18

Upto 12 Months Nil Nil
 12 to 15 months 25% 10%
 15 to 18 months 50% 20%
 18 to 21 months 75% 30%
 21 to 24 months 100% 50%

 More than 24 months 100% 100%

(ii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - 

Trade Receivables

The following table summarizes the change in the loss allowances measured using life-time expected credit loss model:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Current Year ended 

31st March, 2019
Previous Financial Year 

ending 31st March, 2018
As at the beginning of year  458.94  1,241.92 
Provided during the year  486.79 -
Reversal of provisions -  (782.98)
As at the end of the year 945.73  458.94 

(C) Liquidity Risk:	 					   

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. 
The Company’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes 
and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the company’s net liquidity position 
through rolling, forecast on the basis of expected cash flows.						    

Prudent liquidity  risk management implies maintaining sufficient availability  of standby funding through  an adequate line up 
committed credit facilities of `53,363.53 Lakhs( previous year ` 28,754.51 Lakhs ) to meet obligation when due and close out 
market position.	

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based 
on contractual undiscounted payments:						    

As at 31st March 2019	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Less than 

12 months
12 months to 

3 years
 More than 

3 years  Total 

Borrowings(Non-Current)  -    -    -    -   
Borrowings(Current)  66,636.47 - -  66,636.47 
Trade payables  38,006.90  -    -    38,006.90 
Other financial liabilities  13,017.49  4.35  36.96  13,058.80 
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As at 31st March, 2018	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Less than 12 

months
12months to 3 

years  More than 3 years  Total 

Borrowings(Non-Current)  -    -    -    -   
Borrowings(Current)  29,745.49  -    -    29,745.49 
Trade payables  24,644.43  -    -    24,644.43 
Other financial liabilities  7,251.90  3.96  38.55  7,294.41 

Note:  47   Capital Management 

(a)    Risk Management					   

The Company’s objective when managing capital are to:					   

i) 	 Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and 
benefits for other stakeholders, and					   

(ii) 	Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or 
sell assets to reduce debt.	

(i) 	 The gearing ratios were as follows:			   (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
(a) Debt*  66,636.47  29,745.49 
(b) Cash & Cash Equivalents  (2,915.91)  (517.18)
(c) Net Debt (a)+(b) 63,720.56 29,228.31
Total equity 3,71,899.85 1,80,861.73
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 0.17 0.16

* Debt is defined as long- term and short-term  borrowings ( excluding derivative, financial guarantee contracts and contingent  
consideration), refer Note 18 for the details of borrowings.	

(ii) 	Loan Covenants:		  			 

The company is Debt free as on reporting period.

(b) Dividends	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
i) Equity Shares
Final Dividend paid for the year ended 31st March, 2018 of `50 per fully 
paid equity share 

 19,979.57  -   

Interim Dividend paid during the year ended 31st March, 2019 of `30 per 
fully paid equity share (previous year `30 per fully paid equity share)

 11,987.74  11,987.74 

ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting year
In addition to above dividends, since  year end the Directors have 
recommended the payment of a Final dividend of `50  per equity share 
(previous year `50 per equity share) which is subject to the approval of 
shareholders in the ensuing AGM

 19,297.75  19,979.57 
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Note: 48  Financial Instruments- Accounting Classification  and Fair Value Measurement

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

FVPL FVOCI Amortised 
cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost
Financial assets
Investments  -    -    -    -   

     -Equity Instruments  0.01  -    -    0.01  -    -   

     -Fixed Maturity Plans  57,937.06 

     -Mutual Funds  6,008.15 

     -Non Convertible Debentures  7,832.79 

Loans  -    -    1,180.57  -    -    807.69 

Others  465.79  85.04 

Derivative Financial Assets  72.40  -    -    24.39  -   

Trade Receivables  -    -   1,18,688.94  -    -    97,268.90 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -    2,915.91  -    -    517.17 

Bank balances other than Cash & Cash 
Equivalents

 52,816.50  245.28 

Total Financial Assets  71,850.41  -    1,76,067.71  24.40  -    98,924.09 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings  -    -    66,636.47  -    -    29,745.49 

Trade Payables  -    -    38,006.90  -    -    24,644.43 

Other Financial Liabilities  -    -   13,058.80  -    -    7,294.41 

Derivative Financial Liability -  -   -  -    -    -   

Total Financial Liabilities  -    -    1,17,702.17  -                         -     61,684.32 

# Investment value excludes investment in Associates of `14925.88 lakhs (March 31, 2018: `14925.88 lakhs) which are shown at 
cost in balance sheet as per Ind AS 27 ”Separate Financial Statements”.

(i) Fair value hierarchy					     			 
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.						    
			 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 							     
		
1. 	 Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, 

short term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their carrying value largely due to the short-term 
maturities of these instruments.								     

								      
2. 	 Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates evaluated by the Company based on the parameters such as 

interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on the evaluation, allowances are taken to account 
the expected losses of these receivables.	

							     
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of the financial instruments by valuation 
techniques:				  
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Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities						    
			 
Level 2: Other techniques for which all the inputs have a significant effect on the recorded fair values are observable, either 
directly or indirectly					   
								      
Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 
market data.	

 As at 31st March,2019			   (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Carrying 
amount 

 Fair value 
 Level 1   Level 2  Level 3 

Financial assets at Fair value through 
profit or loss
Investments-Bonds  -    -    -   
Investments-Fixed Maturity Plans  57,937.06  57,937.06 - -
Investments-Mutual Fund  6,008.15  6,008.15 - -
Investments-Non Convertible Debentures  7,832.79  7,832.79 - -
Quoted Equity Investment 0.01 0.01  -    -   
Derivative Financial Assets  72.40  72.40  -    -   
Total 71,850.40 71,850.40  -    -   

As at 31st March,2018			   (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Carrying 
amount 

 Fair value 
 Level 1   Level 2  Level 3 

Financial assets at Fair value through 
profit or loss
Quoted Equity Investment 0.01  0.01  -    -   
Derivative Financial Assets  24.39  24.39  -    -   
Total 24.40 24.40  -    -   

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

i.   	Fair value of cash and deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial assets and liabilities approximate 
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.	

ii. 	 The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount 
rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. 					   
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Note: 49  Carrying Amount of Pledged Assets	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
First Charge
Current Assets
(a) Trade Receivables 1,18,688.94 97,268.90
(b) Inventories 1,30,838.68 51,143.57
Total (A) 2,49,527.61 1,48,412.47

Secondary Charge
Property, Plant & Equipment 78,317.19 82,814.06
Total (B) 78,317.19 82,814.06

Total (A+B) 3,27,844.79 2,31,226.53

Note No: 50 Disclosure under Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers	 	

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative catch-up 
transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up 
transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The impact on account of applying the erstwhile Ind 
AS 18 Revenue instead of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contract with Customers” on the financials results of the Company for the 
year ended and as at March 31, 2019 is insignificant. 

The below are the disclosures as required by Ind AS 115: 		

(i) Disaggregation of revenue 		

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2019 by offerings 
and contract-type. 										                        (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
Type of Product 
   - Graphite Electrode  6,28,323.12 
   - Mix Graphite Product  14,588.26 
   - Power  720.22 
Total  6,43,631.60 

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
Revenue from Customers based in India  1,52,278.30 
Revenue from Customers based outside India  4,91,353.30 
Total  6,43,631.60 

Timing of Revenue Recognition 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
Revenue from goods transferred to customers at a point in time  6,43,631.60 
Revenue from goods transferred to customers over time  -   
Total  6,43,631.60 
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 (ii) Trade receivables and Contract Balances  		

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as receivable. 		

The balances of trade receivables and advance from customers at the beginning and end of the reporting period have been 
disclosed at note no. 9 and 23 respectively.		

The revenue recognised during the year ended 31st March 2019 includes revenue against advances from customers amounting to 
`1,460.95 lakhs at the beginning of the year.		

The revenue of ` Nil has been recognised during the year ended 31st March 2019 against performance obligations satisfied (or 
partially satisfied) in previous periods. 		

(iii) Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations		

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as 
at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. 	

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as at March 31, 2019 is ` Nil.

Note: 51 Disclosures in accordance with Ind AS-18

In accordance with Ind AS 18 on “Revenue” and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, Sales for the period 1 April to 30 June 2017 
were reported gross of Excise Duty and net of VAT/ CST. Excise Duty was reported as a separate expense line item. Consequent 
to the introduction of Goods and Services Tax (GST) with effect from 1 July 2017, VAT/CST, Excise Duty etc. have been subsumed 
into GST and accordingly the same is not recognised as part of sales as per the requirements of Ind AS 18. This has resulted in 
lower reported sales in the current period in comparison to the sales reported under the pre-GST structure of indirect taxes. With 
the change in structure of indirect taxes, certain expenses where credit of GST is available are also being reported net of taxes.

Note: 52 Recent Accounting Pronouncements				    	

Ind AS 116 Leases:					   

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing Leases 
Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single 
lease accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve 
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit 
& Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the 
lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard permits two 
possible methods of transition: 

• 	 Full retrospective – Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors

•	  Modified retrospective – Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of 
initial application.

	 Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease 
payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as: 

• 	 Its carrying amount should be calculated as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at 
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or 

• 	 An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease 
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recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application. Certain practical expedients are available under 
both the methods.

	 On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the ‘Modified Retrospective 
Approach’ for transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial 
application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted.  
The Company has elected certain available practical expedients on transition.

The Company has evaluated the effect of this on the financial statements and the impact is not material.			 

Amendment to Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’	 			 

“On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with 
accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity: 

• 	 To use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan 
amendment, curtailment or settlement; and 

• 	 To recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that 
surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

	 Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company does not 
have any impact on account of this amendment.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments :		  			 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which 
is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits 
and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies 
need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the 
companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the 
expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits 
and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition –

i) 	 Full retrospective approach – Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period 
presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using 
hindsight and 

ii) 	 Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, 
without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company will 
adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. 
April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the financial statements. 

Amendment to Ind AS 12 – Income taxes :		  			 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection 
with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, Other 
Comprehensive Income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. 
Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is currently 
evaluating the effect of this amendment on the Standalone Financial Statements.	
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Note: 53 Reconciliation of Cash flow from financing Activities		  			 

Pursuant to amendment in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2017 via MCA notification G.S.R 258(E) dated 17th 
March, 2017 para 44A to para 44E has been inserted after para 44 in Indian Accounting Standard -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, 
following reconciliation is required from annual periods beginning on or after 1st April,2017		

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Borrowings
(Current)

Borrowings
(Non-Current)

Borrowings
(Current)

Borrowings
(Non-Current)

Opening balance of Financial Liabilities 
coming under the financing activities of 
Cash Flow Statement

 29,745.49  -    41,183.59  27,195.05 

Add/(less): Changes during the year
a) Changes from financing cash flow  36,890.98  -    (11,438.10)  (27,195.05)
b)Changes arising from obtaining or 
losing control of subsidiaries or other 
business

 -    -    -    -   

c) the effect of changes in foreign 
exchanges rates- (Gain)/Loss

- -  -   -

d) Changes in fair value  -    -    -    -   
e) Other changes  -    -    -    -   
Closing Balance of Financial Liabilities 
coming under the financing activities 
of Cash Flow Statement

 66,636.47  -    29,745.49  - 

Note: 54  Details of Research & Development expenditure 
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17 FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
a) Capital  -    -    -    -    -   

b) Revenue  187.16  186.61  168.89  176.73  159.60 

Note: 55  Regrouping / Re-classifications				  
Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm the current period/year classification.

In terms of our report of even date
For SCV & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

Ravi Jhunjhunwala 
Chairman, Managing 
Director & CEO
DIN No. 00060972

Riju Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00061060

Sanjiv Mohan 
Partner                                                                                
Membership No. 086066

Gulshan Kumar Sakhuja	
Chief Financial Officer	

Shekhar Agarwal
Vice Chairman
DIN No. 00066113

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Dated:  20th May, 2019

Vivek Chaudhary	
Company Secretary	
Membership No. A13263

D.N.Davar
Director
DIN No. 00002008
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Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of HEG Limited (‘the Company’), and its Associates, 
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 
March 2019, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement 
of Cash flows for the year ended, including a summary of 
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated 
Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us and based on the reports of 
other auditors as referred in the Other Matters paragraph, 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
in the manner, so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,as amended (“Ind AS”) and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Company and its Associates 
as at 31 March, 2019, and the consolidated Profit, consolidated 
Total Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the consolidated Cash Flows for the year 
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company and its Associates in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements.

Matters reported in the Auditor’s report of 
an Associate of the Company are being 
reproduced hereunder:
Material uncertainty related to going concern of a 
Subsidiary of an Associate

The material uncertainty related to going concern of a 
Subsidiary of Bhilwara Energy Limited, an Associate of the 
Company, reported in the Auditor’s Report on consolidated 
financial statements of the Associate is being reproduced 
hereunder: 

In case of Chango Yangthang Hydro 
Power Limited, a Subsidiary of the 
Associate
The Board of Directors of Chango Yangthang Hydro Power 
Limited has decided to surrender the Chango Yangthang 
HEP (180 MW) project to Directorate of Energy, Government 
of Himachal Pradesh due to delay and uncertainty in project 
execution and long delay in Government approvals and licences 
lapse. Further, the Company has written off capital work in 
progress during the previous year amounting to D27.14 crores. 
These events or conditions indicate that there exists material 
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern since the Company was 
incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle for this particular 
project. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matter
The Emphasis of Matter reported in the Auditor’s Report on 
consolidated financial statements of Bhilwara Energy Limited, 
an Associate of the Company, is being reproduced hereunder:

In case of Chango Yangthang Hydro 
Power Limited, a Subsidiary of the 
Associate
The Company has asked for refund of upfront premium of 
D37.89 crores and a security deposit of D1.80 crores with 
interest, the Government of Himachal Pradesh has not 
considered the Company’s contention for surrender of the 
project. The Company on 16th February, 2018 has reaffirmed 
its intention and asked the authorities for their decision on 
application of surrender of the project since the project is not 
to be executed purely on account of various social-legal issues 
neither in the control of the Company nor in the control of local 
administration/authorities. 

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of
HEG Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GoHP vide Notification dated 3rd November, 2018 has formed 
a committee to deal with the issues of various projects which 
includes Chango Yangthang Hydro Power Limited (CYHPL). On 
the direction of GoHP, a public meeting was convened on 14th 
November, 2018 which was attended by various villagers of the 
project affected area, officials of DoE, District administration 
and CYHPL. During the meeting, the villagers categorically 
refused for development of any Hydro Electric project in the 
Hangrang valley including 180 MW Chango Yangthang HEP 
and refused to co-operate on the issue of development of 
any project. The said committee discussed the Sutlej Valley 
projects on 18th February, 2019 which included CYHPL. During 
the meeting CYHPL categorically refused to execute the project 
in view of severe local issue and lapse of clearances for the 
project. Committee has noted the same.

In NJC Hydro Power Limited, a Subsidiary 
of the Associate
The viability of the Nyamjang Ch-hu HEP power project is 
dependent on the outcome of the report of Wildlife Institute of 
India, Dehradun. We are unable to comment on the financial 
implications and the future operations of the Company till the 
outcome of report of Wildlife Institute of India, Dehradun.

In Malana Power Company Limited, a 
Subsidiary of the Associate
There is uncertainty relating to the effects of the outcome 
of litigation with Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board 
(HPSEBL).

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
Judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. 
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to 
communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures 
to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholders’ Information Report, but does 
not include the consolidated financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of 
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and 
Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the   Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the Consolidated Financial Position, Consolidated Financial 
Performance, Consolidated Total Comprehensive Income, 
Consolidated Changes in Equity and Consolidated Cash 
Flows of the Company including its Associates in accordance 
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 
The Board of Directors of the Company and of its Associates are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgement and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of 
Directors of the Company and of its Associates are responsible 
for assessing the ability of the Company and of its Associates to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends 
to liquidate the Company and of its Associates or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and of its 
Associates are also responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Company and its Associates.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
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or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements. 

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company and its Subsidiary 
Companies which are Companies incorporated in India, has 
adequate internal financial control system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Company and its 
Associates to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company and its Associates to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

•	 Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidences 
regarding the financial information of the Company and 

its Associates to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements of which we are the Independent 
Auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements, which have been audited by other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits 
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the 
Company and such other entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements of which we are the Independent Auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

Other Matters
The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s 
share of total comprehensive income/(loss) of (D2,421.92 
Lakhs) for the year ended 31st March, 2019, as considered 
in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of two 
Associates, whose financial statements/financial information 
have not been audited by us. These financial statements/
financial information have been audited by other auditors 
whose reports have been furnished to us by the management 
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in 
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of these Associates, and our report in terms of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to 
the aforesaid Associates, is based solely on the reports of the 
other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our 
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is 
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements
1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, 

we report, that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by 
law relating to preparation of aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books and reports of the 
other auditors.

(c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the relevant books of accounts maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements.

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. 

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken on record by 
the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports 
of the Statutory Auditors of its Associate Companies 
incorporated in India, none of the Directors of the 
Company and its Associate Companies incorporated in 
India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 
Act.

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate report in “Annexure A”; which is based on 

the auditor’s reports of the Company and its Associate 
Companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial control over 
financial reporting of those Companies, for reasons 
stated therein. 

(g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and reports 
of the other auditors, the remuneration paid by the 
Company and its Associate Companies to its Directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 197 of the Act. 

(h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and reports of 
the other auditors:

i.	 The consolidated financial statements disclose the 
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated 
financial position of the Company and its Associates. 

ii.	 The Company and its Associates did not have any 
long term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts 
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company and its 
Associate Companies incorporated in India.

	 For SCV & Co. LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Reg. No.000235N/N500089

	 (Sanjiv Mohan)
Place:  Noida	 Partner
Date:  20th May, 2019	 M. No. 086066
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial control over financial 
reporting of HEG Limited (“the Company”) and its Associate 
Companies incorporated in India as of 31st March 2019 in 
conjunction with our audit of consolidated financial statements 
of Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls
The management of the Company and its Associates 
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
respective Companies considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI’). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements , whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
internal financial control system over financial reporting of the 
Company and its Associates, which are incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting
The Company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 
A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the Company.(2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Annexure – “A” to the Independent Auditors Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members 
of HEG Limited of even date)
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Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us and based on the reports of other 
auditors as referred in other matters paragraph, the Company 
and its Associate Companies incorporated in India, have, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the respective Companies 
considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to 
separate financial statements of two Associate Companies 
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of 
the auditors of such Companies incorporated in India.

	 For SCV & Co. LLP
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Reg. No.000235N/N500089

	 (Sanjiv Mohan)
Place:  Noida	 Partner
Date:  20th May, 2019	 M. No. 086066
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 		  	

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Note No. As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

a)  Property, plant and equipment 4  78,448.45  82,930.10 
b)  Capital work-in-progress 5  1,857.51  161.45 
c)  Investment property 6  354.14  371.80 
d)  Goodwill  -    -   
e)  Other intangible assets 7  35.22  34.82 
f)   Intangible assets under development  -    -   
g)  Biological assets other than bearer plants  -    -   
h)  Financial assets

(i)  Investments 8  83,348.65  24,816.56 
(ii) Trade receivables  -    -   
(iii) Loans 10  1,118.56  743.14 
(iv) Other financial assets 11  -    -   

i)   Deferred tax assets (net)  -    -   
j)   Current tax assets (net) 24  3,995.09  2,810.79 
k)  Other non-current assets 12  1,727.04  568.15 

(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 13  1,30,838.68  51,143.57 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 8  10,823.99  -   
(ii) Trade receivables 9  1,18,688.94  97,268.90 
(iii) Cash & cash equivalents 14  2,915.91  517.18 
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 15  52,816.50  245.28 
(v) Loans 10  62.01  64.55 
(vi) Other financial assets 11  538.19  109.43 

(c) Other current assets 12  26,866.93  12,124.91 
Total Assets  5,14,435.81  2,73,910.62 

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 16  3,859.59  3,995.95 
(b) Other equity 17  3,75,509.02  1,86,756.45 

LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18  -    -   
(ii) Trade payables  -    -   
(iii) Other financial liabilities 20  41.31  42.50 

(b) Provisions 21  387.08  340.90 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 22  12,612.65  11,916.80 
(d) Other non-current liabilities 23  239.59  208.08 

(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 18  66,636.47  29,745.49 
(ii) Trade payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

19  398.82  245.97 

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

19  37,608.08  24,398.46 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 20  13,017.49  7,251.90 
(b) Other current liabilities 23  1,605.03  4,848.22 
(c ) Provisions 21  1,977.91  616.88 
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 24  542.77  3,543.02 
Total Equity and Liabilities  5,14,435.81  2,73,910.62 

The accompanying notes (1-56) are integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report of even date
For SCV & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

Ravi Jhunjhunwala 
Chairman, Managing 
Director & CEO
DIN No. 00060972

Riju Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00061060

Sanjiv Mohan 
Partner                                                                                
Membership No. 086066

Gulshan Kumar Sakhuja	
Chief Financial Officer	

Shekhar Agarwal
Vice Chairman
DIN No. 00066113

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Dated:  20th May, 2019

Vivek Chaudhary	
Company Secretary	
Membership No. A13263

D.N.Davar
Director
DIN No. 00002008
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Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Note No. Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

I. Revenue from operations 25  6,59,282.52  2,75,840.43 
II. Other income 26  10,919.18  1,236.82 

III. Total Income (I + II)  6,70,201.70  2,77,077.25 
IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 27  1,61,183.97  57,580.79 
Purchases of stock-in-trade  -    -   
Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress and 
Stock-in-trade

28  (49,705.69)  (9,782.44)

Employee benefits expense 29  19,756.62  11,243.85 
Finance costs 30  1,796.90  5,641.88 
Depreciation and amortization expense 31  7,239.20  7,255.76 
Excise duty 32  -    833.82 
Other expenses 33  62,222.82  43,832.62 
Total Expenses (IV)  2,02,493.82  1,16,606.29 

V. Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)  4,67,707.88  1,60,470.97 
VI. Exceptional items  -    -   

VII. Profit before tax (V - VI)  4,67,707.88  1,60,470.97 
VIII. Tax expense:

(1) Current tax
 - Current tax 34  1,62,032.53  51,355.30 
 - Prior periods 34  (97.89)  0.60 

(2) Deferred tax 34  730.18  981.14 
IX Share of profit/(loss) of Associates  (2,427.40)  1,800.04 
X Profit for the year from continuing operations (VII-VIII+IX)  3,02,615.66  1,09,933.97 

XI Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operation  -    -   
XII Tax expense of discontinued operation  -    -   

XIII Profit/(Loss) for the year from discontinued operations(after 
tax) (XI-XII)

 -    -   

XIV Profit for the period (X+XIII)  3,02,615.66  1,09,933.97 
XV Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit/ (loss) 35  (98.25)  (35.99)
   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to  
profit/ (loss)

34  34.33  12.46

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to  profit/ (loss)  -    -   
   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit/ 
(loss)

 -    -   

XVI Other Comprehensive Income of Associates  5.49  13.76 
XVII Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIV+XV+XVI) 

(Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for the 
period)

 3,02,557.23  1,09,924.20 

XVIII Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations) : 
(1) Basic (`) 36  757.53  275.11 
(2) Diluted (`) 36  757.53  275.11 

XIX Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operations) : 
(1) Basic (`)  -    -   
(2) Diluted (`)  -    -   

XX Earnings per equity share (for discontinued and continuing 
operations) : 
(1) Basic (`) 36  757.53  275.11 
(2) Diluted (`) 36  757.53  275.11 

The accompanying notes (1-56) are integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report of even date
For SCV & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

Ravi Jhunjhunwala 
Chairman, Managing 
Director & CEO
DIN No. 00060972

Riju Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00061060

Sanjiv Mohan 
Partner                                                                                
Membership No. 086066

Gulshan Kumar Sakhuja	
Chief Financial Officer	

Shekhar Agarwal
Vice Chairman
DIN No. 00066113

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Dated:  20th May, 2019

Vivek Chaudhary	
Company Secretary	
Membership No. A13263

D.N.Davar
Director
DIN No. 00002008
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2019

A) Equity Share Capital 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

Balance at the beginning of reporting period  3,995.95  3,995.95 
Buyback of shares during the year  (136.36)  -   
Balance at the end of reporting period  3,859.59  3,995.95 

B) Other Equity	 (` in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus
Other 
Comprehensive 
Income Total

Particulars Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 

Capital 
Redemption 
Reserve

General 
Reserves

Retained 
Earnings

Remeasurement 
of Defined benefit 
obligations

Balance at the beginning of reporting 
period i.e. 1st April, 2018 10,726.49  1,269.61  1,893.57  39,823.38 1,32,962.00  81.34  1,86,756.45 

Profit for the year  3,02,615.66  3,02,615.66 
Other Comprehensive Income for the 
year  (58.43)  (58.43)

Total Comprehensive Income for the 
year  -    -    -    3,02,615.66  (58.43)  3,02,557.23 

Dividend (including dividend 
distribution tax)  (38,538.23)  (38,538.23)

Transfer to/from retained earnings 
on account of Buyback of shares  136.36  (136.36)  -   

Any other changes 
Buyback of Equity Shares (Refer 
Note :16(e)  (1,269.61)  (39,823.38)  (33,770.63)  (74,863.61)

Less: Buyback exp. (net of income 
tax benefit)  (402.75)  (402.75)

Balance at the end of reporting 
period i.e. 31st March, 2019 10,726.49  -    2,029.93  -    3,62,729.69  22.91  3,75,509.02 

Reserves and Surplus
Other items of 
Other Compre-
hensive Income

TotalParticulars Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 

Other Reserves 
(Capital 
Redemption 
Reserve)

General 
Reserves

Retained 
Earnings

Remeasurement 
of Defined Benefit 
Obligations

Balance at the beginning of reporting 
period i.e. 1st April, 2017  10,726.49  1,269.61  1,893.57 39,823.38  37,456.19  91.12  91,260.37 
Profit for the year 1,09,933.97  1,09,933.97 
Other Comprehensive Income for the 
year

 (9.77)  (9.77)

Total Comprehensive Income for the 
year

 -    -    -   1,09,933.97  (9.77)  1,09,924.20 

Interim Dividend (including dividend 
distribution tax)

 (14,428.16)  -    (14,428.16)

Transfer to retained earnings  -    -    -   
Any other changes  -    -    -   
Balance at the end of reporting 
period i.e. 31st March,2018  10,726.49  1,269.61  1,893.57 39,823.38 1,32,962.00  81.34  1,86,756.45 

The accompanying notes (1-56) are integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report of even date
For SCV & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

Ravi Jhunjhunwala 
Chairman, Managing 
Director & CEO
DIN No. 00060972

Riju Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00061060

Sanjiv Mohan 
Partner                                                                                
Membership No. 086066

Gulshan Kumar Sakhuja	
Chief Financial Officer	

Shekhar Agarwal
Vice Chairman
DIN No. 00066113

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Dated:  20th May, 2019

Vivek Chaudhary	
Company Secretary	
Membership No. A13263

D.N.Davar
Director
DIN No. 00002008
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended 
March 31, 2019

Year Ended 
March 31, 2018

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 4,67,707.88 1,60,470.97
Adjustment for non operating and non cash transactions
Depreciation and amortisation 7,239.20 7,255.76
Interest paid 1,796.90 5,641.88
Net(Profit)/Loss on property, plant and equipment sold / discarded 335.49 (321.47)
Allowances for expected credit losses 534.52 (782.98)
Bad debts 22.30 205.02
Gain on sale/fair valuation of investments (5,148.84) (5.21)
Interest received (4,974.75) (42.07)
Adjustments for changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables (21,976.86) (60,612.15)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (79,695.10) (25,363.82)
(Increase)/Decrease in loans, financial and Other assets (71,217.68) (6,008.10)
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities and provisions  14,584.50 31,304.95
Cash generated from operations  3,09,207.56  1,11,742.79 
Income tax paid  1,62,664.83 52,337.04
Net Cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,46,542.74 59,405.76

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition in property, plant and equipment (net)   (4,878.82) (2,003.44)
Sale of property, plant and equipment  106.99 581.35
(Increase)/Decrease in advances for capital expenditure  1,140.28 251.27
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors for capital expenditure  369.58 98.28
(Purchase)/Sale of investments  (66,629.16) 63.12
Interest received  4,594.00  91.93 
Net Cash used in investing activities (B)  (65,297.12)  (917.49)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings (Non-Current) (Refer Note 53)  -   (27,195.06)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of borrowings (Current) (working capital) (Refer 
Note 53)

 36,890.98  (11,438.11)

Interest paid  (1,796.90)  (5,734.71)
Dividend paid  (31,967.31)  (11,987.74)
Dividend distribution tax paid  (6,570.92)  (2,440.42)
Buyback of equity share capital  (75,402.72)  -   
Net Cash used in financing  activities (C)  (78,846.87)  (58,796.04)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)  2,398.74  (307.78)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  517.18 824.96
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  2,915.91  517.18 

The accompanying notes (1-56) are integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report of even date
For SCV & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

Ravi Jhunjhunwala 
Chairman, Managing 
Director & CEO
DIN No. 00060972

Riju Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00061060

Sanjiv Mohan 
Partner                                                                                
Membership No. 086066

Gulshan Kumar Sakhuja	
Chief Financial Officer	

Shekhar Agarwal
Vice Chairman
DIN No. 00066113

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Dated:  20th May, 2019

Vivek Chaudhary	
Company Secretary	
Membership No. A13263

D.N.Davar
Director
DIN No. 00002008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

1.	 General Information

	 “HEG Limited (the ‘Company’), incorporated in 1972, is a 
leading manufacturer and exporter of Graphite Electrodes 
in India and operates the world’s largest single-site 
integrated Graphite Electrodes plant. The Company also 
operates three power generation facilities with a total 
capacity of about 76.5 MW.

	 The Company is a public limited company incorporated and 
domiciled in India, has its registered office at Mandideep, 
Bhopal, Madhya Pradesh and is listed on Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange 
(NSE). 	

	 The financial statements are authorized for issue by the 
Company’s Board of Directors on 20th May, 2019.  

2.	 Significant accounting policies, significant 
accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
and applicability of new and revised Ind AS

2.1	 Basis of preparation

(i)	 Compliance with Ind AS

	 The standalone financial statements comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment issued thereafter.

(ii)	 The financial statements have been prepared on historical 
cost basis except for the following

-	 Certain financial instruments (including derivative 
instruments) are measured at fair value

(iii)	 The Company has applied the following standards for the 
first time for their annual reporting period commencing 
1st April, 2018

	 Ind AS 115, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

	 Adoption of Ind AS 115 did not have any significant impact 
on the amounts recognized in prior, current and future 
period.

	 These policies have been consistently applied to all the 
years presented unless otherwise stated.

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees 
(INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs and 
two decimals thereof, except otherwise stated.

2.2	 Basis of Consolidation

	 The financial statements relates to the Company and 
its Associates. An associate is an entity over which the 
Company has significant influence. Significant influence 

is the power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint 
control over those policies. The financial statements have 
been prepared on the following basis:-

a.	 Interest in Associates is consolidated using equity method 
as per Ind AS 28 – ‘Investment in Associates and Joint 
Ventures’. Under the equity method, an investment in an 
associate is initially recognized in the financial statements 
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize Company’s 
share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
of the associate. Distributions received from an associate 
reduce the carrying amount of the investment. 

b.	 When there has been a change recognized directly in the 
equity of the associate, the Company recognizes its share 
of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of 
changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting 
from transactions between the Company and the Associate 
are eliminated to the extent of interest in the associate

c.	 The financial statements are prepared using uniform 
accounting policies for like transactions and other events 
in similar circumstances and are presented in the same 
manner as the Company’s separate financial statements.

d.	 The aggregate of Company’s share of profit or loss of an 
associate is shown on the face of the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

2.3	 Revenue Recognition

	 The Company derives revenue primarily from sale of 
Graphite Electrodes.

      Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the 
cumulative catch up transition method, applied to 
contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. 
In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition 
method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively 
adjusted. The following is a summary of new and/or 
revised significant accounting policies related to revenue 
recognition.  The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was 
insignificant as  the revenue is of short term nature and 
performance obligations are satisfied upon delivery of 
goods.  

      	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for returns, 
discounts, value added taxes and amounts collected on 
behalf of third parties.  

(i)	 Sale of Graphite Electrodes 

     	 Revenue is recognized as and when Graphite Electrode 
is sold.  Revenue from the sale of Graphite Electrode is 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

recognised when control of the goods is passed to the 
buyer i.e. at the point of sale / delivery to the customer 
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those 
goods.  Sales is net of sales returns, discounts and goods 
and services tax.  

(ii)	  Power

	 Revenue from power generation is recognized on 
transmission of electricity to SEB or third parties

(a)	 Power generated at the power plants is primarily 
consumed by the manufacturing units and excess power 
is sold to SEBs/IEX which is included in the sales as below:

-	 Power is transferred to Graphite unit at MPEB rate. 

-	 Excess power generated is sold to SEB’s at rate stipulated 
by SEB’s and/or IEX at market rate equivalent.

(b)	 Inter-divisional sales comprising of sale of power from 
power plants to Graphite unit is reduced from revenue 
from operations in deriving net revenue.

(iii)	 Other Income

(a)	 Revenue in respect of Export Incentives is accounted on 
post export basis.

(b)	 Entitlements to Renewal Energy Certificates owing 
to generation of power at Tawa Hydel Power Plant 
are recognized to the extent sold at actual rate of net 
realization.

(c)	 Revenue in respect of interest from customers is 
recognized when no significant uncertainty exists with 
regard to the amount to be realized and the ultimate 
collection thereof. Other interest income is recognized 
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

(d)	 Revenue in respect of other income is recognized when no 
significant uncertainty exists with regard to the amount to 
be realized and the ultimate collection thereof

(iv)	 Dividends

	 Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive 
payment is established.

2.3  Inventories

	 Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, 
whichever is lower except by-products which are valued 
at net realizable value. The cost in respect of the various 
items of inventory is computed as under:

(i)	 In case of finished goods and work-in-progress, cost 
of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of 
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing them to 
their respective present location and condition. 

(ii)	 In case of stores, spares and raw material at weighted 
average cost. The cost includes cost of purchase and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition.

(iii)	 Obsolete stocks are identified at each reporting date on 
the basis of technical evaluation and are charged off to 
revenue.

2.4 	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Freehold Land is carried at historical cost. All other items 
of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at historical 
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. 
Historical cost includes its purchase price (net of taxes 
and duty recoverable), after deducting trade discounts 
and rebates. It includes other costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended 
by management and the borrowing costs for qualifying 
assets and the initial estimate of restoration cost if the 
recognition criteria are met.

	 When significant parts of plant and equipment are required 
to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them 
separately based on their specific useful lives.

	 Subsequent cost relating to Property, Plant and Equipment 
is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item  will flow to the Company 
and the costs of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs 
and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss when incurred.

	 An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any 
significant part initially recognized is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of 
the asset measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
is included in the income statement when the asset is 
derecognized.

2.5 	 Investment Property

	 Investment Property comprises freehold land and building 
(including property under construction) that are held for 
long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation and 
both are classified as investment property. Investment 
properties are measured initially at cost, comprising the 
purchase price and directly attributable transaction cost. 
Subsequently, investment property is carried at cost 
model, which is cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses if any in similar lines of Ind AS 16.  

	 An investment property is derecognized on disposal or 
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

from use and no future economic benefits are expected 
from its disposal. Gains or losses arising on derecognition 
of investment property are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in 
the period of the retirement or disposal. 

2.6  Intangible Assets

	 Intangible Assets are recognized when it is probable that 
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable 
to the asset will flow to the entity; and the cost of the asset 
can be measured reliably.

	 Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on 
initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets are stated at 
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment , if 
any. 

	 The cost and related accumulated amortization are 
eliminated from financial statements upon disposal or 
retirement of the assets and the resulted gain or losses 
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible 
asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
when the asset is derecognized.

2.7  Depreciation

	 (A)	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Based on internal assessment and independent technical 
evaluation carried out by external valuer. The Management 
believes that the useful life of the assets as stated below 
best represents the life over which the management 
expects to use the assets. Hence the useful life for these 
assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed 
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 The method of depreciation and useful life considered on 
different assets is as below:

(i)	 Depreciation on all the assets at Hydel Power Project at 
Tawa is provided on Straight Line Method. The useful life 
of assets determined is as below:

Sl. 
No. Description of Asset

Rate of 
Deprecia-

tion (%)

Useful Life  
(Approx)

1 Factory Building 3.02 33

2 Non Factory Building 3.02 33

3 Plant and Machinery

 

i) Dams, Spillways weirs, 
canals, Reinforced 
Concrete Flumes and 
symphons

1.95 51

 ii) Hydraulic control valves 
and other hydraulic works 3.40 30

 iii) Transformers having a 
rating of 100 KVA and over 7.81 13

4 Electrical Installation

 i) Batteries 33.40 3

 
ii) Lines on Fabricated 
steel operating at normal 
voltages higher than 66 kv

5.27 19

 iii) Residual 7.84 13

5 Furniture and Fixtures 12.77 8

6 Office Equipment and 
other assets 12.77 8

7 Vehicles 33.40 3

(ii)	 On the assets other than those mentioned at (i) above, 
depreciation is provided on following basis:

	 In case of Plant and Machinery, depreciation is provided 
on Straight Line Method and in case of other assets on 
Written Down Method. The useful life of assets determined 
is as below:

Assets description Useful Life

Building 20 - 60 Years

Plant and Machinery  1-24 Years

Railway Siding 9 Years

Office Equipment(Includes Comput-
ers and data processing units)  5-20 Years

Electrical Installation  5-20 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 15 Years

Vehicle  5-10 Years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

(iii)  Cost of acquisition and improvement of lease hold land is 
amortized over the lease period.

(iv) 	 Assets costing upto ̀ 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year 
of purchase.

(v) 	 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

(vi) 	 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all its Property, Plant 
and Equipment recognized as at 1st April, 2016 measured 
as per previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its 
deemed cost of the Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B)	 Investment Property

	 Investment Property is depreciated using Written Down 
Value method over their estimated useful life. Investment 
property generally has a useful life of 58 years. Useful life 
has been determined as prescribed in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013.

2.8 	 Amortization

	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible Assets are amortized over their respective 
individual useful lives on a straight line basis from date 
they are available. The estimated useful life is based on 
number of factors including effect of obsolesce and other 
economic factors and are as under

Assets description Useful Life

Computer Software 05 Years

	 Amortisation method, useful lives and residual value are 
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

	 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all intangible assets 
recognized  as at 1st April,2016, measured as per previous 
GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of 
intangible assets.

2.9 	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

	 Intangible assets, Investment Property and Property, Plant 
and Equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount 
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the 
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis 
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are 

largely independent of those from other assets. In such 
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

	 If such assets are considered to be impaired, the 
impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying 
value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable 
amount of the asset. 

	 An impairment loss is reversed in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable 
amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined (net 
of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 
years.

	 Impairment is reviewed periodically, including at each 
financial year end.

2.10	 Foreign Exchange Transactions/Translation

(a)   	Functional Currency

	 The financial statements are presented in INR, which is 
the Company’s functional currency.

	 Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s 
functional currency are recognized at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of 
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at 
that date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement 
of monetary items or on translating monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they were translated on 
initial recognition during the period or in previous financial 
statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in 
which they arise.

	 Non monetary items denominated in foreign currency and 
measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange 
rate prevalent at the date of transition.

	 Effective 1st April, 2018 the Company has adopted 
Appendix B to Ind AS 21. Foreign Currency Transactions 
and Advance Consideration which clarifies the date of 
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange 
rate to use on initial recognition of a related asset, 
expense or income where an entity has received  or paid 
advance consideration in a foreign currency. The effect is 
insignificant.
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2.11 Employee Benefits

(A) 	 Post Employment Benefits

	 (a) Defined Contribution Plan

(i) 	 Provident Fund

	 The Company makes contribution to statutory 
Provident Fund in accordance with Employees 
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 
1952 which is a Defined Contribution Plan and 
contribution paid or payable is recognized as an 
expense in the period in which services are rendered 
by the employee.

(ii)	 Superannuation 

	 The Company makes contribution to Hindustan Electro 
Graphites Ltd. Senior Executive Superannuation Fund 
Trust and contribution paid or payable is recognized 
as an expense in the period in which services are 
rendered by the employee.

	 (b) Defined Benefit Plan

(i)	 Gratuity

	 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit 
retirement plan “The gratuity plan” covering eligible 
employees. The gratuity plan provides for lump sum 
payment to vested employee at retirement, death, 
incapacitation or termination of employee of an 
amount based on  the respective employees salary 
and the tenure of employment with the Company.

	 Liability with regard to Gratuity Plan are determined 
by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent 
actuary at each Balance sheet date using the project 
unit credit method.

	 The Company fully contributes all ascertained 
liabilities to the Hindustan Electro Graphites Staff 
Gratuity Fund Trust (The Trust), trustees administers 
the  contributions made to the trust and contribution 
are invested in a scheme with Life Corporation of 
India as permitted by Indian Law.

	 Gains and losses through re-measurements of the 
net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in 
Other Comprehensive Income. The actual return of 
the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields 
computed by applying the discount rate used to 
measure the defined benefit obligations is recognized 
in Other Comprehensive Income. The effect of any 
plan amendments are recognized in net profits in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 The Company recognized the net obligation in the 
Balance Sheet as an asset or liability.

(B) 	 Short term and other long term employee benefits

	 A liability is recognized for the benefits accruing to 
employees in respect of wages and salaries, and annual 
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the 
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid 
in exchange for that service.

	 Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee 
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related 
service.

	 Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term 
employee benefits are measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made 
by the Company in respect of services provided by the 
employees upto the reporting date.

(i) 	 Compensated Absences

	 The expected cost of accumulating compensated 
absences is determined by actuarial valuation 
performed by an independent actuary at each balance 
sheet date using projected unit credit method on 
the additional amount expected to be paid/ availed 
as a result of the unused entitlement that has 
accumulated at the balance sheet date. 

	 Expense in respect of non accumulated absences is 
recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payable 
for the period during which services are rendered by 
the employee.

(ii) 	 Other Short Term Benefits

	 Expense in respect of other short term benefits is 
recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payable 
for the period during which services are rendered by 
the employee.

2.12	 Leases

	 Where the Company is a Lessee

(i)	 Leases under which the Company assumes 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
are classified as finance leases. When acquired, such 
assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of 
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the 
lease, whichever is lower.

(ii)	 Leases in which a significant portion of risks and 
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the 
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases.

     	 Payments made under operating leases are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on 
straight line basis over the period of the lease unless 
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the payments are structured solely to increase in line 
with expected general inflation to compensate for the 
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Where the Company is a Lessor

	 Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts 
are structured to increase in line with expected general 
inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost 
increases. The respective leased assets are included in the 
Balance Sheet based on their nature. 		

2.13	 Segment Accounting and Reporting

	 The chief operational decision maker monitors the 
operating results of its business segments separately for 
the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation 
and performance assessment. Segment performance 
is evaluated based on profit and loss and is measured 
consistently with profit and loss in the financial statements.

	 The Operating Segments have been identified on the basis 
of the nature of products/services.

(1)	 Segment Revenue includes sales and other income 
directly identifiable with/ allocable to the segment 
including inter- segment revenue.

(2)	 Expenses that are directly identifiable with/ allocable 
to the segments are considered for determining the 
segment result. Expenses not allocable to segments 
are included under unallocable expenditure.

(3)	 Income not allocable to the segments is included in 
unallocable income.

(4)	 Segment results includes margin on inter segment 
and sales which are reduced in arriving at the profit 
before tax of the Company.

(5)	 Segment assets and Liabilities include those directly 
identifiable with the respective segments. Assets and 
liabilities not allocable to any segment are classified 
under unallocable category.

2.14	 Income Tax

	 Income Tax expense comprises of current and deferred 
income tax.

	 Current income tax

	 Current income tax for current and prior periods is 
recognized at the amount expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities using tax rates and tax laws used to compute 
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted, at the reporting date. Income tax expense is 

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to 
the extent that it relates to the items recognized directly in 
equity and Other Comprehensive Income. 

	 Deferred Income Tax

	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized 
using the balance sheet approach on temporary 
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 
financial statements.

	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are 
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which 
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered 
or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income 
or expense in the period that includes the enactment or 
the substantive enactment date.

	 A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences and 
tax losses can be utilized. 

	 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
related tax benefits will be realized to allow all or part 
of the deferred tax assets to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting 
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become 
probable that future taxable profits will allow deferred tax 
assets to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been 
set off as it relates to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority.

	 MAT credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the 
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will 
pay normal income tax during the specified period.  In the 
year in which the Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit 
becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset. The said 
asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement grouped 
with deferred tax assets (net) in the financial statements.

2.15	 Government Grants

	 The Government Grants are recognized only when there is 
reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them 
shall be complied with, and the grants will be received.

	 Government grants related to assets are treated as 
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deferred income and are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the 
useful life of the asset. 

	 Government grants related to revenue are recognized on 
a systematic basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
over the periods necessary to match them with the related 
costs which they are intended to compensate.

2.16	 Borrowing Cost

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of items of Property, Plant and Equipment 
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the 
cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which 
they are incurred.

2.17	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities

	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, for which it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.

	 As the timing of outflow of resources is uncertain, being 
dependent upon the outcome of the future proceedings, 
these provisions are not discounted to their present value. 

	 A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, 
but probably will not require an outflow of resources. 
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

	 Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial 
statements since this may result in the recognition of 
income that may never be accrued/ realised.	           

2.18	 Earnings Per Share

	 Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing 
the profit  for the period attributable to the equity holders 
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. 

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders is divided by the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding during the period after adjusting for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any. 

2.19	 Financial instruments 

	 (i)	 Initial recognition

	 The Company recognizes financial assets and financial 
liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and 
liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition 
except for trade receivables which are initially measured 
at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets 
and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through 
profit or loss, are added to or deducted from the fair value 
of the financial assets or  financial liabilities on initial 
recognition. 

      Transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets and financial liabilities at value through 
Profit or Loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss

	 (ii) Subsequent measurement

	 For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial 
assets are classified in three broad categories:-

A. 	 Non-derivative financial instruments 

(a) 	 Financial assets carried at amortized cost

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at 
amortized cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of 
the financial instrument give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair 
value through Other Comprehensive Income if it 
is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

      The Company can make an irrevocable election for 
its investments which are classified as equity 
instruments to present the subsequent changes in 
fair value in Other Comprehensive Income based on 
its business model. These elected investments are 
initially measured at fair value plus transaction cost , 
subsequently in cases where the Company has made 
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an irrevocable election based on its business model, 
for its investments which are classified as equity 
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value 
are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

(c)	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	 A financial asset which is not classified in any of the 
above categories is subsequently fair valued through 
profit or loss.

(d)  	 Financial liabilities

	 Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
except for contingent consideration recognized 
in a business combination which is subsequently 
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For 
trade and other payables maturing within one year 
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount 
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of 
these instruments.

(e) 	 Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint 
Ventures

	 Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint 
Ventures is carried at cost in the separate financial 
statements.

B.   	 Derivative financial instruments

	 The Company holds derivative financial instruments 
such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to 
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign 
currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts 
is generally a bank.

(a)	 Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value 
through profit or loss.

	 This category has derivative financial assets or 
liabilities which are not designated as hedges. 
Although the Company believes that these derivatives 
constitute hedges from an economic perspective, 
they may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind 
AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is 
either not designated a hedge, or is so designated 
but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized 
as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair value 
through profit or loss.

(b)	 Cash flow hedge

	 Company designates certain foreign exchange forward 
contracts and option contracts as cash flow hedges 
to mitigate the risk of foreign exchange exposure on 
highly probable forecast cash transactions. 

	 When a derivative is designated as a cash flow 
hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes 
in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in 
Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated 
in the cash flow hedging reserve. Any ineffective 
portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative 
is recognized immediately in the net profit in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging 
instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued 
prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or 
is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain 
or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash 
flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was 
effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until 
the forecasted transaction occurs. The cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow 
hedging reserve is transferred to the net profit in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of 
the related forecasted transaction. If the forecasted 
transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the 
amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve 
is reclassified to net profit in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

(iii)	  Impairment of Financial Assets

	 The Company recognizes loss allowances using the 
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial 
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant 
financing component is measured at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit 
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month 
ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk from initial recognition in which case those 
are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected 
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the 
loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is 
required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment 
gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv)  	Derecognition

	 A financial asset (or, a part of a financial asset) is primarily 
derecognized when:

(a)	 The contractual right to receive cash flows from the 
financial assets expire, or

(b)	 The Company transfers the financial assets or its 
right to receive cash flow from the financial assets 
and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party.
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	 A financial liability (or a part of financial liability) is 
derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(v)  	 Reclassification of financial assets

	 The Company determines classification of financial assets 
and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, 
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are 
equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial 
assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is 
made only if there is a change in the business model for 
managing those assets. Changes to the business model 
are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior 
management determines change in the business model 
as a result of external or internal changes which are 
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes 
are evident to external parties. A change in the business 
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases 
to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 
If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification 
date which is the first day of the immediately next 
reporting period following the change in business model. 
The Company does not restate any previously recognised 
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or 
interest.

C. 	 Share capital

	 Ordinary shares

	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental 
costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary 
shares and Buyback of equity shares and  share options 
are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax 
effects.

2.20	 Fair Value Measurement
	 The Company measures financial instruments such as 

derivatives and certain investments, at the fair value at 
each Balance Sheet date.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. 
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either: 

(i) 	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(ii) 	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the assets or liabilities.  

	 The principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Company.

	 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 
the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest.

	 A fair value measurement of the non-financial assets takes 
into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the assets in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use 
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

	 Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity 
can access at the measurement date

	 Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable

	 Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Balance 
Sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the 
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period.

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has 
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability 
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.21	 Cash Flow Statement

	 The Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with 
the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) – 7 “Statement 
of Cash flows” using the indirect method for operating 
activities.
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2.22	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 The Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet 
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 
deposits with a maturity period of three months or 
less from the acquisition date, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.23	 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and 
assumptions

	 In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, 
which are described as stated above, the directors of the 
Company are required to make judgements, estimates 

and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

 	 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is 
revised if the revision affects only the period of the revision 
and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

Following are the details of year wise minimum lease obligation under leasehold land		
	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended  31st March, 2019 Year Ended  31st March, 2018

Minimum 
payments

Present value of 
payments

Minimum 
payments

Present value of 
payments

Within one year  5.45  4.95  5.45  4.95 
After one year but not more than 5 years  21.79  15.69  21.79  15.69 
More than 5 years  103.11  21.87  108.56  22.95 
Total minimum lease payments  130.34  42.51  135.79  43.59 

Less: amount representing finance charges  87.84  92.20  -   

Present value of minimum lease payments  42.51  42.51  43.59  43.59 

c) Property , Plant & Equipment pledged as security	 			 

Refer to note no. 49 for information on Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security by the Company.

Note: 5 Capital Work In Progress	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

 Plant and Equipment under erection/installation  1,857.51  161.45 
 Capital work in progress includes capital stores `17.69  Lakhs  (Previous year `23.43 Lakhs).

For details on Capital Commitments refer Note - 38(2) 				  

Note: 6 Investment Property 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Building Property under 
construction Total

Gross Block
As at 1st April, 2017  391.59  46.09  437.68 
Additions  49.23  3.14  52.37 
Disposals  -    (49.23)  (49.23)
As at 31st March, 2018 (a)  440.83  -  440.83 
Additions  -    -   
Disposals/Capitalized  -    -   
As at 31st March, 2019 (b)  440.83  -  440.83 
Amortisation
At 1st April, 2017  52.17  -    52.17 
Charge for the year  16.86  16.86 
Disposals  -    -    -   
As at 31st March, 2018 (c ) 69.03 - 69.03
Charge for the year  17.66  17.66 
Disposals  -    -    -   
As at 31st March, 2019 (d)  86.69  -    86.69 
Net Block
As at 31 March, 2018 (a-c)  371.80  - 371.80
As at 31st March, 2019 (b-d)  354.14 - 354.14

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Rental income  81.06  52.37 
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income  4.54  4.31 
Profit from Investment Properties before depreciation  76.53  48.06 
Depreciation  17.66  16.86 
Profit from Investment Properties  58.86  31.20 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

(ii) Fair value of Investment Property	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Fair value of Investment Property  5,344.03  2,294.12 

The Company obtains independent valuation for its properties annually. The best evidence of fair value is current market prices in 
an active market for similar properties.							     

The fair values of investment properties have been determined by the independent chartered valuer. All fair value estimates for 
Investment properties are included in level 1.	
						    
Note: 7 Intangible Assets (Computer Softwares)	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount

Gross Block
As at 1st April, 2017  451.68 
Additions  39.10 
Disposals  -   
As at 31st March, 2018 (a)  490.78 
Additions  8.50 
Disposals  -   
As at 31st March, 2019 (b)  499.28 
Amortisation
As at 1st April, 2017 449.87
Charge for the year 6.09
Disposals  -   
As at 31 March, 2018 (c ) 455.96
Charge for the year  8.10 
Disposals  -   
As at 31st March, 2019 (d)  464.06 
Net Block
As at 31 March, 2018 (a-c) 34.82
As at 31st March, 2019 (b-d)  35.22 

Note: 8  Investments 	 (` in Lakhs)

Non - current Current

No. of 
Units Particulars Face 

Value

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018
A. Investments carried at cost

 Investments in Equity Instruments
(a) Equity Instruments of Subsidiary Companies 

(Unquoted)
HEG Graphite Products and Services Ltd.

NIL NIL Equity Shares of `10 each fully paid up 10 - 5.00 - -

Less: Provision for impairment in value of 
investments (Refer Note 1)

 -    -    -    -   

Less: Written off during the year (Refer Note 1)  -    5.00 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

Non - current Current

No. of 
Units Particulars

Face 
Value

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018
Carrying Value -  -   

(b) Equity Instruments in Associate Companies 
(Unquoted)

4,88,81,556 (Previous year 4,88,81,556) Equity Shares of `10/- 
each fully paid up of  Bhilwara Energy Ltd.

10 14506.88 14,506.88 - -

12,62,048 (Previous year 12,62,048 ) Equity Shares of `10/- 
each  fully paid up of Bhilwara Infotechnology Ltd  
(erstwhile Bhilwara Infotech Ltd.)

10 419.00 419.00 - -

Add: Share of profit in Associates up to reporting date  -    7,468.75  9,890.67 -
Total 22,394.63 24,816.55 - -

B. Investments carried at Fair Value through profit 
or loss

(a) Equity Instruments in Other Companies (Quoted)
18 (Previous year 18) Equity Shares of ` 2/-each of 

Ballarpur Ind. Ltd. 
2 0.01 0.01 - -

(b)  Investments in Fixed Maturity Plans Scheme 
(Quoted)

10,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Prudential FMP Series 
83 1406 Days Plan D- Direct Growth

10  10,944.90  -    -   -

2,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Prudential -FMP -Sr 83 
- 1100 Days Plan

10  2,690.05  -    -   -

2,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) SBI Debt Fund Series C-19 
(1100 days)

10  2,685.33  -    -   -

75,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Axis Fixed Term Plan - Series 
95 (1185 days)

10  807.20  -    -   -

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Kotak FMP Series 235 - 1140 10  1,610.15  -    -   -
5,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-

XXXVIII-Series 6
10  5,328.90  -    -   -

1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-
XXXIX-Series 6

10  1,072.39 - - -

1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ABSL FTP Series QN 10  1,069.90  -    -   -
1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) SDFS C20 - 1100 Days 10  1,603.65  -    -   -
2,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) HDFC FMP 1105D August 

2018 (1)
10  2,659.23  -    -   -

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) HDFC FMP 1105D August 
2018 (2)

10  1,595.54 - - -

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Kotak FMP Series 240-1160 10  1,599.72  -    -   -
1,70,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Aditya Birla Sunlife Fixed 

Term Plan Series QV (1100 days)
10  1,807.75  -    -   -

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Aditya Birla Sunlife Fixed 
Term Plan Series QU (1100 days)

10  1,596.11  -    -   -

3,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Aditya Birla Sunlife Fixed 
Term Plan Series RN (1240 days)

10  3,151.20 - - -

2,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Pru Fixed Maturity 
Plan-Sr 84 - 1245 days Plan N

10  2,103.50 - - -

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) RELIANCE FX HRZ FUND 
XXXIX S15

10  1,580.33 - - -

1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Pru Fixed Maturity 
Plan-Sr 84 - 1288 days Plan O

10  1,048.90 - - -

1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Kotak FMP Series 251-1265 days 10  1,050.67 - - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

Non - current Current

No. of 
Units Particulars

Face 
Value

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018
1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) HDFC FMT 1246D November, 

2018 (1) - Series 43
10  1,049.51 - - -

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Kotak FMP Series 242-1152 10  1,596.99  -    -   -
1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Kotak FMP Series 243 - 1319 

days
10  1,608.50  -    -   -

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) UTI Fixed Term Income Fund 
Series XXX - II (1107 days)

10  1,595.91  -    -   -

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-
XXXIX Series 2

10  1,611.23  -    -   -

1,20,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Prudential -FMP 
-Series 83 - 1101 Days Plan Z

10  1,276.33  -    -   -

2,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Aditya Birala Sunlife Fixed 
Term Plan Series RC (1295 days)

10  2,129.74  -    -   -

1,00,00,000 (Previous Year-NIL) Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-
XXXIX Series 9

10  1,063.48  -    -   -

(c)  Investments in Mutual Funds
 68,061.75 (Previous Year-NIL) HDFC Mutual Fund 1,000 - -  2,503.51 -

 9,05,745.25 (Previous Year-NIL) ICICI Mutual Fund 100 - -  2,503.63 -
 38,912.92 (Previous Year-NIL) Invesco India Liquid Fund 1,000 - -  1,001.01 -

(d)  Investments in Non Convertible 
Debentures(Quoted)

200 (Previous Year-NIL) KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME 
LIMITED - BR NCD 30JL19 FVRS10LAC

10,00,000 -  -    2,126.60  -   

250 (Previous Year-NIL) HDB FINANCIAL SERVICES 
LIMITED - SR-A/1/77 8.48 NCD 13MY19 
FVRS10LAC

10,00,000 - -  2,689.24 -

150 (Previous Year-NIL) HDB FINANCIAL SERVICES 
LIMITED - SR A/0(ML)/1 BR NCD 31JL20 
FVRS10LAC

10,00,000  1,516.05 - - -

150 (Previous Year-NIL) HDB FINANCIAL SERVICES 
LIMITED - SR 2019 A/0(ML)/2 BR NCD 04FB21 
FVRS10LAC

10,00,000  1,500.90 - - -

Total  83,348.65  24,816.56  10,823.99  -   

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  60,954.02  0.01  10,823.99  -   
Market value of quoted investments  60,954.02  **  10,823.99  -   
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  22,394.63  14,925.87 - -
Aggregate amount for impairment in value of 
investments

- -  -   -

(**)Amount is below the rounding off norm 
adopted by the Company

Note 1 :-	The name of M/s HEG Graphite Product and Service Pvt. Ltd., has been struck off from the Registrar of Companies under 
the provision of sub section (5) of section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the Company stand dissolved.

In view thereof the investment made in the equity of M/s HEG Graphite Product and  Service Pvt. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company 
has been written off during the previous  year.					   

Note 2 :-	Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets					   
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

Note: 9 Trade Receivables	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

a) Trade Receivable considered good-Secured  -    -   
b) Trade Receivable considered good-Unsecured  1,18,459.25  96,844.96 
c) Trade Receivable which have significant increase in Credit Risk; and  483.66  492.76 
d) Trade Receivable credit impaired  691.76  390.13 
Less: Loss allowance for doubtful receivables (other than covered 
under ECGC cover)

 (945.73)  (458.94)

e) Debts due from Directors or Other Officers of the Company or any of 
them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by 
firms or private company respectively in which any director is a partner 
or a director or a member.

 -    -   

Total  1,18,688.94  97,268.90 

Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets

Note: 10  Financial Assets-Loans	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Security deposits  1,092.32  721.72 - -
Loans to employees
a) Loans to employees considered good-Secured  -    -    -    -   
b) Loans to employees  considered good-
Unsecured

 26.24  21.42  62.01  64.55 

c) Loans to employees  which have significant 
increase in Credit Risk; and

 -    -    -    -   

d) Loans to employees  credit impaired  -    -    -    -   
Total  1,118.56  743.14  62.01  64.55 

Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets

Note: 11 Other Financial Assets		 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Interest accrued but Not due  -    -    465.79  85.04 
Derivative Financial Instruments - -  72.40  24.39 

Total  -    -    538.19  109.43 

Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

Note: 12  Other  Assets	 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Unsecured, considered good unless stated 
otherwise
Capital Advances  1,391.54  251.27  -    -   
Other Advances considered good - Unsecured  -  -  2,361.69  1,994.94 
Advances to related parties  -    -    3.28  3.28 
Prepaid expenses  12.04  13.08  988.06  864.44 
Balances with statutory authorities  -  -  8,291.26  2,092.67 
Excise Rebates / GST Refunds receivable  -  -  4,770.12  692.00 
Payments under protest (other than direct taxes)  323.46  303.81  -  - 
Export Benefits Receivable (including MEIS 
Licenses in hand)

 -  -  9,882.24  6,252.96 

Other Employee Advances - -  103.31  63.86 
Gratuity Fund receivable (also refer note 40)  -  -  157.48  151.64 
Others - -  309.49  9.11 
Total  1,727.04  568.15  26,866.93  12,124.91 

a) Detail of payments under protest (other than direct taxes) is as follows:	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Entry Tax  197.22  197.22 
Central Sales Tax  24.53  24.53 
Excise duty/Service Tax  79.57  59.92 
MPST/MPCT  3.29  3.29 
Tax deducted at source  18.85  18.85 
Total  323.46  303.81 

Based on legal advice, discussions with the solicitors, etc., the management believes that there are fair chances of decisions in  
the Company’s favor in respect of all the items listed above and no value adjustment is considered necessary.

Note: 13  Inventories (Valued at Lower of Cost or Net Realizable Value)	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Raw materials  [Includes material in transit `23,809.22 Lakhs; Previous 
year: `7,017 Lakhs]

 50,355.48  19,959.18 

Finished goods  37,749.92  10,166.41 
Work-in-progress  39,650.33  17,528.15 
Stores and spares  3,082.92  3,489.80 
[Includes stores in transit `304.65 Lakhs ; Previous year: `183.97 
Lakhs]
Others (Refer Note (a))  0.03  0.03 
Total  1,30,838.68  51,143.57 

(a)  Others include Renewable Energy Credits in hand.				 

(b)  The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year in respect of continuing operations was `1,36,108.38 Lakhs  
(Previous year `57,010.98 Lakhs)				  



Co
rp

or
at

e 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ep
or

t
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

205

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

Note: 14 Cash and Cash Equivalents	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Balances with banks
    In Current accounts  2,505.50  161.01 
    In Cash Credit accounts  386.90  17.18 
Cheques, drafts on hand  20.06  333.96 
Cash on hand                                                                                              3.45  5.02 
Deposits with banks/financial Institutions  -   
Total  2,915.91  517.18 

Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets

Note: 15  Other Bank Balances 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Earmarked deposits with banks
a) As security against Raw Material LC*  16,590.43 -
b) Escrow Account for buyback of shares  900.02 -
c) Against Bank Gurantee*  254.10 -
d) Unpaid Dividend  431.95  245.28 
Deposits with banks/financial Institutions  34,640.00  -   
Total  52,816.50  245.28 

* (a) & (c ) includes Interest Accrued.
Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Assets

Note:16  Equity Share Capital 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Authorised
5,50,00,000  Equity Shares of `10/- each  5,500.00  5,500.00 

 5,500.00  5,500.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up
3,85,95,506  Equity Shares of `10/- each  3,859.55  3,995.91 
          1,150  Forfeited Equity Shares  0.04  0.04 
Total  3,859.59  3,995.95 

(a) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period	

Particulars  2018-19  2017-18 

No. of Shares (` in Lakhs) No. of Shares (` in Lakhs)

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year  3,99,59,142  3,995.91  3,99,59,142  3,995.91 
Change during the year - Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 (13,63,636)  (136.36)  -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the year  3,85,95,506  3,859.55  3,99,59,142  3,995.91 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

(b) 	Terms/Rights attached to equity shares			   		
	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of  ` 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one 

vote per share. The dividend (if any) proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting					   

						    
	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 

Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders. 

					   
	 During the year ended on 31st March, 2019, the Company has paid an amount of `50 per Equity Share (500%) as Final Dividend 

for the financial year 2017-18 to the equity shareholders of the Company and also `30 per share (300%) as Interim Dividend for 
the Financial Year 2018-19.					   

(c) Detail of Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder  As at  31st March, 2019  As at  31st March, 2018 

No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding 

Equity Shares
Norbury Investments Limited  53,62,991  13.90  53,62,991  13.42 
Microlight Investments Limited  46,65,579  12.09  46,65,579  11.68 
Life Insurance Corporation of India  32,32,046  8.37  33,33,963  8.34 
Bharat Investments Growth Limited  24,64,913  6.39  26,09,598  6.53 

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders 
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(d) Aggregate number of equity shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back for the period of five 
years immediately preceding the reporting date.

Particulars  Aggregate No. of Shares 

 2018-19  2017-18  2016-17  2015-16  2014-15 

 Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) 
without payment being received in cash 

 -    -    -    -    -   

 FCCB's Conversion  -    -    -    -    -   
 Shares bought back  13,63,636  -    -    -    -   

(e)	 Buyback of shares: During the year under review, the Company after obtaining Shareholders’ approval, had bought back  
13,63,636 (Thirteen lakhs sixty three thousand six hundred and thirty six) fully paid-up equity shares of face value of `10/- 
(Rupees ten only) each, representing approximately 3.41% of the total number of equity shares in the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as at 30 September 2018, from the shareholders/beneficial owners of equity shares of the Company as 
on the record date i.e. February 9, 2019 on a proportionate basis, through the “tender offer” under stock exchange mechanism 
route at a price of `5,500/- (Rupees five thousand five hundred only) per equity share for an amount of `7,49,99,98,000/- 
(Rupees Seven hundred forty nine crore ninety nine lakhs ninety eight thousand only) excluding expenses incurred in this 
connection thereto.

	 The break up of shares bought back and extinguished are as under:

a) Equity shares in Demat: 13,63,019

b) Physical shares: 617

Total        13,63,636

	 The Company concluded the Buyback proceedings on 29th March 2019 and equity shares were extinguished. The Company has 
utilized its Security Premium, General Reserves & Retained Earnings for Buyback of its equity shares and post completion of 
same, the paid up capital is reduced from `39,95,91,420/- (3,99,59,142 Equity Shares) to `38,59,55,060/- (3,85,95,506 Equity 
Shares).
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Note:17  Other Equity	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
A.   Capital Reserves

Balance as per the last financial statements  10,726.49  10,726.49 
Add: Additions during the year  -    -   
Closing balance  10,726.49  10,726.49 

B.   Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements  1,893.57  1,893.57 
Add: Amount transferred from Retained Earnings upon Buyback 
(Refer Note 16(e))

 136.36  -   

Closing balance  2,029.93  1,893.57 
C.   Securities Premium

Balance as per the last financial statements  1,269.61  1,269.61 
Add/Less : Received/Utilized during the year (Refer Note 16(e))  (1,269.61)  -   
Closing balance  -    1,269.61 

D.   Retained Earnings
General Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements  39,823.38  39,823.38 
Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  -   -
Less: Amount utilized in Buyback of Shares(Refer Note 16(e))  39,823.38 -
Closing balance  -    39,823.38 
Surplus/(Deficit) balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per the last financial statements  1,32,962.00  37,456.19 
Add: Amount transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss  3,02,615.66  1,09,933.97 
Less: Dividend paid  31,967.31  11,987.74 
Less: Dividend distribution tax paid on dividend  6,570.92  2,440.42 
Less: Amount utilized in Buyback of Shares (Refer Note 16(e))  33,770.63 
Less: Buyback Exp. (net of Income Tax Benefit)  402.75 
Less: Amount Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve upon Buyback  136.36 
Closing balance  3,62,729.69  1,32,962.00 

E.  Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as per the last financial statements  81.34  91.12 
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans  (58.43)  (9.77)
Closing balance  22.91  81.34 

Total  3,75,509.02  1,86,756.45 
F.   Preference Share Capital

Authorised Preference Share Capital
15,00,000 (Previous year 15,00,000) Equity Shares of `10/- each  1,500.00  1,500.00 
Total  1,500.00  1,500.00 

The Company has not issued any Preference Shares till 31st March 2019. 

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES			 

1)  	Capital Reserve:			 
	 The Company created part of Capital Reserve on account of warrant money forfeited and part on profit made on hive off of Steel 

business .

2)  	Securities Premium:			 
	 Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.	

3)  	Capital Redemption Reserve:			 
	 The Company created Capital Redemption Reserve at the time of redemption of Preference Shares and Buyback of its own 

shares. The reserve can be utilised for issuing bonus shares.
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Note: 18  Borrowings	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Loans repayable on demand from banks 
Working Capital loans from banks  -    -    66,636.47  29,745.49 

Total  -    -    66,636.47  29,745.49 

Current Borrowings	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Maturity date Terms of 
Repayment  Interest Rate As at 31st 

March, 2019
As at 31st 

March, 2018
Loans repayable on demand Payable on 

Demand
Payable on 
Demand

At negotiated 
rates

Secured  54,336.47  29,745.49 
Working Capital from banks
Unsecured
Working Capital from banks  12,300.00   -   

Total  66,636.47  29,745.49 

a) 	 Working Capital Borrowings from banks are secured by hypothecation of  all stocks present and future, stores, spare parts, 
packing materials, raw  materials, finished goods, goods in transit / process,  book debts, outstanding monies receivable, 
claims, bills etc.					   

b) 	 Second charge by way of joint equitable mortgage of immovable properties of the Company in respect of Graphite & Thermal 
Power units at Mandideep and Hydel unit at Tawanagar. The said charge in favor of bank shall rank sub-ordinate and subservient 
to the existing charges created by the Company in favour of financial institutions and banks for their term loans.

Refer Note No. 49 for carrying amount of assets pledged as security for borrowings.

Note: 19 Trade Payables 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  398.82  245.97 
(B) Total outstanding dues of other creditors  37,608.08  24,398.46 
(C ) Total outstanding dues of other creditors-related parties  -    -   
Total  38,006.90  24,644.43 

The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“the Act”) has 
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified by the Company, on the basis of information and records available 
with them. This information has been relied upon by the auditors. The detail information relating to Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises is as under :-					   
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` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
(1) Principal amount remaining unpaid as at end of the year  398.82  245.97 
(2) Interest due on above  -    -   
a)   The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 

unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year(1+2)
 398.82  245.97 

b)   The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond 
the appointed day during each accounting year

 -  - 

c)   The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

 -  - 

d)   The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each accounting year

 -  - 

e)   The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 -  - 

Note: 20  Other Financial Liabilities	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Security Deposits - From outsiders  -    -    155.71  134.02 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  -    -    -    -   
Unpaid dividends-Unclaimed#  -    -    431.95  245.28 
Derivative Financial Instruments  -    -    -   
Creditors for capital goods  -    -    467.87  98.28 
Other payables  -    -   
      Employees related  -    -    9,555.99  4,057.53 
      Others  41.31 42.50  2,405.97  2,716.79 
Total  41.31  42.50  13,017.49  7,251.90 

# Unpaid dividend does not include any amount due and outstanding  required to be credited to the Investor’s Education and 
Protection Fund.					   

Refer Note: 48 for Classification of Financial Liabilities
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Note: 21  Provisions	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March,

 2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018

As at 
31st March, 

2019

As at 
31st March, 

2018
Provision for employee benefits

Compensated absences  387.08  340.90  67.08  68.75 
Provision for duties & taxes - -  1,910.83  548.13 
Total  387.08  340.90  1,977.91  616.88 

Note: 22  Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Deferred tax liabilities (A)
Property, plant and equipment  12,333.88  12,221.24 
Fair valuation of Investments  940.12  -   

Deferred tax assets (B)
Items deductable on payment basis  330.87  145.61 
Provision for doubtful debts and others  330.48  158.83 

Net Deferred tax Liability (A)-(B)  12,612.65  11,916.80 

Note: 23  Other Liabilities	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Non - current Current

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Deposits from employees against various 
schemes

 239.59  208.08  67.31  79.03 

Advance from Customers  -    -    98.80  1,485.65 
Statutory dues payable  -    -    1,205.03  3,128.54 
Other payables  -    -    233.89  155.00 
Total  239.59  208.08  1,605.03  4,848.22 

Note: 24  Current Tax Asset & Liabilities (Net)	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Income tax assets (net)  3,995.09  2,810.79 
Income tax liabilities (net)  (542.77)  (3,543.02)
 Total  3,452.32  (732.22)
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Note: 25  Revenue From Operations	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  31st March, 2019  Year Ended 31st March, 2018 

Sale of Products
Manufactured goods

Graphite Electrodes (Refer note 50 & 51)  6,42,911.38  2,66,542.40 
Power (Net of inter-divisional sales of `11,091.65   
Lakhs, Previous year  `19,422.65 Lakhs ) 

 720.22  6,43,631.60  664.32  2,67,206.73 

Other Operating Income
REC sales  163.53  1,080.82 
Fly Ash Income  171.30  225.28 
Export Incentives  15,316.09 15,650.92  7,327.61  8,633.71

Total  6,59,282.52  2,75,840.43 

Note: 26  Other Income	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Interest Income from financial assets measured at amortized cost  4,974.75  42.07 
rent received  88.68  59.75 
Net Gain on sale of current investment measured at Fair Value Through 
P&L

 1,151.21  5.21 

Net Gain on Fair Valuation of investments measured at Fair Value 
Through P&L

 3,997.63  -   

Liabilities / provisions, written back  255.71  428.54 
Net Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  -    321.47 
Miscellaneous receipts  451.20  379.78 
Total  10,919.18  1,236.82 

 Note: 27  Cost of  Material Consumed	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars  Year Ended  31st March, 2019  Year Ended 31st March, 2018 

Raw material consumed
Opening stock  12,942.18  1,770.38 
Add: Purchases                    1,74,788.06  68,752.58 

 1,87,730.24  70,522.96 
Less: Closing stock  26,546.27  12,942.18 
Cost of material consumed  1,61,183.97  57,580.79 
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Note: 28  Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-In-Progress and Stock-In-Trade	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Inventories at the end of the period
Finished goods  37,749.92  10,166.41 
Work-in-progress  39,650.33  17,528.15 
Total (A)  77,400.25  27,694.56 

Inventories at the beginning of the period
Finished goods  10,166.41  6,501.88 
Work-in-progress  17,528.15  11,845.08 
Total (B)  27,694.56  18,346.96 

Net Movement in Excise Duty on finished goods (C )  -    (434.84)

Total [(B)-(A)+(C )]  (49,705.69)  (9,782.44)

Note: 29  Employee  Benefit Expenses	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
 Salaries and wages  18,894.86  10,391.27 
 Contribution to provident and other funds  507.62  461.21 
 Staff welfare expenses  354.14  391.37 
Total  19,756.62  11,243.85 

Note: 30  Finance Cost	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Interest Expense

Term loans  -    2,417.28 
Working capital borrowings   1,788.46  2,078.66 
Exchange difference regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost  -    (3.79)
Interest cost on income tax  -    1,084.06 
Others  8.44  65.67 

Total  1,796.90  5,641.88 

Note: 31  Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Depreciation of tangible assets*  7,231.10  7,249.67 
Amortisation of intangible assets**  8.10  6.09 
Total  7,239.20  7,255.76 

* Refer note 4
** Refer note 7

Note: 32  Excise Duty	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Excise duty (Refer note 51)  -    833.82 
Total  -    833.82 
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Note: 33  Other Expenses 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Consumption of stores and spare parts (including Refractory Blocks)  11,644.50  7,603.22 
Job/Process charges  490.33  314.12 
Power and fuel  29,412.84  35,858.39 
Less: Interdivisional purchases  (11,091.65)  (19,422.65)
Repairs and maintenance 
       Plant and Machinery  4,897.33  4,406.94 
       Building  359.61  343.31 
       Others  801.81  603.09 
Insurance  892.16  363.89 
Rent (Refer Note 41)  89.13  85.97 
Rates and taxes  106.50  88.79 
Directors' sitting fees and incidental expenses  90.58  57.13 
Commission paid to Directors  200.00  -   
Freight & forwarding  12,656.73  8,659.67 
Packing expenses (including packing material consumption)  1,819.61  1,608.51 
Commission  2,862.14  3,174.54 
Claims and rebates  166.35  223.37 
Donations  10.34  2.25 
Contribution made to political parties  800.00  -   
Power generation charges  78.55  67.70 
Travelling expenses  408.65  232.45 
Postage and communication  86.31  68.47 
Payment to auditors (Refer details below*)  29.50  19.18 
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responcibility (Refer Note 43)  827.92  92.10 
Legal and professional expenses  1,257.68  416.50 
Vehicle running & maintenance  65.86  90.04 
Allowances for expected credit losses  534.52  (782.98)
Bad debts  22.30  205.02 
Duties and taxes  134.32  31.42 
Net Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment  335.49  -   
Foreign currency fluctuation  1,044.05  (1,473.35)
Miscellaneous expenses  1,189.36  895.54 
Total  62,222.82  43,832.62 

*Payments to the statutory auditors (excluding GST/Service Tax)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
As auditor

Statutory audit  12.50  12.50 
Other services

Tax Audit  2.00  2.00 
Management Services
Certification Fees  8.78  0.17 

Reimbursement of expenses  6.22  4.51 
Total  29.50  19.18 
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Note: 34  Tax Expense	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
A) Tax Expense Recognised in Profit and Loss
1) Current Tax  -   
Income tax  1,62,032.53  51,355.30 
Income tax -previous year  (97.89)  0.60 
2) Deferred tax  730.18  981.14 

 1,62,664.82  52,337.04 

B) Tax Expense on Other Comprehensive Income
1) Current tax  -    -   
2) Deferred tax  (34.33)  (12.46)

 (34.33)  (12.46)

C) Tax expense/(Income) relating to items that are charged or 
credited directly to equity 
1) Current tax  (216.33)  -   
2) Deferred tax  -    -   

 (216.33)  -   

Total  1,62,414.15  52,324.58 

(a) Effective Tax Reconciliation 		

Numerical reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the latest statutory enacted tax rate in India to income tax 
expense reported is as follows:		

	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations  4,67,707.88  1,60,470.97 
Profit/Loss before tax from a discontinued operation - -
Accounting profit before income tax  4,67,707.88  1,60,470.97 
At India's statutory income tax rate of 34.944% 34.944% 34.608%
Tax as per accounting profit (A)  1,63,435.84  55,535.79 

Tax impact of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable 
income: 
Difference on account of depreciation  (327.82)  (122.42)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable 
profits

 111.49  (206.75)

Benefit arising from previous tax losses  -    (2,870.19)
Differential tax rate on capital gain on sale of Investments/Fair 
Valuation on Investments

 (456.81)  -   

Income tax expense/(income) related to prior periods  (97.89)  0.60 
Tax impact of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable 
income (B): 

 (771.02)  (3,198.76)

Income Tax Expense reported in the statement of Profit and Loss (A+B)  1,62,664.82  52,337.04 

The applicable Indian corporate statutory tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is 34.944% and 
34.608%, respectively. The increase in the corporate statutory tax rate to 34.944% is consequent to changes made in the 
Finance Act, 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

(b) Reconciliation of Deferred tax asset/(liability)
(i) Movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2019 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 1st April, 
2018

Changes through 
profit and loss

Changes through 
OCI 

As at 
31st March, 2019

Deferred tax liabilities (A)
Property, Plant and Equipment  12,221.24  112.64  -    12,333.88 
Fair valuation of Investments  -    940.12  -    940.12 

Deferred tax assets (B)
Items deductible on payment basis  145.61  150.93  34.33  330.87 
Provision for doubtful debts and others  158.83  171.65  -    330.48 

(ii) Movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2018  	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 1st April, 
2018

Changes through 
profit and loss

Changes through 
OCI 

As at 
31st March, 2019

Deferred tax liabilities (A)
Property, Plant and Equipment  11,780.93  440.31  -   12,221.24
Fair valuation of Investments  -    -    -    -   

Deferred tax assets (B)
Items deductible on payment basis  360.19  (227.03)  12.46 145.61
Provision for doubtful debts and others  472.63  (313.81)  -   158.83

Note: 35  Other Comprehensive Income	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-Remeasurement of defined benefit plans  (98.25)  (35.99)

Total  (98.25)  (35.99)

Note: 36  Earnings per share
The calculation of Earnings Per Share (EPS) as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss has been made in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33 on “Earnings Per Share”
	

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (in Lakhs)  3,02,615.66  1,09,933.97 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
Financial Year after adjustment for Buyback of Equity Shares

 3,99,47,934  3,99,59,142 

Basic earnings per share(`)  757.53  275.13 
Diluted earnings per share*(`)  757.53  275.13 

* There are no potential equity shares
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Note: 37  SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company’s Chief Operational Decision Makers consisting of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer examines the 
Company’s performance both from product and geographic perspective and has identified two segments, i.e., Graphite Electrodes 
(including other carbon products) and power. The business segments are monitored separately for the purpose of making decisions 
about resource allocation and performance assessment.

The reportable segments are:

• Graphite Electrodes (including other carbon products)- The segment comprises of manufacturing of graphite electrodes  
•  Power Generation - The segment comprises of generation of power for captive consumption and sale.

Segment measurement

The measurement principles for segment reporting are based on Ind AS 108. Segment’s performance is evaluated based on 
segment revenue and profit and loss from operating activities. Operating revenues and expenses related to both third party and 
inter-segment transactions are included in determining the segment results of each respective segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s length price and are eliminated on consolidation.	

1) Segment Revenue :	 (` in Lakhs)

Graphite( including 
other carbon 

products)
Power Unallocable items/ 

Others Company Total

Particulars

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2019

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2018

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2019

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2018

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2019

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2018

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2019

Year 
Ended 

31st 
March, 

2018
a) Segment Revenue
Turnover  6,58,226.74 2,73,882.80  12,146.70 21,379.58  0.73 0.70  6,70,374.17  2,95,263.08 
Less: Inter Segment 
turnover

 -    -    11,091.65 19,422.65  -    -    11,091.65  19,422.65 

External Turnover  6,58,226.74  2,73,882.80  1,055.05  1,956.93  0.73  0.70  6,59,282.52  2,75,840.43 

b) Segment Result 
before Interest & 
taxes

 4,60,534.39  1,61,237.04  (1,762.27) 4,858.12  609.07  (29.60)  4,59,381.19  1,66,065.57 

Add:Interest income  4,974.75  42.07 
Add: Gain on sale 
of Investments( 
Including gain/loss on 
Fair Valuation)

 5,148.84  5.21 

Less: Financial 
expenses

 1,796.90  5,641.88 

Profit before tax  4,67,707.88  1,60,470.97 
Less: Income tax 
(including deferred 
tax)

 1,62,664.83  52,337.04 

Add: Share of profit of 
Asscociates

 (2,427.40)  1,800.04 

Net Profit for the 
period

 3,02,615.66  1,09,933.97 

Depreciation  5,988.06  5,988.21  1,192.49  1,225.11  58.65  42.44  7,239.20  7,255.76 
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2) Secondary Revenue (By Geographical Location) :	 (` in Lakhs)

Within India Outside India Total

Particulars
Year Ended 
31st March, 

2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 

2018

Year Ended 
31st March, 

2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 

2018

Year Ended 
31st March, 

2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 

2018
 a) Segment Revenue  1,67,929.22  81,146.08  4,91,353.30  1,94,694.35  6,59,282.52  2,75,840.43 

3) Other Details	 (` in Lakhs)

Graphite( including 
other carbon products) Power Unallocable items/ 

Others Company Total

Particulars

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018

Segment Assets 3,51,906.06 2,31,592.34  14,313.05  16,607.03 1,48,216.70  25,711.24 5,14,435.81 2,73,910.62 
Segment Liabilities 1,12,604.72  74,220.61  961.73  3,370.55  21,500.76  5,567.06 1,35,067.21  83,158.22 
Capital exp. incurred 
during the year

 4,778.17  1,925.33  31.38  5.19  69.27  72.91  4,878.82  2,003.44 

4) Details of Unallocated Items	 (` in Lakhs)

Segment Assets
As at  

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Property, Plant & Equipment  194.49  196.46 
Investment Property  354.13  357.95 
Investments  94,172.64  24,816.55 
Inventories  14.68  12.03 
Trade Receivables  0.32  0.12 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  62.42  16.91 
Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents  52,836.57  245.28 
Financial Assets-Loans  26.54  35.47 
Other Assets 554.92  30.48 
Total 1,48,216.70  25,711.24 

	 (` in Lakhs)

Segment Liabilities
As at  

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Deferred Tax Liability  12,641.15  7.36 
Other Financial Liability  8,209.65  2,944.93 
Other Liabilities  489.06  2,487.68 
Provisions  160.91  127.09 
Total 21,500.76  5,567.06 
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5) The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the 
customers is as follows:	 	

(` in Lakhs)

Revenue from External Customers
Year Ended  

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
India                                                                                               1,67,929.22 81,146.08
Saudi Arabia                                                                                        38,595.51 1,804.32
USA 62,481.59 21,067.45
Iran 15,849.88  18,243.32 
Korea (South)                                                                                       43,278.73  5,855.12 
Turkey                                                                                              57,641.07  40,106.15 
Spain 48,762.75  18,753.03 
Others* 2,24,743.78 88,864.96
Total 6,59,282.52 2,75,840.43

*Others includes revenue from countries having less than 10% of total revenue from outside India.	

6)   The Company’s major sales are export based which is diversified in different countries and none of the customer contributes 
10% or more of the total Company’s revenue for the financial year ended March’19 and  March ‘18.	

7) The Company has business operations only in India and does not hold any non current asset outside India.				 
	

Note: 38  Commitment & Contingencies
1) Contingent Liabilities	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
For taxation matters
a)  Excise duty under appeal  230.80  232.95 
b)  Service tax  1,879.70  1,166.58 
c)  Income tax  7,651.21  7,691.21 
d)  Sales tax  477.40  481.56 

Other than Taxation matters
a)  Power related  3,123.37  2,541.20 
b) Labour related matters  59.98  42.60 
c) Others  117.41  116.00 

Based on legal advice, discussions with the solicitors, etc., the management believes that there is fair chance of decisions in the 
Company’s favor in respect of all the items listed above and hence no provision is considered necessary against the same. The 
management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s 
financial position and results of operations.		

Further the Company has deposited the amount to the tax authorities against the cases, which is shown as payment under protest 
in Note: 12 of Other Assets.  		

2) Commitment Outstanding	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
a) Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account and not provided for [(net of advances of `1,391.54 Lakhs, 
(previous year `251.27 Lakhs.)]

 28,686.17  481.82 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

3) Financial Guarantee	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
The Company has with RSWM Ltd. on joint and several basis provided 
Guarantee in favor of International Finance Corporation (IFC) on behalf 
of M/s AD Hydro Power Ltd.*  600.00  600.00 

*Note- Since the loss allowance was estimated to be nil, the guarantee is not recognised in the books of accounts.		
	

Note : 39 Related Party Disclosure
(a) Names of related parties where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Related Parties

Relationship
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
A) Subsidiary - (i)  HEG Graphite Products & 

Services Ltd.*
(up to 20th December 2017)

B) Associates (i)  Bhilwara Energy Limited (i)  Bhilwara Energy Limited
(ii) Bhilwara Infotechnology Ltd. (ii) Bhilwara Infotechnology Ltd.

C) Individuals owning directly or 
indirectly, an interest in the voting 
power of the reporting enterprise 
that  gives them control or significant 
influence over the enterprise, and 
relatives of  any such individual.

Sh. L.N. Jhunjhunwala Sh. L.N. Jhunjhunwala
Smt. Mani Devi Jhunjhunwala Smt. Mani Devi Jhunjhunwala
Sh. Ravi Jhunjhunwala Sh. Ravi Jhunjhunwala
Sh. Riju Jhunjhunwala Sh. Riju Jhunjhunwala
Sh. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala Sh. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala
Smt. Rita Jhunjhunwala Smt. Rita Jhunjhunwala
Nivedan Churiwal Nivedan Churiwal
Shubha Churiwal Shubha Churiwal
Sudha Churiwal Sudha Churiwal

D) Key Management Personnel Sh. Ravi Jhunjhunwala-CMD & CEO Sh. Ravi Jhunjhunwala-CMD
Sh. Riju Jhunjhunwala-Non-
Executive Director

Sh. Riju Jhunjhunwala-Non-
Executive Director

Sh. Shekhar Agarwal Sh. Shekhar Agarwal
Sh. Dharmendar Nath Davar Sh. Dharmendar Nath Davar
Sh. Satyendra Nath Bhattacharya Sh Satyendra Nath Bhattacharya
Sh. Satish Chand Mehta Sh. Satish Chand Mehta
Dr. Kamal Gupta Dr. Kamal Gupta
Dr. Om Parkash Bahl Dr. Om Parkash Bahl
Smt. Vinita Singhania Smt. Vinita Singhania
Smt. Ramni Nirula -

Late Sh. Raju Rustogi- Chief 
Operating Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer***

Sh. Raju Rustogi-Chief Operating 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Sh. Vivek Chaudhary-Company 
Secretary

Sh. Vivek Chaudhary-Company 
Secretary

Sh. Manish Gulati - Chief Operating 
Officer & Chief Marketing Officer 
(w.e.f. 31st October 2018)
Sh. Gulshan Kumar Sakhuja - Chief 
Financial Officer (w.e.f.12 February 
2019)

E) Relatives of Key Management Personnel Sh. L.N. Jhunjhunwala Sh. L.N. Jhunjhunwala
Smt. Mani Devi Jhunjhunwala Smt. Mani Devi Jhunjhunwala
Sh. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala Sh. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala
Smt. Rita Jhunjhunwala Smt. Rita Jhunjhunwala
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Related Parties

Relationship
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
F) Trust Under Common Control (a)  Hindustan Electro Graphites 

Staff Gratuity Fund Trust
(a)  Hindustan Electro Graphites 

Staff Gratuity Fund Trust
(b)  Hindustan Electro Graphites 

Officers Contributory P.F. Trust**
(b)  Hindustan Electro Graphites 

Officers Contributory P.F. Trust
(c)  Hindustan Electro Graphites Ltd. 

Senior Executive Superannuation 
Fund Trust

(c)  Hindustan Electro Graphites Ltd. 
Senior Executive Superannuation 
Fund Trust

G) Enterprises over which any person 
described in (c)  or (d) is able to 
exercise significant influence.

RSWM Ltd. RSWM Ltd.
Malana Power Company Ltd. Malana Power Company Ltd.
Giltedged Industrial Securities Ltd. Giltedged Industrial Securities Ltd.
Purvi Vanijya Niyojan Ltd. Purvi Vanijya Niyojan Ltd.
Shashi Commercial Co. Ltd. Shashi Commercial Co. Ltd.
BSL Ltd. BSL Ltd.
AD Hydro Power Ltd. AD Hydro Ltd.
Maral Overseas Ltd. Maral Overseas Ltd.
BMD Pvt. Ltd. BMD Pvt. Ltd.
Bharat Investments Growth Ltd. Bharat Investments Growth Ltd.
Deepak Pens & Plastics Pvt. Ltd. Deepak Pens & Plastics Pvt. Ltd.
India Texfab Marketing Ltd. India Texfab Marketing Ltd.
Investors India Ltd. Investors India Ltd.
LNJ Financial Services Ltd. LNJ Financial Services Ltd.
Nivedan Vanijya Niyojan Ltd. Nivedan Vanijya Niyojan Ltd.
M.L. Finlease Pvt. Ltd. M.L. Finlease Pvt. Ltd.
Sandhu Auto Deposits Ltd. Sandhu Auto Deposits Ltd.
Raghav Commercial Ltd. Raghav Commercial Ltd.
Norbury Investments Ltd. Norbury Investments Ltd.
Mekima Corporation Mekima Corporation
Microlight Investments Ltd. Microlight Investments Ltd.

Note:  *HEG Graphite Products and Services Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary (“WOS”) of the Company, the name of which has 
been struck-off  under section 248 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, upon the application made by WOS under Section 248 (2) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, from the Register of Companies and WOS stands dissolved w.e.f. 21st December, 2017.

** The company had discontinued the Hindustan Electro Graphites Officers Contributory P.F. Trust with effect from 1st April, 
2018.					   

***The services of Sh. Raju Rustogi- Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer had been discontinued w.e.f, 26th January, 
2019 due to sudden demise.		
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

(b) Transactions during the year with related parties	 (` in Lakhs)

Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

1) Associates M/s Bhilwara Energy 
Ltd.

Reimbursement 
received

 2.41  -   

Reimbursement made  12.78  6.88 
2) Individuals owning 

directly or indirectly, 
an interest in the 
voting power of the 
reporting enterprise 
that  gives them control 
or significant influence 
over the enterprise, and 
relatives of  any such 
individual.

Sh. L.N. 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  143.79  53.92 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 548.08  -   

Smt. Mani Devi 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  82.68  31.01 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 315.10  -   

Sh. Ravi 
Jhunjhunwala

Salary and Allowances 
(including perquisites 
and Contribution in PF 
and Superannuation)#

 246.48  237.03 

Commission  11,881.00  4,095.94 
Dividend paid  280.62  105.23 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 1,069.59  -   

Sale of Furniture  8.39  -   
Sh. Riju 
Jhunjhunwala

Director sitting fee  6.65  4.75 

Commission  25.00  -   
Dividend paid  186.63  69.99 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 711.37  -   

Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.42  0.30 

Sh. Rishabh 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  148.90  55.84 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 567.55  -   
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Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Smt. Rita 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  179.45  67.29 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 683.98  -   

Sh. Nivedan Churiwal Dividend paid  9.00  3.38 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 34.27  -   

Smt. Shubha 
Churiwal

Dividend paid  6.28  2.36 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 23.87  -   

Smt. Sudha Churiwal Dividend paid  2.00  0.75 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 7.59  -   

3) Key Management 
Personnel

Sh. Ravi 
Jhunjhunwala-CMD 
& CEO

Salary and Allowances 
(Including perquisites 
and Contribution in PF 
and Superannuation)#

 246.48  237.03 

Commission  11,881.00  4,095.94 
Dividend paid  280.62  105.23 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 1,069.59  -   

Sale of Furniture  8.39  -   
Sh. Riju 
Jhunjhunwala

Director sitting fee  6.65  4.75 

Commission  25.00  -   
Dividend paid  186.63  69.99 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 711.37  -   

Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.42  0.30 

Sh. L.N. 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  143.79  53.92 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 548.08  -   

Smt. Mani Devi 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  82.68  31.01 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 315.10  -   
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Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Sh. Rishabh 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  148.90  55.84 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 567.55  -   

Smt. Rita 
Jhunjhunwala

Dividend paid  179.45  67.29 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 683.98  -   

Sh. Shekhar Agarwal Director sitting fee  9.00  4.70 
Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.36  0.21 

Sh. Dharmendar Nath 
Davar

Director sitting fee  18.40  11.80 

Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 1.23  0.84 

Dividend paid  1.20  0.45 
Sh. Satyendra Nath 
Bhattacharya

Director sitting fee  3.00  3.00 

Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.12  0.12 

Sh. Satish Chand 
Mehta

Director sitting fee  7.50  4.50 

Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.30  0.18 

Dr. Kamal Gupta Director sitting fee  19.40  12.80 
Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 1.26  0.90 

Dividend paid  0.16  0.06 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 0.61  - 

Dr. Om Parkash Bahl Director sitting fee  15.20  9.40 
Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.63  0.42 

Smt. Vinita Singhania Director sitting fee  3.75  3.00 
Commission  25.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.24  0.21 

Smt. Ramni Nirula Director sitting fee  3.00  -   
Reimbursement of 
expenses

 0.12  -   
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Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Late Sh. Raju 
Rustogi- Chief 
Operating Officer 
and Chief Financial 
Officer

Salary and 
Allowances(including 
perquisites and 
Contribution in PF and 
Superannuation)#

 161.14  114.90 

Sh. Vivek Chaudhary-
Company Secretary

Salary and Allowances 
(including perquisites 
and Contribution in PF 
and Superannuation)#

 30.76  21.59 

Sh. Manish Gulati 
- Chief Operating 
Officer  (w.e.f.31st 
October 2018)#

Salary and Allowances 
(including perquisites 
and Contribution in PF 
and Superannuation)#

 119.72  -   

Sh. Gulshan Kumar 
Sakhuja - Chief 
Financial Officer  
(w.e.f.12 February 
2019)#

Salary and Allowances 
(including perquisites 
and Contribution in PF 
and Superannuation)#

 44.90  -   

4) Trust Under Common 
Control

(a) Hindustan Electro 
Graphites Staff 
Gratuity Fund Trust

Contribution in 
Employee Benefit 
Scheme

 -    -   

Payment received 
on retirement and 
termination

 -    -   

(b) Hindustan Electro 
Graphites Officers 
Contributory P.F. 
Trust(Refer Note )

Contribution in 
Employee Benefit 
Scheme

 -    65.33 

Payment received 
on retirement and 
termination

 -    -   

(c) Hindustan Electro 
Graphites Ltd. 
Senior Executive 
Superannuation Fund 
Trust

Contribution in 
Employee Benefit 
Scheme

 157.03  158.46 

Payment received 
on retirement and 
termination

 -    -   

5) Enterprises over which 
any person described 
in (b)  or (c) is able to 
exercise significant 
influence.

RSWM Ltd. Rent paid  43.52  43.25 

Rent Received  -    7.39 
Reimbursement 
received

 39.82  13.12 

Reimbursement made  30.42  36.28 
Dividend paid  782.40  293.40 
Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 2,982.27  -   
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Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Shashi Commercial 
Co. Ltd.

Rent paid  29.60  27.64 

Dividend paid  572.15  214.56 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 2,180.81  -   

Purvi Vanijaya Niyojan 
Ltd.

Rent paid  3.50  3.48 

Reimbursement made  0.33  -   

Dividend paid  1,396.28  523.61 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 5,322.19  -   

Giltedged Industrial 
Securities Ltd.

Rent paid  24.19  22.55 

Dividend paid  403.73  151.40 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 1,538.85  -   

Malana Power Co.Ltd. Reimbursement 
received

 3.13  0.21 

BSL Ltd. Rent received  12.18  12.10 

Purchase of Fabrics  3.40  2.26 

AD Hydro Power Ltd. Reimbursement 
received

 1.79  0.12 

Maral Overseas Ltd. Reimbursement 
received

 5.44  0.37 

BMD Pvt Ltd. Reimbursement 
received

 3.86  0.26 

Bharat Investments 
Growth Limited

Dividend paid  2,087.68  782.88 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 7,957.68  -   

Deepak Pens & 
Plastics Pvt. Ltd.

Dividend paid  397.92  149.22 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 1,516.74  -   

India Texfab 
Marketing Limited

Dividend paid  175.08  65.66 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 667.32  -   
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Relationship Name of the 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Investors India 
Limited

Dividend paid  30.71  11.51 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 117.04  -   

LNJ Financial 
Services Limited

Dividend paid  1,141.97  428.24 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 4,352.81  -   

Nivedan Vanijya 
Niyojan Ltd.

Dividend paid  56.48  21.18 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 215.22  -   

M.L. Finlease Pvt. 
Ltd.

Dividend paid  293.44  110.04 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 1,118.48  -   

Sandhu Auto Deposits 
Ltd.

Dividend paid  453.78  170.17 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 1,729.59  -   

Raghav Commercial 
Ltd.

Dividend paid  1,226.53  459.95 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 4,675.17  -   

Mekima Corporation Dividend paid  1,431.63  536.86 

Amount paid on 
Buyback of Equity 
Shares

 3,143.14  -   

Microlight 
Investments Limited

Dividend paid  3,732.46  1,399.67 

Norbury Investments 
Limited

Dividend paid  4,290.39  1,608.90 

# Remuneration does not include provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for 
the Company as a whole and remuneration amount represents remuneration paid for the whole year under consideration.
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(c) Details of Outstanding Balance (*)      	 (` in Lakhs)                

Sl.
No.

Related Party Name of the Related 
Party

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

1 Associates Bhilwara Energy Ltd. Investments  14,506.88  14,506.88 

Loan and Advances  0.11  0.11 

Bhilwara 
Infotechnology Ltd.

Investments  419.00  419.00 

2 Enterprises over 
which any person 
described in (b)  or 
(c) is able to exercise 
significant influence.

RSWM Ltd. Loan and Advances  0.18  0.18 

Malana Power Co.Ltd. Loan and Advances  1.90  1.90 

AD Hydro Ltd. Loan and Advances  1.09  1.09 

(*) Outstanding balance does not include salary payable of KMP’s as at the year ended.

 (d) Commitments with Related Parties  	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

The Company has with RSWM Ltd. on joint and several basis provided 
guarantee in favor of International Finance Corporation (IFC) on behalf 
of AD Hydro Power Ltd.

600.00 600.00

(e) Key Managerial Person	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Short term benefits 12,445.19 4,430.47
Post employment benefits 47.21 38.99
- Other long term benefits
Share based payments 3,896.26  -   
Directors sitting fees 85.90  53.95 
Directors commission 200.00  -   
Reimbursement of expenses & incidental expenses 4.68  3.18 
Dividend 1,023.43 383.79
Total 17,702.67 4,910.38

Note : 40  Indian Accounting Standard-19 “Employee Benefits”
Defined Contribution Plan		 					   
Contribution to Defined Contribution  Plan, recognised as expense for the period are as under :	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Employer's contribution to Provident Fund  258.47  233.42 
Employer's contribution to Superannuation Fund  170.73  155.44 
Employer's contribution to ESIC  59.50  59.93 
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Defined Benefit Plan

The following table set out the funded status of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet:
	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
A s at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
I. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO): 
Present Value of Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  1,156.36  1,134.68 
1. Interest Cost  90.19  83.40 
2. Current Service Cost  72.00  66.02 
3. Past Service Cost including curtailment (Gains)/Losses -  33.91 
4. Benefits paid  (164.25)  (224.08)
5. Actuarial Changes (Gain)/Loss  86.00  62.42 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year  1,240.30  1,156.36 

II. Change in Fair Value of Assets:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year:  1,307.99  1,193.82 
1. Expected Return  89.77  114.17 
2. Actual Company Contribution  -    -   
3. Benefits paid  -    -   
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  1,397.76  1,307.99 

III. Net Assets/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet:
1.Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation  1,240.30  1,156.35 
2.Fair Value on Plan Assets  1,397.76  1,307.99 
Net Assets/(Liability) recognized in balance sheet (2-1)  157.47  151.64 

IV. Expenses recognised during the year
In Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost  72.00  99.92 
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset)  (11.83)  (4.35)
Net Cost  60.17  95.57 
In Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Obligation  (86.00)  (62.42)
Actuarial Gain /(Loss) for the year on Asset  (12.25)  26.43 
Net Income/(Expense) for the period Recognised in OCI  (98.25)  (35.99)

V. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income for the year
1. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions  (Gain/ (Loss))

 -    -   

2. Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions  
(Gain/ (Loss))

 (45.06)  37.79 

3. Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments  
(Gain/ (Loss))

 (40.94)  (100.21)

4. Return on plan assets excluding interest income  (Gain/ (Loss))  (12.25)  26.43 
5. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income- (Gain/ (Loss))  (98.25)  (35.99)

VI. The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair 
value of total plan assets :
Insurer Management Fund  1.00  1.00 
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Particulars
A s at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018

VII. Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate (per annum)  7.75  7.80 
Salary escalation (per annum)  6.00  5.50 
Expected Rate of Return (per annum)  7.75  7.80 
Retirement age  58/60  58/60 
Mortality Rate during employment  100% of ALM (2006-08)  100% of ALM (2006-08) 

VIII. Withdrawal rates:
Age:
Upto 30 years  3.00  3.00 
From 31 to 44 years  2.00  2.00 
Above 44 years  1.00  1.00 

IX.Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation.
 a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Impact due to increase of  0.50%-Increase(Decrease) in obligation  (44.91)  (39.46)
Impact due to decrease of  0.50 %-Increase(Decrease) in obligation  48.14  42.20 
 b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Impact due to increase of  0.50%-Increase(Decrease) in obligation  42.89  39.95 
Impact due to decrease of  0.50 %-Increase(Decrease) in obligation  (40.84)  (37.82)

X. Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
(a)   0-1 year  121.51  147.40 
(b)   1-2 year  19.85  66.30 
(c)   2-3 year  70.72  95.92 
(d)   3-4 years  92.56  80.54 
(e)   4-5 years  141.08  122.38 
(f)    More than 5 years  794.56  643.81 

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.	

XI. The Company expects to contribute `121.51 Lakhs to the gratuity trusts during the financial year 2019-20.

Note: 41  Operating Leases
The Company had entered into operating leases on premises. These leasing arrangements are cancellable, range between 3 to 5 
years and usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Rent Paid 89.13  85.97 

Note: 42  Events after the Reporting Period

(i) The Company have declared dividend of `50 per Equity Share  of `10 each, aggregating `23,264.46 Lakhs including 
`3,966.71 Lakhs dividend distribution tax for the financial year 2018-19 in its board meeting held on 20th May’19

(ii) As on 31st March, 2019, the Company holds 29.48% in Bhilwara Energy Ltd. (BEL) an Associate Company of HEG Ltd. 
BEL either itself or  through its subsidiaries  had portfolio of operational 278 MW of Hydro and 34 MW of Wind assets 
in following power business:
a) Hydro Power Generation
b) Wind Power Generation
c) Power Consultancy business
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(iii) TThe Board of Directors in their meeting held on 2nd April, 2019, had decided to purchase additional 3,23,51,004 
shares in Bhilwara Energy Limited (BEL), Associate Company for an aggregating cash consideration of D162.05 Crores 
based on `50.09 per share from the following shareholders of BEL:
a) 32,81,818 equity shares of BEL held by New York Life Investment Management India Fund (FVCI) II LLC.
b) 1,72,727 equity shares of BEL held by Jacob Balls Capital India Pvt. Ltd.
c) 1,19,57,860 equity shares of BEL held by India Clean Energy III Limited.
d) 1,69,38,599 equity shares of BEL held by RSWM Limited, (Part of the Promoter Group)

The fair valuation of shares of BEL is `50.09 per share, which was determined  by M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, an 
Independent Valuer

Post the above acquisition of shares, the holding of Company in BEL, an associate company will increase from 29.48% 
to 49%.

Note : 43 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)				  

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company meeting the applicable threshold, need to spend atleast 2% of the 
average net profit for the immediate preceding three financial years on CSR activities as defined in schedule VII of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  `1,036.61 Lakhs (NIL Lakhs)

(b) Amount spent during the period :

(` in Lakhs)

CSR Activities  In cash  Yet to be paid in cash  Total 

(i) Construction/acquisition of any assets  -    -    -   
 -    -    -   

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above  827.92  -    827.92 
 (92.10)  -    (92.10)

(Figures in brackets pertain to financial  year 2017-18)	

Amount unspent during the year was `236.63 Lakhs

Note: 44  Capitalization of Pre-Operative Expenditure	 (` in Lakhs)

The following expenditure has been capitalized / included under 
Capital work in progress:

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Insurance expenses  -    -   
Financial expenses - interest on term loans  -    -   
Administrative overheads & other cost  -    -   
Foreign currency fluctuation -  1,672.53 
Total  -    1,672.53 
The same had been capitalized
Building  -    270.06 
Plant & Machinery  -    1,402.47 
Capital work in progress  -    -   
Total  -    1,672.53 
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Note: 45  Details of Loans given, Investments made and Guarantee given covered U/S 186(4) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Loan given - -
Guarantee given 600 600
Investment made 14,925.88 14,925.88

The Company has not given any Loan, Guarantee and not made any investments during the financial year 2018-19 and for the 
period ending 31st March, 2019.

Note : 46  Financial risk management and objective policies					     		

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s senior management oversees the management 
of these risks. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of 
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below.	 		

(A)  Market Risk:							     

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk 
and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans, borrowings and deposits. The Company is 
exposed to interest rate risk on variable rate long term and short term borrowings.

(i) Foreign Currency Risk:						      	

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with 
respect to USD and EURO

a)   Foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as at the balance sheet date

Category Currency Nature

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Purpose
(USD) 

(Millions)
(INR) 

(Lakhs )
 ( USD ) in 

Millions
(INR) 

(Lakhs )

Plain Vanilla Forwards ( Sold ) USD/ INR Sold 8.00  5,666.73  36.00 23680.3 Hedging

Plain Vanilla Forwards EURO/ USD Sold - - 3.50  USD  1.2555 Hedging

b)  Particulars of foreign currency risk exposure

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Currency As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Financial Liabilities

Secured Loan USD  -    -   
Euro  -    -   

Creditors(Net of Advances) USD  4,374.72  11,418.87 
Euro  3.11  38.21 

Other payables USD  1,345.27  1,116.99 
Euro  1,143.53  1,375.28 
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Particulars Currency As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
(liabilities)

USD  5,719.99  12,535.86 

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
(liabilities)

Euro  1,146.65  1,413.49 

Debtors(Net of Advances) USD  66,246.52  36,110.71 
Euro  22,855.70  31,098.34 

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
(assets)

USD  66,246.52  36,110.71 

Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
(assets)

Euro  22,855.70  31,098.34 

(c) Sensitivity:

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial 
instruments.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in the USD and Euro to the Indian Rupee with all other variables held constant. 
The impact on the Company’s profit before tax and other comprehensive income due to changes in the fair value of monetary 
assets and liabilities is given below:	

												                       (` in Lakhs)	

Particulars Impact on Profit
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
For the year ended 

31st March, 2018
USD Sensitivity
Increase by 3% ( Previous year 1%) 1,645.79 235.75
Decrease by 3% ( Previous year 1%) (1,645.79) (235.75)

EURO Sensitivity
Increase by 6% ( Previous year4%) 1,302.54 1,187.39
Decrease by 6% ( Previous year 4%) (1,302.54) (1,187.39)

(ii) Interest Rate Risk					     	

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
debt obligations with floating interest rates.

(a) Interest Risk Exposure:							     

The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Variable Rate Borrowings  66,636.47  29,745.49 
Fixed Rate Borrowings  -    -   
Total Borrowings  66,636.47  29,745.49 

(` in Lakhs)
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As at the end of the reporting period, the Company has the following variable rate borrowings outstanding:

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Category
Weighted 
Average 
Interest Rate

Outstanding 
Balance 
(D in Lakhs)

% of Total 
Loans

Weighted 
Average 
Interest Rate

Outstanding 
Balance 
(D in Lakhs)

% of Total 
Loans

Term loans from banks and other 
parties

 -    -    -    -   

Working Capital Loans from banks 5.69% 66,636.47 100 6.32% 29,745.49 100

Total 5.69%  66,636.47 100 6.32%  29,745.49 100

(b) Sensitivity:	

Profit/Loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.     

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Impact on Profit
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
For the year ended 

31st March, 2018
Interest Rate - increase by 60 basis points (399.82) (178.47)

Interest Rate - decrease by 60 basis points 399.82 178.47

(iii) Security Price risk:	 					   

(a) 	Price Risk:	 					   
	 The Company manages the surplus funds majorly through investments in debt based Fixed Maturity Plans and mutual fund 

schemes. The price of investment in these Fixed Maturity Plans and mutual fund schemes is reflected though Net Asset 
Value (NAV) decleared by the Asset Management Company on daily basis as reflected by the movement in the NAV of invested 
schemes. The Company is exposed to price risk on such investments.

(b) 	Sensitivity:	 					   

	 The below is the sensitivity analysis at the end of the year in case NAV has been 1% higher / lower.

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Impact on Profit
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
For the year ended 

31st March, 2018
NAV increase by 1% 639.45 -

NAV decrease by 1% (639.45) -

(B) Credit Risk:	

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to 
the Company. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables, loans to employees 
and security deposits). Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests 
in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. The Company’s credit 
risk in case of all other financial instruments is negligible.						    

To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial 
conditions, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable.				  
		
The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting period. 						    
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(i) Expected Credit Loss for Financial Assets

As at 31st March 2019	 (` in Lakhs)

Financial assets to which loss allowance  
is measured using 12 months Expected 
Credit Loss (ECL)

Gross Carrying 
Amount

Expected 
Probability of 

Default

Expected Credit 
Loss

Carrying amount 
net of impairment 

provision

Loans to Employees  88.24 0%  -    88.24 
Security Deposits  1,092.32 0%  -    1,092.32 

	 (` in Lakhs)

Financial assets to 
which loss allowance is 
measured using lifetime 
Expected Credit Loss 
(ECL)

Not Due
Less 

than 12 
months

 12 to 15 
months 

 15 to 18 
months 

 18 to 21 
months 

 21 to 24 
months 

 More 
than 24 
months 

Total

Trade Receivables- 
Other than ECGC 5,846.41 1,12,493.21 6.28 422.52 54.85 98.37 593.39 1,19,515.04 
Due under ECGC - - - - - - 119.63  119.63 

Expected Loss Rate  -    -   25% 50% 75% 100% 100% -

Expected Credit Losses - - 1.57 211.26 41.14 98.37 593.39  945.73 

Carrying amount of Trade 
receivables

5,846.41 1,12,493.21 4.71 211.26 13.71 0.00 119.63 1,18,688.94 

For the year ending 31st March 2018	 (` in Lakhs)

Financial assets to which loss allowance  
is measured using 12 months Expected 
Credit Loss (ECL)

Gross Carrying 
Amount

Expected 
Probability of 

Default

Expected Credit 
Loss

Carrying amount 
net of impairment 

provision
Loans to Employees  85.97 0%  -    85.97 
Security Deposits  721.72 0%  -    721.72 

	 (` in Lakhs)

Financial assets to 
which loss allowance is 
measured using lifetime 
Expected Credit Loss 
(ECL)

Not Due
Less 

than 12 
months

 12 to 15 
months 

15 to 18 
months

18 to 21 
months 

21 to 24 
months 

 More 
than 24 
months 

Total

Trade Receivables-  -   
Other than ECGC 72,073.61 24,482.89 415.27 6.97 46.84 23.68 390.13 97,439.38
Due under ECGC 288.47 288.47

Expected Loss Rate  -    -   10% 20% 30% 50% 100% -

Expected Credit Losses - - 41.53 1.39 14.05 11.84 390.13 458.94

Carrying amount of Trade 
receivables

72,073.61 24,482.89 373.74 5.58 32.79 11.84 288.47 97,268.90
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Provisioning Norms of Debtors	 (` in Lakhs)

Ageing of debtor on the basis of invoice date Provision in %_2018-19 Provision in %_2017-18

Upto 12 Months Nil Nil
12 to 15 months 25% 10%
15 to 18 months 50% 20%
18 to 21 months 75% 30%
21 to 24 months 100% 50%
More than 24 months 100% 100%

(ii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - 

Trade Receivables

The following table summarizes the change in the loss allowances measured using life-time expected credit loss model:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Current Year ended 

31st March,2019
Previous Financial year 
ending 31st March,2018

As at the beginning of year  458.94  1,241.92 
Provided during the year  486.79 -
Reversal of provisions  (782.98)
As at the end of the year 945.73  458.94 

(C) Liquidity Risk:	 					   

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. 
The Company’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes 
and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position 
through rolling, forecast on the basis of expected cash flows.					   

Prudent liquidity  risk management implies maintaining sufficient availability  of standby funding through  an adequate line up 
committed credit facilities of `53,363.53 Lakhs( previous year `28,754.51 Lakhs ) to meet obligation when due and close out 
market position.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based 
on contractual undiscounted payments:					   

As at 31st March 2019	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Less than 12 

months
12months to 3 

years  More than 3 years  Total 

Borrowings(Non-Current)  -    -    -    -   
Borrowings(Current)  66,636.47  66,636.47 
Trade payables  38,006.90  38,006.90 
Other financial liabilities  13,017.49  4.35  36.96  13,058.80 
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As at 31st March,2018	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Less than 12 

months
12months to 3 

years  More than 3 years  Total 

Borrowings (Non-Current)  -    -    -    -   
Borrowings (Current)  29,745.49  -    -    29,745.49 
Trade payables  24,644.43  -    -    24,644.43 
Other financial liabilities  7,251.90  3.96  38.55  7,294.41 

Note : 47   Capital Management 

(a)    Risk Management					   

The Company’s objective when managing capital are to:					   

i) 	 Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and 
benefits for other stakeholders, and

(ii) 	Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or 
sell assets to reduce debt.	

(i) 	 The gearing ratios were as follows:			   (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
a) Debt*  66,636.47  29,745.49 
b) Cash & Cash Equivalents  (2,915.91)  (517.18)
(c ) Net Debt (a)+(b) 63,720.56 29,228.31

Total equity 3,79,368.60 1,90,752.40
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 0.17 0.15

* Debt is defined as long- term and short-term  borrowings ( excluding derivative, financial guarantee contracts and contingent  
consideration), refer Note 18 for the details of borrowings.

(ii) Loan Covenants:	 				  

The Company is Debt free as on reporting period.

(b) Dividends	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
i) Equity Shares
Final Dividend paid for the year ended 31st March, 2018 of `50 per fully 
paid equity share 

 19,979.57  -   

Interim Dividend paid during the year ended 31st March, 2019 of `30 per 
fully paid equity share (previous year `30 per fully paid equity share)

 11,987.74  11,987.74 

ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting year
In addition to above dividends, since  year end the Directors have 
recommended the payment of a Final dividend of `50  per equity share 
(previous year `50 per equity share) which is subject to the approval of 
Shareholders in the ensuing AGM

 19,297.75  19,979.57 
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Note 48.   Financial Instruments- Accounting Classification  and Fair Value Measurement

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

FVPL FVOCI Amortised 
cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost
Financial assets
Investments

     -Equity Instruments  0.01  -    -    0.01  -    -   

     -Fixed Maturity Plans  57,937.06 - - - - -

     -Mutual Funds  6,008.15 - - - - -

     -Non Convertible Debentures  7,832.79 - - - - -

Loans  -    -    1,180.57  -    -    807.69 

Others - -  465.79 - -  85.04 

Derivative Financial Assets  72.40  -    -    24.39  -   -

Trade Receivables  -    -   1,18,688.94  -    -    97,268.90 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  -    -    2,915.91  -    -    517.17 

Bank balances other than Cash & Cash 
Equivalents

- -  52,816.50 - -  245.28 

Total Financial Assets  71,850.41  -    1,76,067.71  24.40  -    98,924.09 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings  -    -    66,636.47  -    -    29,745.49 

Trade Payables  -    -    38,006.90  -    -    24,644.43 

Other Financial Liabilities  -    -   13,058.80  -    -    7,294.41 

Derivative Financial Liability -  -   -  -    -    -   

Total Financial Liabilities  -    -    1,17,702.17  -                         -     61,684.32 

# Investment value excludes investment in Associates of `22,394.63 lakhs (March 31, 2018: `24816.55 lakhs) 

(i) Fair value hierarchy					     			 
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.						    
			 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 						    

1. 	 Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, 
short term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their carrying value largely due to the short-term 
maturities of these instruments.								     

								      
2. 	 Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates evaluated by the Company based on the parameters such as 

interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on the evaluation, allowances are taken to account 
the expected losses of these receivables.								      

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of the financial instruments by valuation 
techniques:				  
								      
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities					   
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Level 2: Other techniques for which all the inputs have a significant effect on the recorded fair values are observable, either 
directly or indirectly					   
								      
Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 
market data.	

 As at 31st March,2019			   (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
 Carrying amount 

 Fair value 
 Level 1   Level 2  Level 3 

Financial assets at Fair value through 
profit or loss
Investments-Bonds -  -    -    -   
Investments-Fixed Maturity Plans  57,937.06  57,937.06 - -
Investments-Mutual Fund  6,008.15  6,008.15 - -
Investments-Non Convertible Debentures  7,832.79  7,832.79 - -
Quoted equity investment 0.01 0.01  -    -   
Derivative Financial Assets  72.40  72.40  -    -   
Total 71,850.40 71,850.40  -    -   

As at 31st March,2018			   (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
 Carrying amount 

 Fair value 
 Level 1   Level 2  Level 3 

Financial assets at Fair value through 
profit or loss
Quoted equity investment 0.01  0.01  -    -   
Derivative financial assets  24.39  24.39  -    -   
Total 24.40 24.40  -    -   

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

i.   	Fair value of cash and deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial assets and liabilities 
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.	

ii. 	 The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount 
rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. 					   



Co
rp

or
at

e 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ep
or

t
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

239

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019	

Note: 49 Carrying Amount of Pledged Assets	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
First Charge
Current Assets
(a) Trade Receivables 1,18,688.94 97,268.90
(b) Inventories 1,30,838.68 51,143.57

Total (A) 2,49,527.61 1,48,412.47
Secondary Charge

Property, Plant & Equipment 78,317.19 82,814.06

Total (B) 78,317.19 82,814.06

Total (A+B) 3,27,844.79 2,31,226.53

Note: 50  Disclosure under Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”		

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative catch-up 
transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up 
transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The impact on account of applying the erstwhile Ind 
AS 18 Revenue instead of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contract with Customers” on the financials results of the Company for the 
year ended and as at March 31, 2019 is insignificant. 		

The below are the disclosures as required by Ind AS 115: 		

(i) Disaggregation of revenue 		

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2019 by offerings 
and contract-type. 

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
Type of Product 
   - Graphite Electrode  6,28,323.12 
   - Mix Graphite Product  14,588.26 
   - Power  720.22 
Total  6,43,631.60 

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
Revenue from Customers based in India  1,52,278.30 
Revenue from Customers based outside India  4,91,353.30 
Total  6,43,631.60 

Timing of Revenue Recognition 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2019
Revenue from goods transferred to customers at a point in time  6,43,631.60 
Revenue from goods transferred to customers over time  -   
Total  6,43,631.60 
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 (ii) Trade receivables and Contract Balances  		

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as receivable. 		

The balances of trade receivables and advance from customers at the beginning and end of the reporting period have been 
disclosed at Note no. 9 and 23 respectively.		

The revenue recognised during the year ended 31st March, 2019 includes revenue against advances from customers amounting to 
`1,460.95 lakhs at the beginning of the year.		

The revenue of ` Nil has been recognised during the year ended 31st March, 2019 against performance obligations satisfied (or 
partially satisfied) in previous periods. 		

(iii) Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations		

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as 
at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. 

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as at March 31, 2019 is ` Nil.

Note: 51  Disclosures in accordance with Ind AS 18.

In accordance with Ind AS 18 on “Revenue” and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, Sales for the period 1 April to 30 June, 2017 
were reported gross of Excise Duty and net of VAT/ CST. Excise Duty was reported as a separate expense line item. Consequent 
to the introduction of Goods and Services Tax (GST) with effect from 1 July 2017, VAT/CST, Excise Duty etc. have been subsumed 
into GST and accordingly the same is not recognised as part of sales as per the requirements of Ind AS 18. This has resulted in 
lower reported sales in the current period in comparison to the sales reported under the pre-GST structure of indirect taxes. With 
the change in structure of indirect taxes, certain expenses where credit of GST is available are also being reported net of taxes.

Note: 52  Recent Accounting Pronouncements				    	

Ind AS 116 Leases:					   

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing Leases 
Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single 
lease accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve 
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit 
& Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the 
lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard permits two 
possible methods of transition: 

• 	 Full retrospective – Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors

• 	 Modified retrospective – Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of 
initial application.

	 Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease 
payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as: 

• 	 Its carrying amount should be calculated as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at 
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or 

• 	 An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease 
recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application. Certain practical expedients are available under 
both the methods.
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On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the ‘Modified Retrospective 
Approach’ for transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of initial application 
(April 1, 2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted.  The Company has 
elected certain available practical expedients on transition.

The Company has evaluated the effect of this on the financial statements and the impact is not material.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’	 			 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with 
accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity: 

• 	 To use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan 
amendment, curtailment or settlement; and 

• 	 To recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that 
surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company does not have 
any impact on account of this amendment.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments :		  			 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which 
is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits 
and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies 
need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the 
companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the 
expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits 
and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition –

i) 	 Full retrospective approach – Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period 
presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using 
hindsight and 

ii) 	 Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, 
without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company will 
adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. 
April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the financial statements.  

Amendment to Ind AS 12 – Income taxes :		  			 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection 
with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, Other 
Comprehensive Income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is currently 
evaluating the effect of this amendment on the Standalone Financial Statements.
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Note: 53  Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Financing Activities		  			 

Pursuant to amendment in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 via MCA notification G.S.R 258(E) dated 17th 
March, 2017 para 44A to para 44E has been inserted after para 44 in Indian Accounting Standard -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, 
following reconciliation is required from annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2017

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year Ended 
31st March, 2018

Borrowings
(Current)

Borrowings
(Non-Current)

Borrowings
(Current)

Borrowings
(Non-Current)

Opening balance of Financial Liabilities 
coming under the financing activities of 
Cash Flow Statement

 29,745.49  -    41,183.59  27,195.05 

Add/(Less): Changes during the year
a) Changes from financing cash flow  36,890.98  -    (11,438.10)  (27,195.05)
b)Changes arising from obtaining or 
losing control of subsidiaries or other 
business

 -    -    -    -   

c) the effect of changes in foreign 
exchanges rates- (Gain)/Loss

 -   

d) Changes in fair value  -    -    -    -   
e) Other changes  -    -    -    -   
Closing Balance of Financial Liabilities 
coming under the financing activities 
of Cash Flow Statement

 66,636.47  -    29,745.49  - 

Note: 54  Details of Research & Development Expenditure 
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17 FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
a) Capital  -    -    -    -    -   

b) Revenue  187.16  186.61  168.89  176.73  159.60 

Note: 55  Significant Enterprises consolidated as associates in accordance with Ind AS 28. Investments in 
Associates and Joint Ventures.				  

A. Interest in Other Entities

The Consolidated Financial Statements present the Consolidated Accounts of HEG Ltd. with its following Associates.

Particulars Country of 
Incorporation Activities Proportion of Ownership of Interest

A. Associates As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

Bhilwara Infotechnology Limited India IT enabled services 38.59% 38.59%

Bhilwara Energy Limited India
Power Generation and 
Power Consultancy

29.49% 29.49%

Refer Note: 42 for details on equisition of shares in Bhilwara Energy Limited.
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B. Summarised Financial Information of Associates	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Bhilwara Energy Limited Bhilwara Infotechnology Limited
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
I. Assets
(A) Non Current Assets  1,79,764.29  2,00,808.73  927.39  722.82 
(B) Current Assets
       i) Cash and Cash Equivalents  2,033.40  4,080.43  470.44  467.73 
       ii) Others  33,597.05  32,528.86  3,181.17  3,060.73 
Total Current Asset  35,630.45  36,609.29  3,651.61  3,528.46 

Total Asset (A+B)  2,15,394.74  2,37,418.02  4,579.00  4,251.28 

II. Liabilities
(A) Non Current Liabilities
       i) Financial Liabilities  54,259.61  90,357.45  32.25 
       ii) Non Financial Liabilities  394.10  378.64  143.23  140.49 
       iii) Deferred Tax Liabilities  -   
Total Non Current Liabilities  54,653.71  90,736.09  175.47  140.49 

(B) Current Liabilities
      i) Financial Liabilities  31,786.68  11,250.81  420.94  579.61 
      ii) Non Financial Liabilities  1,578.03  1,729.21  129.40  136.90 
     iii) Current Tax Liabilities  72.41  271.87 
Total Current Liabilities  33,437.12  13,251.89  550.33  716.51 

Total Liabilities (A+B)  88,090.83  1,03,987.98  725.81  857.00 

Net Assets (I-II)  1,27,303.91  1,33,430.04  3,853.19  3,394.29 

C. Summarised Performance of Associates	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars Bhilwara Energy Limited Bhilwara Infotechnology Limited
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Year Ended 

31st March, 2019
Year Ended 

31st March, 2018
Revenue from Operations  36,612.07  31,772.30  5,091.37  4,421.30 

Profit and Loss before Tax  (79.01)  9,110.76  623.40  586.46 
Tax Expense  4,059.83  (2,431.27)  188.01  177.16 
Profit and Loss after Tax (net of non-
controlling interest)

 (8,801.01)  5,568.42  435.38  409.30 

Other Comprehensive Income(net of 
non-controlling interest)

 (12.20)  16.06  23.54  23.42 

Total Comprehensive Income  (8,813.21)  5,584.48  458.92  432.73 
Depreciation and Amortisation  7,597.02  8,640.87  52.35  58.11 
Interest Expense  9,188.79  11,339.36  6.46  5.41 
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D. Movement of Investment in Associates using equity method 	 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2019
As at 

31st March, 2018
Investment at cost - at the beginning of the Period 14,925.88 14,925.88
Profit till date at the beginning of the period  9,890.67  8,076.87 
Add: Share of profit for the period  (2,427.40)  1,800.04 
Add: Share of OCI for the period  5.49  13.76 
Investment at cost - at the end of the Reporting Period  14,925.88  14,925.88 
Profit till date at the end of the Reporting Period  7,468.75  9,890.67 

E. Other Details mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013, by way of additional information:

Name of entity
Net Assets, i.e., total 

assets minus 
total liabilities 

Share in profit 
or loss

 Share in Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

Share in total 
Comprehensive 

Income

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets 

Amount As % of con-
solidated profit 

or loss
Amount

As % of 
consolidated 

Other Com-
prehensive 

Income

Amount
As % of  total 
Comprehen-
sive Income

Amount

Associates (Investment as per the equity method) 
Indian 
1) Bhilwara Energy 
Limited

34%  1,27,303.91 (0.86%) (2595.42) 6.16% (3.60) (0.86%) (2599.02)

2)Bhilwara 
Infotechnology 
Limited

1%  3,853.19 0.06% 168.01 (15.54%) 9.08 0.06% 177.10

Note: 56  Regrouping/ Reclassification			 

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified , wherever necessary to confirm the current period/year classification.

In terms of our report of even date

For SCV & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

Ravi Jhunjhunwala 
Chairman, Managing 
Director & CEO
DIN No. 00060972

Riju Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00061060

Sanjiv Mohan 
Partner                                                                                
Membership No. 086066

Gulshan Kumar Sakhuja	
Chief Financial Officer	

Shekhar Agarwal
Vice Chairman
DIN No. 00066113

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Dated:  20th May, 2019

Vivek Chaudhary	
Company Secretary	
Membership No. A13263

D.N.Davar
Director
DIN No. 00002008
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FORM NO. AOC-1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of  

subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of  

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part – A : Subsidiaries      
The Company has no subsidiaries as on 31st March 2019, hence not applicable.
										        
Part – B : Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

 (` in Lakhs)

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Bhilwara Energy Ltd. Bhilwara Infotechnology Ltd.

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31/03/2019 31/03/2019

2. Shares of Associate held by the Company on the year end

No. of Shares 4,88,81,556 12,62,048

Amount of Investment in Associates 14,506.88 419.00

Extend of Holding % 29.49* 38.59

3. Description of how there is a significant influence Due to percentage of share 
capital

Due to percentage of share 
capital

4. Reason why the associate is not consolidated - -

5. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest 
audited Balance Sheet

20,261.56 1,486.85

6.  Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation (` in Lakhs) (2,599.02) 177.10

ii.Not Considered in Consolidation - -

*Refer Note No. 42 for details on acquisition of shares of Bhilwara Energy Ltd.

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations:  N.A.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year:  N.A.

In terms of our report of even date

For SCV & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

Ravi Jhunjhunwala 
Chairman, Managing 
Director & CEO
DIN No. 00060972

Riju Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00061060

Sanjiv Mohan 
Partner                                                                                
Membership No. 086066

Gulshan Kumar Sakhuja	
Chief Financial Officer	

Shekhar Agarwal
Vice Chairman
DIN No. 00066113

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Dated:  20th May, 2019

Vivek Chaudhary	
Company Secretary	
Membership No. A13263

D.N.Davar
Director
DIN No. 00002008
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
STATEMENTS IN THIS DOCUMENT THAT ARE NOT HISTORICAL FACTS ARE FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS. THESE ‘FORWARD-LOOKING’ STATEMENTS MAY 
INCLUDE THE COMPANY’S OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES, INTENTIONS, PROJECTIONS, EXPECTATIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS REGARDING THE BUSINESS AND THE 
MARKETS IN WHICH THE COMPANY OPERATES. THE STATEMENTS ARE BASED ON INFORMATION WHICH IS CURRENTLY AVAILABLE TO US, AND THE COMPANY 
ASSUMES NO OBLIGATION TO UPDATE THESE STATEMENTS AS CIRCUMSTANCES CHANGE. THERE MAY BE A MATERIAL DIFFERENCE BETWEEN ACTUAL 
RESULTS AND THOSE EXPRESSED HEREIN. THE RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND IMPORTANT FACTORS THAT COULD INFLUENCE THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS AND 
BUSINESS ARE THE GLOBAL AND DOMESTIC ECONOMIC CONDITIONS. THE MARKET DEMAND AND SUPPLY FOR PRODUCTS, PRICE FLUCTUATIONS, CURRENCY 
AND MARKET FLUCTUATIONS, CHANGES IN THE GOVERNMENT’S REGULATIONS, STATUTES AND TAX REGIMES, AND OTHER FACTORS NOT SPECIFICALLY 
MENTIONED HEREIN BUT THOSE THAT ARE COMMON TO THE INDUSTRY.
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Website: www.hegltd.com/www.lnjbhilwara.com

E-mail: heg.investor@lnjbhilwara.com
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